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CORPORATE PROFILE

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson Development”)
was founded in 1992, and its shares have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1998 (Stock code:
00754). Hopson Development is a major property group that specializes in
the development of medium to high-end large-scale residential properties.
In terms of land bank, it is one of the largest property developers in The
People’s Republic of China.

Since 1995, Hopson Development has started to establish its brand on a
nationwide scale through deploying appropriate corporate strategy and
business model. The principal focus is on three Core Economic Zones,
namely Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai area and Yangtze River Delta, with
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai as the core cities. In Guangzhou
and Beijing, the brands such as “Regal Riviera”, “Gallopade” and
“Fairview” have been established to cover a range of businesses including
product designs, customer services and facilities; and to accommodate
different community cultures and different operating models. Each
property project is featured with a unique theme to demonstrate the
strength of our corporate branding. Strong brand recognition at project
level enhances the positioning and marketability of the corporate
branding.

Major investments were made in the first-tier cities such as Guangzhou,
Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai over the past few years.
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CORPORATE AND LISTING INFORMATION

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman)

XIANG Bin (Deputy Chairman)

CHEN Chang Ying (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 21st January 2010)

XUE Hu (Appointed as Chief Executive Officer
on 22nd March 2010)

AU Wai Kin

ZHAO Ming Feng (Chief Financial Officer)

LIAO Ruo Qing (Appointed on 21st January 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors
YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip

LEE Tsung Hei, David

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip (Chairman)

LEE Tsung Hei, David

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver

Qualified Accountant
LEE Bun Ching, Terence

Company Secretary
MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, solicitor

Authorized Representatives
AU Wai Kin
ZHAO Ming Feng

Independent Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE AND LISTING INFORMATION

Legal Advisor

As to Hong Kong Law

Jones Day

29th Floor, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers
Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of East Asia
China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Standard Chartered Bank

Branch Share Registrars In Hong Kong
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office

Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House

1 Connaught Place

Central
Hong Kong

Representative Offices

Guangzhou -

Beijing -

Shanghai -

Tianjin -

16th Floor, South Tower
Zhujiang Investment Building
421 Zhujiang East Road
Zhujiang New City, Guangzhou

Zhujiang Development Centre
23 Dawang Road West
Chaoyang District, Beijing

18th Floor, Guangdong Development Bank Building
555 Xujiahui Road, Shanghai

No. 14 Dongchengnan Road
Baodi District, Tianjin
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CORPORATE AND LISTING INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDERS’' CALENDAR

Register of Shareholders

Close of Register

10th June 2010 to 15th June 2010 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
15th June 2010

Dividends (Per Share)
Interim dividend HK9.2 cents
Paid on Friday, 27th November 2009

LISTING INFORMATION

Shares Listing

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code
00754

Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 8.125% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on

The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

USD Settled Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds

The Company's zero coupon convertible bonds are listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(All the convertible bonds were repaid on 2nd February 2010)
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBEHE

2009
ZEBhEF
HK$'000
Fx

G
HK$'000

THET

HK$'000
THET

HK$°000

Revenues W2k 6,133,894 6,920,294 11,130,643 10,774,624 11,225,246
Profit before taxation BRBADER] 1,812,627 2,461,536 5,177,451 3,861,762 8,791,918
Taxation B (611,446) (837,358) (1,629,245) (1,912,812) (2,699,383)
Profit for the year FERF 1,201,181 1,624,178 3,548,206 1,948,950 6,092,535
Minority interests LB 16,142 (70,426) (30,894) 14,774 (292,962)
Profit attributable to shareholders R R AR T 1,217,323 1,553,752 3,517,312 1,963,724 5,799,573
Profit attributable to shareholders PRI AR CRETEE
(excluding the effect of revaluation FENRNTEE
and excess of acquirer's interest at 2RSSR
fair value over cost of acquisition) BB A 2 BB 17 1,011,403 1,092,535 1,993,451 1,742,495 2,274,409
Earnings per share FREF|
— Basic — AR HK113 cents 81l HK127 cents 78l HK254 cents j&1ll  HK133 cents #{lll  HK377 cents %4l
— Diluted — s HK113 cents 71l HK126 cents 1l HK249 cents #{ll  HK133 cents #{ll HK369 cents L
Dividends per share R A HK33.95 cents 31l HK37.9 cents #1 HK41.9 cents 1l HK20.0 cents {1 HK9.2 cents 4l
Net assets value per share A EFE HK$4.75 BT HK$6.40 57T HK$13.64 BT HK$15.33 87T HK$19.15 BT
(HK$'000)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Chu Mang Yee K&k

Chairman /&

During 2009, the Group continued to adopt a prudent approach to maintain a
stable business operation. Leveraging on its unparalleled strengths, first-class
capabilities of real-estate operations and sophisticated corporate governance
structure and operational mechanism, the Group realized a stable growth in
annual results with the help of proactive development and sales strategies.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

During 2009, the Group continued to adopt a prudent approach to
maintain a stable business operation. Leveraging on its unparalleled
strengths, first-class capabilities of real-estate operations and sophisticated
corporate governance structure and operational mechanism, the Group
realized a stable growth in annual results with the help of proactive

development and sales strategies.

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the turnover of the Group
increased by 4.2% to hit HK$11,225 million. Net asset per share was
HK$19.15, up 25%, while return on equity was 22%.

(1) MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATING

ENVIRONMENT IN 2009

(i) Nationwide
In 2009, China actively responsed to the global financial crisis
and facilitated fast and solid economic development. The
national economy witnessed steady growth momentum and
overall situation remained positive. The GDP of 2009 was
RMB33,535.3 billion, grew 8.7% from last year. Excluding
price factor, the disposal income per capita of urban residents
recorded a 9.8% growth. By the end of 2009, the balance of
the National Foreign Exchange Reserve reached US$2,399.2
billion, jumped 23.28% from last year.
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The Group's high-end project — No. 8 Royal Park in Beijing
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(1) MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATING
ENVIRONMENT IN 2009 (Continued)

()

Nationwide (Continued)

To overcome challenges arose from the global financial
turmoil, the Central Government implemented proactive
fiscal policies and moderately loose monetary policies. A
number of economic stimulus measures including the ten
initiatives of “Expanding Domestic Demand, Accelerating
Economic Growth”, the 4,000-billion yuan investment plan,
the ten industries stimulus plan and the 7,000-billion yuan
credit supply were introduced by phases. Added value of
industries recorded gradual growth while investment and
credit witnessed significant expansion. A mild increase in the
retail sales of consumer goods and a narrower drop in exports
were seen. The macro economy showed a clear sign of revival
and regained its development at a faster pace. Although the
real estate industry was not covered under the stimulus plan,
it remains a great concern of the government for its significant
role in boosting national economic development. The market
conditions of the property sector were less restrained when
compared to that of 2008.

After the market adjustment in 2008 and the launch of
various preferential policies for the property sector, the real
estate market swiftly rebound during the first half of 2009.
Transactions of commodity housing were active in major
cities with growth in both transaction volume and price.
According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the
nationwide investment in real estate development for 2009
was RMB3,623.2 billion, up 16.1% from last year. The gross
floor area of commodity housing sold nationwide was 937.13
million square metres, representing an increase of 42.1% from
last year. Sales of commodity housing reached RMB4,399.5
billion, jumped 75.5% from last year. Selling price of housings
in seventy medium-to-large cities also increased by 7.8% from
last year. The nationwide land market enjoyed a significant
rebound in 2009 and continuous escalation of land prices
was seen. The Group achieved considerable growth in sales in
2009, particularly in the second half of the year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(1) MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATING
ENVIRONMENT IN 2009 (Continued)

()

(i)

Nationwide (Continued)

Under the relatively loose monetary policies, property prices
soared at an unexpected fast pace in the second half of
2009 and drew the attention of the government. On 14th
December 2009, the State Council promulgated an instruction
of “Restraining Overheating Home Prices in Some Cities”. On
17th December 2009, “Circular on Further Strengthening the
Management over Balance of Land Transfer” was issued by
five Central Government departments including the Ministry
of Finance and the Ministry of Land to tighten up transaction
policies of land transfer. The Group aniticpates that a series
of relevant initiatives will be introduced subsequently by the
government in accordance with the changing situations and
expects that the market conditions in 2010 will be relatively
challenging when compared to those of 2009. Yet, “changes”
always imply new opportunities. With new policies setting
higher requirements on the Group’s operational control, the
Group will conform to the ever-changing situation and adopt
proactive and effective measures to ensure sustainable and

stable growth of its results.

Southern China

With Guangzhou City as its core in southern China, the Group
expands its business to neighbouring cities such as Huizhou,
Nanhai, Zhongshan and Huadu, and carries out project
developments and reserves premium land plots in central areas
and other areas of these cities. In 2009, approximately 36.5%

of the Group’s revenue was generated from southern China.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(1) MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATING (—-) —SEZAhETEBERKYE
ENVIRONMENT IN 2009 (Continued) RIBEE)
(ii) Southern China (Continued) (i) ERHESEE)

Since the reformation and opening up, the national economy
of Guangzhou City has sustained an average growth rate of
13% annually. During 2009, Guangzhou City achieved the
10% target of annual economic growth rate earlier than
expected. The regional GDP of Guangzhou City has always
maintained a stable upward trend. In 2009, the regional GNP
hit RMB908 billion, representing an increase of 11.4% from
last year. Disposal income per capita for urban residents was
RMB27,600, up 9.1% from last year. Guangzhou ranked third
among other major cities in terms of aggregate economic
output and managed to maintain a positive momentum. The
Sixteenth Asia Games in 2010 will offer golden opportunities
for the development of Guangzhou. The initiatives to improve
the city landscape for the sake of the Asia Games will provide
enormous support to the real estate development. In these
years, Guangzhou strongly reinforces the “Integration of
Guangzhou and Foshan” project, together with the rapid
construction of urban facilities such as subway and light rails
and the expansion of the city’s radius, will definitely bring new
opportunities to the real estate industry.

With the help of favourable policies, the property market of
Guangzhou showed impressive rebound in 2009. Average
transaction prices registered stable growth and commodity
housings in urban centre were sold for more than RMB10,000
per square metre on average, which exceeded the price level
in 2007. The Group maintained its position as a market leader
in terms of market share and prices.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(1) MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATING
ENVIRONMENT IN 2009 (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Southern China (Continued)

After three decades’ development, Shenzhen was apparently
constrained by its geographical area. As a natural extension of
Shenzhen and an important coastal city in the Pearl River Delta
region, Huizhou has a relatively strong transfer capability.
The execution of the “Outline of the Plan for the Reform and
Development of the Pearl River Delta Region” speeded up the
intergration of Shenzhen, Dongguan and Huizhou and led
to closer connection between Hong Kong and Macau. Urban
railway and transportation network in Huizhou was further
improved. The integration of Shenzhen, Dongguan and
Huizhou will facilitate regional development and cooperation
and provide new opportunities for the property sector of
Huizhou. The strategies of the Group adopted a few years ago
showed satisfactory results. Projects such as the Regal Riviera
Bay, Binhai City in Daya Bay and World Island were launched
one by one to cater to market demand. The revenue from
the sales of Huizhou projects recorded a major breakthrough

which exceeded the yearly revenue forecast by the Group.

Northern China

The current strategy of the Group in northern China is to
consider Beijing as its core, with both cities of Beijing and
Tianjin as the central development zones that extend to the
cities in the Huanbohai area. Thanks to the Group’s sound
foundation in northern China, around 30.7% of it's revenue

was generated from this region in 2009.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(1) MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATING () ZEENRFTEHERKEE

ENVIRONMENT IN 2009 (Continued) RIF(E)
(iii) Northern China (Continued) (i) FELXEFE)

According to the Beijing Statistical Information Net, regional BEBEILRAFEERT —F

GDP of Beijing in 2009 rose 10.1% to hit RMB1,186.59 billion,
while GDP per capita hit USD10,000 and disposal income
per capita of urban residents was RMB26,738, up 9.7%. The
overall national economy grew at a rapid pace.

As the national capital, a cosmopolitan and a renowned
cultural and historical city, Beijing attracts talents across a
wide spectrum of industries and its position as a core city for
national economic development was further strengthened.
The regular demand for property, coupled with the demand
to improve living standards and for investment purposes, the
property market of Beijing was feverish during 2009 with
growth in both transaction volume and price. Market of high-
end products was persistently robust. The Group’s No. 8
Xiaoyun Road project was particularly well received because of
its prominent concept, superb geographical location and high
performance-price ratio. Since the project was launched in
the middle of the year, the sales figures were impressive and
exceeded the initial sales target set at the beginning of the
year. The project ranked top in terms of the number of signed
contracts among all high-end projects in Beijing for several
consecutive months. Hopson Dreams World is a new project
launched in Beijing this year which creates a community for
elite golf lovers. Located at Yizhuang New Town, an area
of high investment value, the project offers well-developed
business and residential facilities with comprehensive area
planning. The first phase of residential units was well received
by personnel of the world’s top 500 enterprises and around
a thousand units were sold out immediately. The project
achieved single-day sales of over RMB800 million, which
marked a record in terms of single-day sales in the property
market of Beijing in 2009. The demand for property in Beijing
is expected to register stable growth amid the continuous
economic development of the capital city.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(1) MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATING () EZEAEFTEHERKEE
ENVIRONMENT IN 2009 (Continued) RE#E)
(iii) Northern China (Continued) (iii) FEEF(E)
Tianjin is an important city in the Huanbohai area and provides REBERED GRS EE B
an ideal environment for property sector owning to its - ZEREBERANEEER
preferable macro economic environment and faster economic REBRREMET » BEH
growth when compared to other cities. Along with the EfTERFERRERT —ER
development of Huanbohai area, Tianjin is expected to witness HHEETE - BERDEL
significant development in the coming years. The Group owns BRERER  KEMERKL
premium land bank located in prime areas in the city centre FHREERERE - KEEPL
which are of high profitability. In Baodi District of Tianjin, the HMEBFELERE  BEARR
Group adopted regional development strategy for its Jingjin B NRMIR - AR EEAEX
New Town project. More than 70% products launched were HEEIKEMARNREAMIER
sold in respective regions. The project ranked top among HEEDEFAEARE > BRID
all the best selling high-end properties in Tianjin in terms of HENSEEREERYE
transaction volume and sales price recently. F|70% A £ - ST HARK 2 2 ANAK
RERBIMILIERES HYER
HIERZH °
(iv) Eastern China (iv) EREE

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone was regarded by the
Group as an important hub for future business growth,
where Shanghai is the core city with Ningbo and Hangzhou
as neighbours. In 2009, about 32.8% of the Group's revenue

was generated from eastern China.
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PR ER & o

Shanghai Yuting Garden is an English-style villa project surrounded by natural rivers
FEMERRERANMIRENRARKFIEERER
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(1) MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATING
ENVIRONMENT IN 2009 (Continued)
(iv) Eastern China (Continued)

() SEEAEFTERERKE
BRR (@)
(iv) EREE(E)

The property market of Shanghai revitalised in 2009 following
the economy revival. Transaction volume of residential housing
hit record highs in five years and kept growing rapidly. Luxury
residential properties became investment hot spot in the
market. The coming 2010 World Expo will win international
recognition for Shanghai and generate considerable economic
benefits. With the construction of the Shanghai IFC and
Shanghai International Shipping Centre as approved by the
State Council, the macro-economy and infrastructure of
Shanghai are bound to benefit from these large-scale projects,
which will also fuel the rapid growth of various industries in
Shanghai.

Shanghai Statistics Net revealed that in 2009, the GDP of
Shanghai was RMB 1,490 billion, rose 8.2% from last year.
GDP per capita was over USD 11,000, while disposal income
per capita of urban residents was RMB28,838, up 8.1% from
last year. Shanghai is characterized by its export-oriented and

investment-driven economy.

The Group has successfully established its strategic foothold
in Shanghai. Projects such as Dongjiao Villa and Sheshan
Dongziyuan were popular among customers as high-end
properties are in line with the development of Shanghai. The
Group maintained its leading position in the villa market of
Shanghai in terms of transaction volume and average selling
price and remained the benchmark of Shanghai luxury villa
market. The strategy of launching high-end products was
proved to be an initial success. High-end properties, together
with other projects under the strategic planning, will continue

to fuel the expansion of the Group in Shanghai.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(2) PROSPECTS OF THE PRC PROPERTY SECTOR

Looking ahead to 2010, as the effect to economic development
brought about by the global financial crisis was alleviated, the
economy of the PRC will return to a stable growth track. The
Central Government will maintain its proactive fiscal policies and
moderately loose monetary policies in order to achieve its goal of
a fast yet steady growing economy. The PRC property market is
bound to boom in the coming years as a result of surging property
demand along with the improving macro-economy, relaxation
on policies controlling real estate industry and credit, growth in
residence income and the positive factors arose from urbanization.
The medium and long-term outlook of the real estate sector is

promising.

The national economy was gradually picking up and showing signs
of rebound. Expanding investments and encouraging spendings
remain the major mean of the Central Government to sustain
growth. Real estate industry plays a vital role in sustaining economic
growth, safeguarding livelihood and maintaining stability. Although
the government launched a series of policies at the end of 2009
to regulate the development of the real estate sector, property
development and investment together with spending on housing by
residents remain an important tool to facilitate stable growth of the
macro-economy. Meanwhile, it is expected that the development
of the real estate sector will follow the trend of “positive alterations
in supply structure, stable demand on residential housings and
maintenance of healthy level of property price”.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(3) PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP

2010 is a year vital for China to sustain growth momentum and
achieve steady revival of its economy. The Central Government
clearly demonstrated its support for end-users and homebuyers for
upgrading purposes. As domestic demand can never be boosted
overnight and external economies are recovering at a slow pace,
it is expected that domestic consumption of China in 2010 will be
maintained at a similar level to 2009. Total imports and exports will
gradually pick up and fixed assets investment, especially investment
in property development, will be the key in stimulating growth
of the macro-economy. The introduction of a number of macro
adjustment measures by the Central Government at the end of
2009 will be beneficial in bringing the real estate sector back to the
right track for rational development in 2010. The Group remains
prudently optimistic about the future development of the China real
estate sector.

The Group will persist in optimizing its corporate governance
structure and management system, and at the same time
maintaining a well-balanced product portfolio and striving for
diversification of its business. The Group will adopt “lead the
market” strategy, improve service content and create a “sincere,
responsible, cooperative and mutually beneficial” platform for
strategic partnership. The land bank strategy will remain prudent
and flexible with a target to achieve a steady growth in its results
and to reap satisfactory returns for the shareholders.
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A birdview of Hopson Golf Manor project in Huizhou
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(3) PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

Maintain the status as a market leader

The Group strives to be a leading developer engaged in quality
properties. In the future, the Group will strengthen the management
and quality control of its product by modifiying the development
flow, which includes design layout, material procurement,
construction supervision, sales and marketing, etc. Stylish and
unique projects will be developed to enhance the performance-price
ratio and consolidate our market leading role in terms of product

quality.
Improve product mix for business growth

The Group will maintain a business portfolio with residential
property sales as its focus and an appropriate portion in commercial
projects. The Group will deploy further effort on the development
of residential properties in first-tier cities in the Yangtze River Delta,
Huanbohai area and Pearl River Delta. An appropriate proportion
of premium hotels and investment properties will be maintained to
pursue a justified allocation of resources for short and long term
investments. The Group is able to enhance its resilience against
market risks and to secure a long-term and stable return in revenue

and property appreciation.

In line with the changes in the land market, the Group will develop
more high-end properties. The Group will also leverage on its
strong brand recognition and rich experience in high-end property
operations to improve product quality of existing projects and
enhance added value of products for higher profit returns.

The Group will adopt investment strategies which fit the Company’s
needs and pay moderate attention to sector or enterprises with

growth potential.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(3) PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP (Continued)

Pursue timely land bank replenishment

The Group will keep its prudent yet flexible land bank strategy
with an emphasis on the performance-price ratio of land plots. The
Group will acquire land plots with great appreciation potential in
first-tier cities of the Yangtze River Delta, Huanbohai area and Pearl
River Delta by phases and in a moderate manner so as to fulfill the
development needs for the next three to five years.

Enhance management efficiency and corporate quality

The Group will further strengthen its operational management,
improve management efficiency, simplify procedures and work
flow to upgrade execution capability and reinforce its mechanism in
achieving operation synergies, so as to keep corporate vitality and
competitiveness.

Facilitate strategic and operational cooperation

The Group will strengthen cooperation among different operation
divisions. Moreovers, cooperation with partners will be further
consolidated to achieve strategic synergy and realize its business
vision of “closer cooperation to create win-win result in the long
term”. The Group will join hands with other prominent partners and

develop quality properties at value for money price for its customers.

The Group will stick to its vision and philosophy — pursue mutual
benefit with integrity and innovation, and put extra effort to satisfy
its customers with quality products and bring sustainable and
considerable return for our investors.

CHU Mang Yee
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2010
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

Xue Hu R
Chief Executive Officer T BUAEE;

In face of the turbulent market conditions in 2009, the Group managed to
accomplish the annual target and realized a turnover of HK$11,225 million for
the year, thanks to its “stable yet aggressive, prudent yet flexible” operational
concept. The Group successfully fulfilled the commitment to its shareholders and

investors.

“ETNFEEEHRAZZINTSRE - URETKEN  FERERE NWEEBSNE
FEY - BRPFEEE112258 7 IRFNERFERRER - BEET THRRNREEN

FREE ©
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

ITHRE®RE

In face of the turbulent market conditions in 2009, the Group managed to ZEENFEEEYRZZ NSRS -
accomplish the annual target and realized a turnover of HK$11,225 million LAMTRRET AR - RIEFRAETE |2 iEE
for the year, thanks to its “stable yet aggressive, prudent yet flexible” DNERY  BREFEEF1225E8
operational concept. The Group successfully fulfilled the commitment to T ENERFEERAR  BERTTYH
its shareholders and investors. AR ER RN & & G o
(1) 2009 RESULTS OVERVIEW (—) —EENFXEHE

2009 Major results figures: —EENFEFEEEETROT

Year-On-Year

Results Figures mEEE == Eils
Turnover EEBA HK$ million 11,225 10,775 +4.2%
BEET
GFA completed FRNZTHEE sq.m. 949,294 1,707,739 44 4%
during the year FIK
(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (=) (%m0

Turnover —E VN
During the reporting period, the Group accurately forecasted WA - EERFE RIS TR
the upcoming market conditions and successfully seized market B NHPRENITRE S - BFRIED
opportunities with the help of its strong execution capability. The HHE - ERFRELE JRAIMAE
principle of “solid operations” together with the launch of proactive W - RETE ISR A W) & R
sales strategies enabled the Group to generate a turnover of EEBHELEWAI1225EBT 0 &
HK$11,225 million and the GFA delivered was 896,934 sq.m. for TX1EMIE86,934F F1 K »
the year.

Guangzhou Regal Riviera is located next to the Guangzhou TV Tower

AR E M ER BN ENKILT S
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Turnover (Continued)

In 2009, total GFA sold, amount of contracted sales and their
growth rate reached the expectations of the Group. In cities such as
Shanghai, Beijing, Tianjin and Huizhou, total GFA sold and amount
of contracted sales showed substantial growth when compared
with last year. In line with its strategic focus in first-tier cities and
gradual shift to high-end property market, the Group launched new
products in major prosperous cities such as Beijing and Shanghai.
There were seven new projects in total, which included the high-end
projects No. 8 Royal Park, Kylin Zone and Dreams World in Beijing,
the high-end projects Hopson Dongjiao Villa, Hopson Golf Mansion
and Hopson Yuting Garden in Shanghai and Hopson Golf Manor
in Huizhou. Most of these new projects are at prime location and
of high quality. With the help of the Company’s brand name and
effective sales strategy, outstanding sales were recorded.
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Huizhou Golf Manor
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) (=) EXKEREE)
Turnover (Continued) EEWAE)
The Group's high-end projects such as Beijing No. 8 Royal Park BRREEELR - LEFHRA
and Shanghai Hopson Dongjiao Villa, in particular, received high R E TR R R AL HIE E i
recognition from the market for the unique style and exquisite MEBE  BREASATHNERR
design, the pursuit for quality excellence and the comprehensive B 85X REMEEENR B
sales services. The projects established a good reputation and SEfEMTT HH AR 1E B iR W) S Th 5 7 K
achieved major breakthrough in product sales. BARBMES - HRIETHHR

ARy TRIFOAE - BRTEME
EHERRE -

Turnover by geographical locations: REEEID 2 EHEWA

2009 2008
—EEhF —EENF

HKS$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)

BEAT EEf5il(%) BEABTT EE1(%)

Southern China g [R I 4,094 37 5,295 49
Northern China bR 3,454 31 4,128 38
Eastern China HEH @ 05 3,677 32 1,352 13
Total = 11,225 100 10,775 100

Hopson Dongjiao Villa in Shanghai
LEMEERDAIE

SHAREMERAT —TIhEs® 25



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Turnover (Continued)

Turnover by business segments:

(Z) *BEEE)

EEWA(E)
BEBEID 2 EREBA ¢

2009 2008
—EBNF —EENF
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Business Segment EEER BEER b B1(%) BEATT EEBI(%)
Property development VISR 10,631 94 10,272 95
Property investment MERE 31 1 42 1
Property management MEERE 431 4 306 3
Hotel operations G 8 132 1 155 1
Total &t 11,225 100 10,775 100

Revenue from property sales was HK$10,631 million and income
from property management was HK$431 million. Property
investment and hotel operations contributed HK$31 million and

HK$132 million to the Group's revenue respectively.
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Beijing Regal Court
ERIKTHR
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Turnover (Continued)

Turnover by major projects:

(Z) *BEEE)
ERWBAE)

BEEEA

E:lbaprdt X UNE

2009 2008
—EBNF —EFENF
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Project Name BEER Ee5l(%) AEBT LEBI(%)
Beijing Regal Court IRHRIFR 1,705 15 1,611 15
Ningbo Hopson International City TR A A B 807 7 232 2
Shanghai Dongjiao Villa EBRBRIE 798 - -
Shanghai International Garden g5 ARBRIERE 795 7 - -
Guangzhou Gallopade Park BN EE =50
- South Court 738 7 62 1
Beijing Citta Eterna IRESEE 675 6 199
Guangzhou Regal Riviera BMERI TR 624 6 1,414 13
Huizhou Hushan Guoji Villa AL B 494 4 - -
Shanghai Hopson Town =g e 493 4 646 6
Guangzhou Huanan New City EIMNZERE T 482 4 553
Others Ef 3,614 33 6,058 56
Total = 11,225 100 10,775 100
Contracted sales by major projects: WXBEBED 2 AHNEE

2009 2008
—E2NF 2T NF
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Project Name BEBT EEB1(%) BEBIL LEAI(%)
Beijing No. 8 Royal Park bR E =S 2,787 16 - -
Beijing Regal Court ERIRIFH=R 1,460 9 1,125 11
Shanghai Dongjiao Villa EERBRIE 1,097 6 - -
Beijing Kylin Zone Iyt 981 6 - -
Beijing Dreams World db B it AT 980 6 - -
Shanghai International Garden g5 ERBREE 907 5 76 1
Shanghai Hopson Golf Mansion EEEERREAS 719 4 238 2
Guangzhou Pleasant View Garden BENERRE 708 4 699 7
Tianjin Jingjin New Town ROZ ORI 687 4 133 1
Shanghai Hopson Town EEEER 682 4 682 6
Others Hity 6,115 36 7,452 72
Total A&t 17,123 100 10,405 100
ALAREEERAT —ZEhEEH 27



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) (=) ¥BEEE)
Project Completion Volume IRExTIE
Completed Area in 2009: ZEENFRNTIEE

Ratio Ratio

EE51(%) EEB(%)

Southern China & 4 363,251 38 944,565 55
Northern China LR i 334,948 35 394,995 23
Eastern China R 251,095 27 368,179 22
Total &5t 949,294 100 1,707,739 100

Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore
REGEITLHR
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) (=) *BEREE)

Project Completion Volume (Continued) IRREIEE)
Projected Property Development Completion Schedule: TEET R E T T EAE

2010
Completed

Area

2011
Completed
Area

2012
Completed
Area

2013

and after
Completed
Area

—B-FF =B ZF-=F R A%

Project Name 55 L 55 LHEE 55 T TLIHEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)

(FHK) (FHK) (FHK) (F7XK)

Beijing Regal Court ERHIHS 6,392 - - 248,842
No. 8 Royal Park AETEHSN - 209,663 128,021 381,191
Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project JERETNEIRE 87,437 - - -
Beijing Desheng Building BB RE - 53,542 - -
Kylin Zone i1z 140,866 - - -
Dreams World AR 73,642 60,190 163,355 286,274
Yuhe Project EAIEE - - 10,000 -
Tongzhou Yongshun Project M KIEEE - - 37,110 297,087
Times Regal BRER - - - 136,032
Tianjin Jingjin New Town RO TR 230,851 334,901 416,204 2,438,608
Tianjin Hopson International Tower  KEA& 4 BB AE - - - 134,550
Tianjin Hopson International REGEEBAE - - - 137,120

Mansion
Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore RNEGETINT = 27,834 20,700 102,217 300,446
Shanxi Taiyuan Tongye Project Gy NG TEIE]= - - - 333,666
Qinhuangdao Dibai Project REEMFIER - 58,654 13,639 826,933
Shanghai Hopson Town EEEEEF 114,025 48,470 - 44,770
Hopson Golf Mansion EEEBREARE 57,949 - - -
Sheshan Dongziyuan RILREE 51,560 - - 54,879
Shanghai International Garden EEEERRER 8,991 - - -
Hopson Dongjiao Villa AHERRIE 37,847 - - -
Hopson Yuting Garden A TR 21,976 70,408 - -
Hopson International Plaza AHEBBRES - - 353,300 -
Haiyuntian Project BEXIEHE - 53,357 - -
Hangzhou Technology Digital Plaza AN EH: BI5E 5 92,418 - - -
Project HAH
LAREEERAT —2EhEEHR 29
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(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Project Completion Volume (Continued)

Projected Property Development Completion Schedule: (Continued)

Project Name

2010
Completed
Area

—E-EF
TIEE
(sq.m.)
(F5%)

(=) RBERE =)
TREIE&4H)
B ERB T TEE - (4)

2011
Completed
Area

—E——fF
5 LHEE
(sq.m.)
(F7K)

2012
Completed
Area

—E——F
TIHEE
(sq.m.)
(77 K)

2013

and after

Completed

Area
—E—=

RO#

T LH&

(sq.m.)

(FHK)

Ningbo Hopson International City 28§ & A4 BIFR I - 129,235 - 277,837
Hangzhou Bay Project MEIER 50,000 150,000 100,000 2,431,962
Guangzhou Gallopade Park BN EE =T E - - - 439,529
Pleasant View Garden iR 22 R 46,343 - 50,713 556,381
Huanan New City ERIFTIN 35,446 22,347 41,444 1,862,304
Gallopade Park-South Court K SNl 15,479 32,679 - 92,637
Guangzhou Regal Riviera BMIRIFER - - - 805,958
Yijing Huayuan BsED 38,253 - 19,549 -
Yunshan Xijing ELWES 29,227 - - -
Regal Villa ERILE 38,078 30,000 29,791 -
Junjing Bay EsE 49,683 175,347 30,000 384,298
Guangzhou Jiahe Commercial City B/ 2 MR 2EH - - 78,499 160,419
Hopson Yujing Mid-level BEMSE¥I - 30,000 30,000 324,510
Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project  E/MNLEEHER - - - 193,513
Guangzhou Nam Fong Garden BMmEEEEEE - - 103,151 -
Project
Huizhou Hushan Guoji FMH L B 89,215 10,419 50,000 1,191,380
Huizhou Golf Manor ABESBREE 43,820 - 105,365 2,052,648
Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay BMHRE 121,187 72,597 32,919 296,798
Hopson International New City B G A BRI 8,158 - - 972,663
Wangxiangying Project BEEIEE - - - 1,383,667
Xiangshuihe Project ZIKMIAER 3,100 91,366 66,083 1,989,451
Houzaiwan Project WA EIE 8 40,703 152,656 151,682 1,197,170
Zhongshan Regal Court FILFER 39,174 66,612 67,604 -
Zhongshan Dongkeng Project L EYIER - - - 537,257
Zhongshan Rainbow Project LR IE E - - - 479,499
Hyatt Regency Jingjin City ORI 55,133 - - -
Total R 1,654,787 1,873,143 2,180,646 23,250,279
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(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) (=) EXKEREE)
Land Bank TS
To sustain stable and persistent growth of its business, the Group WEHAN - BT REEERIFE BT
complied with its prudent principle and acquired land plots with WEBERETR  SEKREEET
gross floor area of 6.56 million sq.m. during the reporting period. B R A 378 13 - REMIE H6568
By the end of 2009, total land bank of the Group was 30.2 million FHK e ZZZTNER  KEHER
sq.m. + b B TETEA3,0208 F 5K °
The following is the new land that the acquisitions have been ZEZNF TR EIIE LI AN
completed in 2009: I
Group’s Gross Saleable
Name of Project interests Location of Project Floor Area Area
rEH A
HEER 2R H A i BEEE SHEHE
(sg.m.) (sg.m.)
(FHAK)  (CFHK)
Huizhou Daya Bay Xiangshuihe Project 100% Xiangshuihe South, West side of Daya Bay, 2,150,000 2,150,000
BINKRGEEKIER Huizhou
BINAR BT R BN R AR
Huizhou Daya Bay Houzaiwan Project 100% Houzaiwan, Aotou, Daya Bay Area, Huizhou 1,542,212 1,542,212
BINARG SR EER BINA SRR
Beijing Times Regal Project 100% Xin Tian Jia Yuan South Zone, No. 21, 136,032 136,032
ERERFRIER West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing
I REBEARER2IRAAZERRE
Ningbo Hangzhou Bay Project 100% Northwestern region of Hangzhou Bay 2,731,962 2,731,962
ERMNEER New District, Cixi, Ningbo

BERAR MM EHR AR 1L 5 R 58

Total 6,560,206 6,560,206

A
(=)

Xiangshuihe Project in Huizhou
BMEKOTIER

SHAREEERAT —TBhEFHR 3
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(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) (=) ¥%EEE)
Land Bank (Continued) TibfEE(E)
Land acquisition contracts signed but the acquisitions were not EEZNWIELIHTEERN_ZZTN
completed by end of 2009: FFEAITTH :
Group’s Gross Saleable
Name of Project interests Location of Project Floor Area Area
r&E ] it
HEE® 2R H A BEEERE HEER
(sg.m.) (sg.m.)
(F5K)  (FFK)
Huizhou Xiao Jin Kou Project 100% Bai Shi Village, Xiao Jin Kou Street, Huizhou 632,199 632,199
e OER BNTEIH /N O GERER
BAEREA
Total 632,199 632,199
ast
Usage and Location AZRBE

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AHEEER (BB HK)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai

= =M b= P- b
Residential F= 5.48* 8.65 3.06 3.77 2.68 0.35 23.99
Shopping arcade P ## 0.71* 0.23 0.31 0.07 0.42 0.02 1.76
Office F/NES 0.19 - 0.27 0.01 0.11 - 0.58
Car parks 1285 1.03* 1.26 0.29 0.02 0.65 0.04 3.29
Hotels B 0.03 0.1 0.29 0.15 - - 0.58
Total 45T 7.44 10.25 4.22 4.02 3.86 0.41 30.20
*  See note (6) on page 35 of the annual report. * RFRFEISENEES)

Hyatt Regency Jingjin City
FORFH LGB
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(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) (Z) £XEREE)
Land Bank (Continued) T bR ()
Development Status and Location BRERIEREE

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)

AHEEER (BEFAEK)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai Ningbo

BEM =M kR P-4 Lt )R

Completed BEIEK 0.49 0.13 0.23 0.26 0.13 - 1.24
properties

Properties under ~ EEFRYIE 0.98 0.51 0.97 0.41 0.48 0.23 3.58
development

Properties to be  FFEEEYIZE 5.97* 9.61 3.02 3.35 3.25 0.18 25.38
developed

Total “aEt 7.44 10.25 4.22 4.02 3.86 0.41 30.20

Development Status and Usage BERMARARAR

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)

AHEEER (BEFHEXK)

Shopping Car

Residential arcade Office parks Hotels

FE i WAE EEi5 B E
Completed properties BRI EES 0.35 0.33 0.12 0.28 0.16 1.24
Properties under development ERAME 2.54 0.19 0.25 0.48 0.12 358
Properties to be developed FEREMZE 21.10* 1.24% 0.21 2.53* 0.30 25.38
Total HBEr 23.99 1.76 0.58 3.29 0.58 30.20

*  See note (6) on page 35 of the annual report. *  BEIREISE N EE6)

Shanghai Sheshan Dongziyuan
EBRLERE
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(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Land Bank (Continued)
Title Status and Location

(=) RBERE =)
i ()
Fi B AR R %t B

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AEHEEE (BEFHK)

Total
At

Huizhou
M

Guangzhou

B

Beijing?”
IR

Tianjin

KE

Shanghai®
Lige

Ningbo
B

Land use rights certificates BEETIHERE 0.82 1.85 1.28 0.41 0.67 0.41 5.44
and construction works RERIig
planning permits obtained REFTAEO

Land use rights certificates BERELFERE 2.32 3.63 133 0.93 0.11 - 8.32
obtained but without BRIF
construction works BRIERE
planning permits @ FraEe

Construction land use EEEER MM 173 1.24 0.76 - - - 3.73
planning permits B AT EEe))
obtained ®®

Grant of major approvals BREEEHX 2.57 3.53 0.85 2.68 3.08 - 7N
and certificates not REEZ
yet obtained “©©) fiwee

Total wat 7.44 10.25 4.22 4.02 3.86 0.41 30.20

Notes: i

(1) Relevant land use rights certificates and construction works planning (1) BESRE@ENTMERIRERT
permits have been granted. T2 EIFFATE o

(2)  Relevant land use rights certificates have been granted while the (2) EDERAFENITHMERZEEBZ
appertaining construction works planning permits have not yet been R TR EIFT Al B AREUS o
obtained.

(3)  Relevant construction land use planning permits have been granted. () BEERABEOERMIMRETA
However, the land use rights certificates have not yet been obtained oo A - MABSE B L
and will only be secured upon execution of the relevant land transfer AR MEALMERERSERE
contracts and payment of land premium. TriEEER RN BEE T

ERREUS -

(4)  Only upon completion of the land grant procedures (e.g. obtainment 4) THERARERTRLHRERR
of the construction land use planning permits, and the execution of (RS 5 AR IR AT 38 BT T
land transfer contracts) and the payment of the appertaining land THEEEA R KX AR E
premium will the land use rights certificates be obtained. ©ZIETT ARG -

(5)  For payment status of land premium, please refer to notes 22 and 40 (5) TiuHESzARRFL2HIRE

to the financial statements.

ME22 5240 °
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(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Land Bank (Continued)
Title Status and Location (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(6)

The Group has established a sino-foreign co-operative joint venture
in the PRC for the development and construction of residential
commercial properties of Huanan New City on a site of approximately
3,000 mu/Chinese acres in Panyu of Guangdong Province, among
which approximately 2,000 mu/Chinese acres were contracted but
have not yet been transferred to the Group. Huanan New City is
currently under various stages of development. In mid-2007, the
Urban Planning Bureau of Guangzhou City ordered to revoke the
construction land use planning permit obtained for a portion of 1,500
mu/Chinese acres (approximately 1,297,500 sg.m.) of saleable area
of Huanan New City, reinstating the user thereof from residential-
commercial properties to affordable housing. The land user has
re-applied to the Land and Housing Management Authority of
Guangzhou and the Land and Resources Department of Guangdong
Province to reinstate the user to residential commercial properties.
Such application has currently been submitted for approval by a higher
government bureau and is pending for review.

Including Dalian and Shanxi Taiyuan.

Including Hangzhou.

(=) RBERE =)
T ()
Fi AR Tt B (42)

BRE - ()

(6)

AEBMERFPEBILFIEEEE
E UREREAEMNTESER—
893,000 (E A 4952,0008 2 51
MRS EARER) 2k E 3
BREREZEEENN2EEEFTAD
¥ EEFBRBEERERZE
fEPEER - M—TZ-LFhE - EIN
TR MRS B TS RBEERTNT
SHEMTEA1,50080(491,297,500F
JK) B R T 3b 2 2 A% A AR B AT
F o RS ETERERERR
BEERZEEHEFAME - T1
ERAEEBRAEMNME L &R
FEEEBEREXHRFE - LIREEA
ERETEMPAYE BHEER
B ATE A £ — SR PP S R
B EESEEZ -

BRERNERUARR -

BN -

Guangzhou Regal Riviera Hotel

BEINIROT % OB IS

BEAREEARAT
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(3) PRINCIPAL BUSINESS STRATEGIES IN 2010

Considerable growth in operating results

In view of the recent macro policies changes, the Group has
adopted relatively proactive development strategies in 2010. The
Group has abundant new supplies of property units in Beijing,
Shanghai, Guangzhou and Eastern Guangzhou. It is foreseeable
that the projected completion area of 1.65 million sgq.m. in 2010,
together with the inventory brought forward from 2009, will secure
a significant growth in sales in 2010 when compared with that of
2009.

Build a stronger brand of Hopson

The Group will devote continuous efforts on overall brand building
and management. The vision, strategies and corporate culture of the
Group will penetrate into its products’ style and quality and establish
a new benchmark in the market. Our popularity, reputation and
customer loyalty will be further enhanced.

Operate with solid financial position

In 2010, the Group will operate with solid financial position,
strengthen its financial management, and at the same time integrate
its existing resources and tap additional financing channels. The
Group will also speed up sales of properties, improve liquidity and
enhance production efficiency so as to secure more cash inflow and
improve its ability in risk management with an aim to maintain a

stable and sustainable business development.

(2) ZE-ZFQFTBENEER

& & = HE
REXFERABRAER
—E-TF  £EIEEABREER
el IR AEGN RS
B - SfEEdL R« B8 EINREM
RREEE TR EEESHET
W T —EFBEARIHEEI65S
FHK  MEZZEEAFREEE
B EH T -EFEESEHEEEK
EZTTNFEM LERRKIEER
ﬂ °

MIRA & BT SRR

E R A BRRNR R REE
BANE - HREORTS - B
FR REEENRE - TEGHE
BERAKRERKERRHK
TR STRHT ORI - (TR — 5
RARERIEONLE  EBEAB
B -

RRyKEe

—T-FF  RESRSRENME
R BEIRRMBERENE B
EAREER MRBMEEE R
MRFERE RSB HEKE
RARAEL M - £ HEaEE
BB HMBEEREES - EMR
EEEREEERSEERR
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(3) PRINCIPAL BUSINESS STRATEGIES IN 2010 (Continued)

Improve product quality and portfolio

In view of the soaring land prices, the Group will increase the
proportion of high-end properties in its portfolio with the help of its
renowned brand name and extensive experience in the construction
and design of high-end projects. Through this adjustment of product
mix, the Group will be able to reap better profit margin.

The Group is in pursuit of continuous quality improvement and
strives to provide customers with safe and exquisite homes. In 2010,
the Group will further improve construction work management
and quality control in order to consolidate its market leading role in

terms of overall construction quality.

Enhance support services and performance price ratio

The Group will enrich its sales services by providing one-stop
service which will include decoration and renovation, furniture
and adornment, electrical appliances and daily necessities. Home
owners will enjoy convenient and comfortable lives and our product
will have a higher performance price ratio. The Group will devote
more efforts in the management and development of its property
management companies and to provide premium products and

comprehensive services to its clients.

Pursue timely land bank replenishment

In 2010, the Group will closely monitor the land market and
seek premium land resources that are suitable for the strategic
development of the Company. To meet the development needs
in the coming three to five years, the Group will stick to the
fundamental principle of “acquiring land resources according to
sales progress” and acquire land plots with great potential and
higher profitability in first-tier cities such as Beijing, Shanghai and
Guangzhou through various means such as open tender or merger

and acquisition.

(2) ZE-ZFQFTENEER

&R LBk (7)
AREEMGR TIRAERE

=

B e LIS ERTET 2N E L -

SEBHEEZERRED BRI
MERE RENEELR  E—F
FAREMERE  BASWERLE -
NESEERREZM -

REEEBEERIREREENT
BTiRTT - REBERHEROYE B
mE - —?*?EEEWH%%%M
BIRESEE B SELEER
O %%H&I{’Eﬁf hET
BEE2HEINTERATIKE -

BICEMBEERYE  EAEMM
Lt
SEARKEE NRITERTTHREA
BERETIRHBBEMHEE
RIMECED - BEREEZEERAME
AR BRI —ub= RS - EEE
EREFIRMHFEEERN  E— TR
EmEEL - RSESMAEEEY
ERANBRANE » MARBEMERF)
MERE  AEPRHURKIFNEMRNR
BHIRT -

Sy kA

—T-TE . RESESTYRIL
WITBEI(L - SHEE AR F B
EROEETHER - WIREAFH
BEZETNA UEBHAAIRER
[REI - BEAEILR - 8 EMNE—
AR T IE 1S — L R BB AIREE K
BFATR RN HIEE - A%
BARK=Z=RFNHERFFR -

PAN
=

HEIREMAERAT —BBAFFHR 3/
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(4)

(5)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is commited to improving its corporate governance
and transparency and at the same time enhance the shareholders’
interests. During the period, the management and respective
committees continued to operate in accordance with the “Corporate
Governance Practices” under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Details of the corporate governance report of the Group is set out

on pages 104 to 112 of the annual report of the year.

AWARDS

During the reporting period, the Group was keen to boost its brand
image and value. The year was designated as “a year of quality
living”, striving for quality improvement and value-added living.
In the “Research Results of 2009 TOP 10 Listed PRC Developers”
published by the TOP 10 Research Team on PRC Developers, the
Company was among the top 3 in “2009 TOP 10 HK-listed PRC
Developers in terms of overall strength”, “2009 TOP 10 HK-listed
PRC Developers in terms of wealth creation capability” and “TOP 10
out of Top 100 PRC Developers in terms of overall strength”. The
Company also ranked top in “2008 TOP 10 PRC Mixed Ownership
Property Enterprises in terms of brand value”. At the same time,
the Company was awarded the “2009 TOP 20 PRC Developers in
terms of brand value” by the China Real Estate Business, and was
accredited as TOP 20 Guangdong Developers in terms of credibility
by People’s Daily and the four biggest state-owned banks.

(1)

(&)

ERER
AEBBEBIONTEH R ERER
K IRREBIERE - BRAERT
mHREE(E - MR EELEERE
BREBEEZBRYRBER
SERARESR EMHRAI 2R
EVRRRTANDEEEE -

HaR

AEBFHPZ DEETRREFHNA
FIWRE104E112E -

g
W EEEGI IR - £EE
Blea—E£ERERAFIFEE
BRIRRBRARBRERANREE
Bl FREFEHMETOPIOH T4 |
A HIC2009F Bl E i ETH A A
TOP10RFZEAN R - A &1 2009
FREAEEE LMEEARGAE
JITOP10 ] 8 AT =& A [ 2009 7 B K
BETES_E TR E A A8 = Bl iE AL
TOP10JMIRI =4 - WESTOPHIZAR
BYHHPEEHERRDEGEE
TOP10RT = + [2008F ElE Hh E R
SFTAHIREREEETOP10IME—
%o FR - NEES T PEEMER
M 2009F € R B E AR M
FEEE2098 ]+ % AR B3AH AR
BRITHBERMEE(E20%4 -

H

Wbl ¢

Night view of Times Regal in Beijing
ERERFRER
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(6) INCLUSION IN THE MORGAN STANLEY CAPITAL
INTERNATIONAL (“MSCI”) CHINA INDEX
In August 2009, our shares have been included in the MSCI China
Index as one of the index constituents. It reflected our works in the

past are recognised internationally.

(7) APPRECIATION
I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our management
and all staff members for their commitments and dedications to the

Group.

Xue Hu
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2010

(7X) B AEER LT 7 FEARERH
Bl 15 2(MSCI)
RoZTAENA - AEARBHA
EERR T R ABBE B RS - KA
BBRHBRL —  REAEEEBE
HE N ZEBRRE

(t) =@

AANERHERERZMLE TAHAAH
BB NIRRT

TTIECAEE
2255

BR —E-TF=A=-+=H

No.8 Royal Park in Beijing
R IERE) & £ B E R8T
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PROPERTY PROFILE

HUANBOHAI economiC ZONE ECONOMIC ZONE
RE EBeam T

Shanghai L&
18. Hopson Town

BEEF
19. Hopson Golf Mansion
BESERAE
20. Sheshan Dongziyuan
RIIREE
21. Hopson Lantern Villa
BEREER
22. International Garden
BEBREE
23. Hopson Dongjiao Villa
BERMAIE
24. Hopson Yuting Garden
BEMEER
25. Hopson International Plaza
BHEERES
9. Yuhe Project 26. Haiyuntian Project
EAIEH BEXRIER
10. Tongzhou Yongshun Project
N KIEEE Hangzhou # Ml
11. Times Regal 27. Hangzhou Technology Digital Plaza
RAHESR MMNR SIS ESEE
Tianjin X Ningbo Z &
12. Jingjin New Town 28. Hopson International City
SURETH S4B
13. Tianjin Hopson International Tower 29. Hangzhou Bay Project
REEEBIBRKRE BN B
14. Tianjin Hopson International Mansion
REEEEBRDE
Dalian A3
15. Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore
REEHETLFS

Taiyuan A&
16. Shanxi Taiyuan Tongye Project
GG E SN

Qinhuangdao =28
17. Qinhuangdao Dibai Project
ZEBHEFIRE



PROPERTY PROFILE
S E LM

PEARL RIVER DELTA economic zoNE
L= AMens

Huanbohai
Economic Zone

R

Yangtze River Delta
Economic Zone

RIZAMgERE

51. Daya
j(EE\

Pearl River Delta
Economic Zone

Zhongshan A (L
52. Regal Court

FR KR=AgEE
53. Zhongs

ETIES
54. Zhongshan

FILR AR




BEING b=

Beijing
iz

SIS

Dongsishitiao %@
=+ i 3
IS
11
Chaowainan Street +m<
EASNEI T 2
9 i
g
North Forth _E
Ring East I}
b R R B Ritan Park B §
HEAR g
Beijing Youyi Shop B
______ KRB IE <
Jianguomenwaida.St.
EBIPIIN K

Tonghui River

§ Guanggqumenwaida St.
&R PISN R i .

Jingsong Road
PIREK

N. Chaoyang Road
LEO Bl

Chaoyang District

Nan Mofang Road f £ = #&

Chaoyang Park
HAG R E

Chaoyang Road
A F5 8%

HEE
Jianguo Road ff

peEiliy

B

Ps S =

Guangqu Road J& £ &

——— e

1. Beijing Regal Court
ERKIFR

2. Citta Eterna
#ESRE

3. Hopson International Garden
BHEERIEE

4, No. 8 Royal Park
BHEE ERKER

REAGEIAAEK23

i

i (

BMNE ) 4
%

5. Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project 9.

EREAXERR
6. Beijing Desheng Building

EREBERNE
7. Kylin Zone
BB i 4t
8. Dreams World
A

Beijing Regal Court tREIF R
23, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)

)

Yuhe Project
EAIEHE

10.  Tongzhou Yongshun Project

BN K IEIE B

11.  Times Regal
(SRR

Sg.m.
BExEL Construction completed 125,422
R TEETT Construction to be completed
o —_ T T4 in 2010 6,392
s —T—=FHE in 2013 and after 248,842
R-_ZEZNEFE+_H Land bank as at
=t—HZ 31st December 2009 380,656
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107, Chaoyang Bei Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)

Z Citta Eterna £EEE
kﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%kﬁmmﬂ%ﬁmmMé>

¥ 755k
Sg.m.
B Construction completed 32,208
R=ZZTEZNF+=A Land bank as at
= t+t—BztiFEE 31st December 2009 32,208
Hopson International Garden &4%EIFETEE
31, Guanggumenwaida Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
bR & ERPIINAHT315% (FE B 100% %)
F 7oK
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 6,788
R-ZEZNF+_-A Land bank as at
= t—BHBzLtHFE 31st December 2009 6,788
No. 8 Royal Park &4 EZHK85
8, Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (80% owned)
bR EARG [ B B85 (HH80% 4 )
Sg.m.
BRATERTT Construction to be completed
o« — T ——1F in 2011 209,663
e — T —— 4 in 2012 128,021
o —E—=FPLE in 2013 and after 381,191
R-ZEZNE+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—RzLtEE 31st December 2009 718,875
Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project 1t XZEI1EE
No. D4 Dongsi Redevelopment Area, Dongcheng District, Beijing (88.56% owned)
it?%ﬁ@%féﬂ&d\@m@ﬁ(%ﬁ% 56% &7 )
' 753k
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 53,906
1P LA T B Al 58 T Construction to be completed
s _ T T in 2010 87,437
R-ZZEZNF+_=A Land bank as at
=Et+t—Bziuf#E 31st December 2009 141,343
AEAIREEERAT —ZEAFER 43



Beijing Desheng Building 1tZ@EB K=
De Wai Guan Xiang, Xicheng District, Beijing (100% owned)
e PR RN NE e (B 100% 15 )

Dreams World 1ttt 524}
500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1
b

F 7oK
Sg.m.
! B IATERBTI Construction to be completed
s T ——14F in 2011 53,542
R-ZEZNFE+_-A Land bank as at
=t—Hz TG 31st December 2009 53,542
Kylin Zone [t
Interchange of Wanjing Street and Futong Xida Street, Wangjing, Beijing (100% owned)
IEREREBAAFMERERELR (HEHF100% )
F oK
Sg.m.
BRATERTT Construction to be completed
o — T T 4F in 2010 140,866
RZZEZEAF+ZH Land bank as at
—+t—BztHFEE 31st December 2009 140,866

, Majugiao, Majugiao Town, Liangshui River south, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)

B R TR /KON 7 55 508 #5501 SR B R 500K (BB 100 %424 )

Yuhe Project EATEH

bR F A SRS E AR 1 1%@%(%&%100%%&)

Plot 11, Southern District of Yuhe Wenbao Area, Dongcheng District, Beijing (100% owned)

750K
Sg.m.
o SR TEB T Construction to be completed
| o —_ T T4 in 2010 73,642
i o — T —— 14 in 2011 60,190
o —E—— 4 in 2012 163,355
o —_ T ——FkAE in 2013 and after 286,274
R-ZEZNF+ A Land bank as at
=+— Bz thfEE 31st December 2009 583,461
50K
Sg.m.
BRATERTI Construction to be completed
o — T —_ 4 in 2012 10,000
RZZEZNF+_A Land bank as at
=t—HztifEE 31st December 2009 10,000
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Tongzhou Yongshun Project EMKIEIEE

Qiaozhuang Village, Yongshun Town, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)
& K B SERB 44 (BB 100% %)
TN iy RSP SCEE .

ol

G F 755K
Sg.m.
HE A LA T Bl 52 T Construction to be completed
o — T —_ & in 2012 37,110
o —_ T ——FAR in 2013 and after 297,087
R-ZEZNF+_-A Land bank as at
= t—BHBzLtHFE 31st December 2009 334,197
Times Regal BFF=
Xin Tian Jia Yuan South Zone, No. 21, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
IR R AR ERK2157 5 Rz B MR (JEF100%#E5)
77K
Sg.m.
BRI TERTT Construction to be completed
s —T—Z—FKUE in 2013 and after 136,032
RZZEZNFE+=A Land bank as at
=t—BziuREE 31st December 2009 136,032

LA
ALY
SRR

{

TR R AR R

tERsEEEEE

ALY _'_:_

AL

VY
SRR
e

LAY

;'.:Tﬁ'-’i

LARR

VOOAAR KA

AL AR
AR

- =

Kylin Zone
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TIANJIN K)Z
e

Beijing
=

Baodi District
I &
HiR =

Tianjin

RE

Heping District
AN

Nankai District
A B (&

12. Jingjin New Town
O F

13. Tianjin Hopson International Tower
REEEBBRE

14. Tianjin Hopson International Mansion
REALEBBRAS

Jingjin New Town ZU23T
1, Zhujiang South Road, Zhouliangzhuang Town, Baodi District, Tianjin (92.3% owned)
REEREFRFEN TR 5% (HH92.3% )

5K
Sg.m.
BExEL Construction completed 147,704
HEFA LA T B RS 72 T Construction to be completed
s _T—EF in 2010 230,851
o —_T——14F in 2011 334,901
o T — 4 in 2012 416,204
e —T——HFKIE in 2013 and after 2,438,608
RZEBEENFE+=A Land bank as at
=t—Rzti#E 31st December 2009 3,568,268
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Tianjin Hopson International Tower XKZE&4EIRKE
Interchange of Fuan Main Street and Xingan Road, Heping District, Tianjin (at Beian Bridge) (98.9% owned)
KEFMFEBELAFTEBLES O LEEE) (HEE8.9%HE)

0K
Sg.m.
BRI TERTT Construction to be completed
e _T—=FKiik in 2013 and after 134,550
R-ZEZNF+ -8 Land bank as at
—t+t—BztifFEE 31st December 2009 134,550
Tianjin Hopson International Mansion XE&4ERAE
1 4 Interchange of Weijin South Road and Shuishang North Road, Nankai District, Tianjin (100% owned)
REFERRADER K FIEREA A (FH 100% 5 )
75 0K
Sg.m.
BRI TERTEL Construction to be completed
e _T—=FkiBik in 2013 and after 137,120
R-ZEZNF+ -4 Land bank as at
137,120

=t+—H2ZztHFEE 31st December 2009

L ~
QPSRN VWA ARG

Jingjin New Town

TR
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DALIAN X3

Bo Hai

#Dalian City Centre

KB E
Huang Hai
=08
15. Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore
RKESETL®S
Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore KE&4TILFER
808, Yanbei Road, Tieshan Town, Lushunkou District, Dalian (100% owned)
AE I8 M [ 2 L L) SHAE L B 8085k (#E B 100% 44 )
F 5K
Sg.m.
2w Construction completed 1,585
B TNEE L Construction to be completed
FE o —_ T —TF in 2010 27,834
W o — T — —F in 2011 20,700
o« - T ——&F in 2012 102,217
o« —E— =K AE in 2013 and after 300,446
| RZZTTNF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztiRFEE 31st December 2009 452,782
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TAIYUAN XJR

=
R Provincial Government
< BB
=
S Municipal Government
[t il S
M
=g
>
«Q =
s e
o vl
C 3
g o
2 5
=
S 3
= 3
@ R
P = 4
g
o — Yingpan Street
# s B
=\ I o
) %8
B
Changfeng Street & Bl #7
Shanxi University
N L7 A
Xuefu Street 2 fiJ i

16. Shanxi Taiyuan Tongye Project
IR RIAEIE B

Shanxi Taiyuan Tongye Project 17 AR #HI<1EH

West of Bingzhou Road, East of Tiyu Road and North of Eryingpan Street, Taiyuan, Shanxi (100% owned)
RIRFMBELATT - BBAEIAE - Z&BEUIL (B 100%#E%)

F 5K
Sg.m.

B IATERTI Construction to be completed

o« — T —=fHFFH % in 2013 and after 333,666

R-_ZEENF+ A Land bank as at

=t+t—HztithFEE 31st December 2009 333,666
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QINHUANGDAO ZEE

—w/
N7

i
/

17. Qinhuangdao Dibai Project
REBAEFEIEA

Qinhuangdao Dibai Project ZE5#FFIER

BEREMILE - HEME RN (HAS1%Eam)

Intersection of Hebei and Liaoning Provinces, Northwestern coast of Liaodong Bay (51% owned)

F oK
Sg.m.
BRATERTI Construction to be completed
o —_ T ——14 2011 58,654
® °— T - 2012 13,639
" e T —=FE Ik in 2013 and after 826,933
N—_EZNFE+_HA Land bank as at
=t+—HztHEE 31st December 2009 899,226

50 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



SHANGHAI t7&

Hongkou District\
TO&E N
|
| Yangpu District
“ 158 &
\
(e
e
O
a‘:?‘?@‘f&
: A i3
Changning District

Shanghai Honggiao International Airport
24 1 21 :
. . LB BB %S

Pudong New District
B BT [

¥ Shanghai Civil Aviation Airport
FERMBEEKS

%’y%%%

Sheshan
el

18. Hopson Town 23. Hopson Dongjiao Villa
a B HERZBRHIE

19. Hopson Golf Mansion 24. Hopson Yuting Garden
EERBBREARE B EHEE

20. Sheshan Dongziyuan 25. Hopson International Plaza
RILREE & E BB ES

21. Hopson Lantern Villa 26. Haiyuntian Project
BEREE BEXRIAR

22. International Garden
BEERIEE

Hopson Town &44HF
518, Anning Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EERTTRZZERS5185% (HEA 100% %)
=\ %Y .
TN A

=¥

F 5K
Sg.m.
{ BT Construction completed 19,303
| BRATHRETT Construction to be completed
« —E—TiE in 2010 114,025
« - E—— £ in2011 48,470
e —T—=FF A% in 2013 and after 44,770
R_EBEZNFE+ A Land bank as at
=t+—BztihFEE 31st December 2009 226,568
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Hopson Golf Mansion &4£SBANE
1095, Jiangpu Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EEEEEI TS 109555 (A 100% i)

Sheshan Dongziyuan “RILERERE

EEALERREEBRRMAIE11895% (A 100%H#25)

1189, Linhu Road, Shanghai Sheshan National Holiday Resort, Shanghai (100% owned)

Hopson Lantern Villa &4BAEE

PEEBE ST ELIK19975F (B 100% )

199, Zhenle Road, Zhaoxiang New City, Qingpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)

International Garden &4%BIEIEE

EENTIERSREEE12905k (A4 %HER)

1290, East Changxing Road, Dongjing, Songjiang District, Shanghai (94% owned)

750K
Sg.m.
R TR ST Construction to be completed
s —_T—TF in 2010 57,949
R-ZEZNFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztHEE 31st December 2009 57,949
F 5K
Sg.m.
- Bl Construction completed 11,648
BRATERTI Construction to be completed
s _E—ZF in 2010 51,560
o —ET——F & in 2013 and after 54,879
R-ZEENE+=A Land bank as at
=t—BZtuHE 31st December 2009 118,087
F 5K
Sg.m.
Construction completed 5,298
TEhFE+_-A Land bank as at
Hz Tt 31st December 2009 5,298
F 5K
Sg.m.
BExEL Construction completed 50,145
BRATERTI Construction to be completed
s —T—TF in 2010 8,991
R-_ZEZNF+_HA Land bank as at
=t—Bztuf#E 31st December 2009 59,136
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Hopson Dongjiao Villa &4 R 2B5HIZE
7,699 Nong, Cuibai Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai (100% owned)
R HTR 2RI 6997 757 (B 100% 125 )

7Ok
Sg.m.
_ B®EI Construction completed 10,291
T BN TITREZI Construction to be completed
{ « —T—TF in 2010 37,847
' R-ZEZNF+=A Land bank as at
i =T — Bzt E 31st December 2009 48,138
Hopson Yuting Garden &4 HZEE
99, Xiangju Road, Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EEHRESHESE K (HH 100% 5 )
: 77K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 22,680
#% 5 LA TS B Al 58 T Construction to be completed
s _E—EZF in 2010 21,976
o —E——14F in 2011 70,408
R-EZENFE+_A Land bank as at 115,064
=+t—BzLtifFE 31st December 2009
Hopson International Plaza &4 Bl E%S
292 Jiefang, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
529244 (A 100% %)
750K
Sg.m.
1P LA TR A 58 T Construction to be completed
o« —F—— in 2012 353,300
R-_EZNF+_A Land bank as at
= +t—HZLFE 31st December 2009 353,300
Haiyuntian Project BZXAEH
483, Feihong Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai (100% owned)
BV O [ AR AT 3548358 (HE A 100% 155 )
5K
Sg.m.
1P LA T B Al 58 T Construction to be completed
o — T ——14F in 2011 53,357
R-_ZETZNFE+=-A Land bank as at
=t+—RBZztHEE 31st December 2009 53,357
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HANGZHOU #/

\/‘\

Municipal Government

B \

\
’— ":Fm\ci%g&on\%emment >
[ )
29\ \
\

Zhejiang University

Hangzhou Technology Digital Plaza Project #iNRIE: B ESER
327, Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou (95% owned)
MM PEER B 13532758 (B 95 % 25)
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NINGBO EEji

The East Sea
Hangzhou Bay Hangzhou Bay Bridge RE
N TN & 858 KT8
Hangzhou Bay New District
Ci Dong Industrial Zone
HEERT2ERE
Cixi City \
5y
g
3
< = Jiangbei District g
G ", THE 2
%% P R
). » F
* % %d%% & @Lwd B
{‘éqf\\@‘ 1\a\oﬂg f;'éi
ingbo & @
5
Ngg‘ﬁio § 6&(5;9 fng Yon
e ) o
U » § 6(\{\\?\06 9 %feg% t\‘
< 00‘90 > %f%s.
PRLoL - QA _{
Zronggue” Ningbo
/’\% 283
207 (e Ningbo University § N ;&
en °° BEAS @
yor% fﬁ 5
m
Kongpu Park ‘:‘@53— ﬂﬂk%
B AE NS “gwe Jiangdong District o g
TRE 2
28. Hopson International City
B A BRI
29. Hangzhou Bay Project
w2 A
Hopson International City &4 BIFE;
1, Zhongbao Road, Zhenhai New City, Ningbo (100% owned)
BRI ER 15 (A 100% )
Sg.m.
- DL Construction completed 2,862
1R A TN Al 58 T Construction to be completed
o —_FT——1fF in 2011 129,235
o — T ——EFfLAE in 2013 and after 277,837
RZZEZEAF+ZH Land bank as at
409,934

=t—BZztERE

31st December 2009

—EENFER
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Hangzhou Bay Project
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GUANGZHOU EM

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

Gallopade Park

BRIEE

Pleasant View Garden
L 22 [E]

Huanan New City

EE M

Gallopade Park — South Court
EL@?B

Regal Riviera

WILIH R

Regal Palace
R E

Yijing Huayuan

=D

Guangzhou Hopson
International Tower

BMNEE£BEBRXE

Yunshan Xijing

FLES

Regal Villa

7 = A

Junjing Bay

ERE

Guangzhou lJiahe
Commercial City

J& N 32 A0 7 2

Hopson Yujing Mid-level

& EMERF L

Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project

BN 6 5 #1E B

Guangzhou Nam Fong
Garden Project

EMESEEER

AN

N
AN
N
A Baiyun
Huadu District % ® International
= : ° Airport
\ L ~ETEERKS
X as {7
' + of
" o -+
v 2%
s
H Luogang District
¥ Baiyun District
HER
- Tianhe District Guangshen Express
A Guar;gsan E;press v R & BREiR
* = — =1 iR
\ ngzh ety
FOSh‘ln \\ Nanhai District m :GU%J\% Pl Huangbq District
I N\ HEE el N /) =HE
Guangzhou
Tianhe Railway Science City
Station YRR S
R N B o
P =
Baiyun District *, .= = T
EEEE:EE‘,’ ‘l:.‘nnn
> - Tianhe District ~ ~ ==«
= = e i = -
[Yuexiu District Rl [ —r s
BAEE , e
Metro Line No.5 =
Dongshan District SRR

RiLE

B Pearl River Zk)T

Haizhu District Gu%nd\g”z_bou
=373 M
MetrosLine No.3 Guangzhou
3 = R AR University City
BN K 235

Panyu District

Gallopade Park BA=TEE
190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
BN K & A L AGE 19053 (BE 95 % 1 25)

5K

Sqg.m.

2xT Construction completed 4,842

{ BRATHRMBTI Construction to be completed

o — T ——FfLAE in 2013 and after 439,529
RZZEZNF+A Land bank as at

=+—HBzLifFE 31st December 2009 444,371
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Pleasant View Garden #=Z2EF

Jﬂ\I/EE%ET)HﬁLF‘i(%ﬁ%.%%ﬁéf‘é)

Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (94.98% owned)

50K
Sg.m.
| BT Construction completed 36,458
BRI TERETI Construction to be completed
s —E—TF in 2010 46,343
o —ET—_4F in 2012 50,713
o« —TE—=FEf Ak in 2013 and after 556,381
RZTEZNF+=A Land bank as at
=t—BZztHE 31st December 2009 689,895
Huanan New City ZEE¥T5
Xingnan Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou (99% owned)
THI%%EE@F‘?K B (HEB99% )
Sg.m.
Bl Construction completed 71,528
BRI TERTEL Construction to be completed
s _E—ZF in 2010 35,446
e _ET——F in 2011 22,347
s T % in 2012 41,444
s —T—=FHUE in 2013 and after 1,862,304
RZEZNF+ZA Land bank as at
=t—BZtitHE 31st December 2009 2,033,069
Gallopade Park — South Court B&=Fa%8
3 3 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
BN R AT [ R L K38 1905 (B 95 % 4 %3 )
F 75k
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 35,071
#% 7 LA TN B i 58 T Construction to be completed
s _T—TF in 2010 15,479
o — T ——14F in 2011 32,679
o —_ T ——FAE in 2013 and after 92,637
RZEZNFE+=A Land bank as at
=t—Bztiu#E 31st December 2009 175,866
Regal Riviera BIF =
1, Haojing Street, Yizhou Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (99.5% owned)
M8 IR R M B R T 1 9% (A 99.5% 4 )
F 755k
Sg.m.
BExEL Construction completed 59,480
BRI TERTI Construction to be completed
e —T——FHUE in 2013 and after 805,958
RZEZNF+A Land bank as at
e el = e oK 31st December 2009 865,438
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Regal Palace =%

JE )N 7 IR 8 77 feel [ A8 (78 100 %4221 )

Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

750K
Sg.m.
N BT T Construction completed 7,237
| R—ZEZENF+ A Land bank as at
" =T —HzTFEE 31st December 2009 7,237
Yijing Huayuan FEZ=ZE%5g
Dongxiaonan Road South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (50% owned)
&N TR R B E B (MR B 50 % %)
oK
Sg.m.
Bl Construction completed 22,513
= BRUTRETT Construction to be completed
e —T—TF in 2010 38,253
o T — 14 in 2012 19,549
= N_EFEENFE+ A Land bank as at
s — T — Bz THEE 31st December 2009 80,315
Guangzhou Hopson International Tower EMN&£BIFRKE
Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
W\It%&tﬁﬁk(%ﬁmo%%‘ )
F 5K
Sg.m.
B Construction completed 99,059
RZZEZNF+=A Land bank as at
=3 =+—AZ+HEEE  31st December 2009 99,059
==
B ..
Yunshan Xijing ElLER
3 8 Guangzhou Avenue North, Baiyun District, Guangzhou (70% owned)
BMEEREMNAEIL(FEE70% )
A= T 7K
g S
; Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 12,583
1 7 LA T B ] 52 T Construction to be completed
s _ZE—ZTF in 2010 29,227
; !Luh y R-ZBEZAFE+ - A Land bank as at
: o =t—BztikE 31st December 2009 41,810
3 |
| R
1
e
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Regal Villa #515t
Aoti Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
JE N R [ BB A

& (HEB100%4E25)

F 75K
Sg.m.
BExEL Construction completed 8,506
BRI TERETI Construction to be completed
s —E—TF in 2010 38,078
I o — T —— 4 in 2011 30,000
o — T —_ 4 in 2012 29,791
R-_ZEZENF+_HA Land bank as at
=t+t—HztiHfEE 31st December 2009 106,375
Junjing Bay &
Huangqi Beicun Avenue, Dali, Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BN B FE R R E IS AL A K38 (A 100 % i 2m )
F 5K
Sg.m.
i BT Construction completed 1,601
"'4@ R TR Construction to be completed
s —E—FF in 2010 49,683
o —E—— 14 in 2011 175,347
o —_ T —_ 14 in 2012 30,000
e —T——F A& in 2013 and after 384,298
R-ZEENE+_A Land bank as at
=t—BZ1HE 31st December 2009 640,929
Guangzhou Jiahe Commercial City E/MNE=FME =
Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BN B IR E N KSR (FEE 100% )
F 5K
Sg.m.
#% 7 LA T B il 58 T Construction to be completed
o — T —_4F in 2012 78,499
o — T —=—FkPAE in 2013 and after 160,419
A R_ZFFNF+_-A Land bank as at
=+ —Bz LB 31st December 2009 238,918
Hopson Yujing Mid-Level &%= 1L
Honbenggang Reservoir, Shiling Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou (95.5% owned)
JEMITEER I 280 58 HE AL AR el /K B8 (B 95.5% 14 )
F 5K
Sg.m.
BRATERTI Construction to be completed
o — T ——14F in 2011 30,000
o — T —_4F in 2012 30,000
s —T——HFFHUE in 2013 and after 324,510
= RN_ZETAE+-A Land bank as at
=t+t—HztmEE 31st December 2009 384,510
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Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project EMNA#5#ER
Jiufo Machao Industry Town, Guangzhou (55% owned)

JEIN ALBREASS B T 24 (B 55 % 42 )

750K
Sg.m.
we RHRATERTI Construction to be completed
s —T—=FbE in 2013 and after 193,513
W A ZEZNFE+_A Land bank as at
b — - —HxtHEE 31st December 2009 193,513
Guangzhou Nam Fong Garden Project E/MNmEAEREEER
168-170, Canggang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
F)\I/ifﬂiE qﬂﬁﬂms 1705% (HEH 100%HE%)
i F 7K
Sg.m.
BRI TERTEL Construction to be completed
o —_E—_ 14 in 2012 103,151
RZZEZNF+ZH Land bank as at
=t—BztiERE 31st December 2009 103,151

Huanan New City

ERH

BHAREEERLAE —ETAEFH 0]



HUIZHOU ZE /M

p— -
q;‘/
o)
@c’& j
S Dongjiang .\@*Qgga
7o : Nty
% Industrial S A% /
7% 4 Zone S % Huizhou
Zengcheng ~ Huizhou Municipal dg\\& RITRE ’%‘ IJ\H
18 35 Government R &
N BT uicheng District
BEHE
W@
o st
45 & g = A2
s . pen O FEET
g Huizhou et SO
2 =M
K> ]
2 Wit b
d =
47| % rpor R =
\ 3
%, Guangshan Expressway = iﬂi
; PaN A -
2 ¢
» o
%Q i}
@ c
TSI NS fone % % Huiyan Distric
ke il % T HEE
""Shenshan Expressway
FUREE
Aotou Bay
(51 L
ZRIA
Baoan International Kuichong Town
Airport
BrEEEYS N
e g Yantian District
uangs EEE( B8 [ (& Dapeng Bay
— N

45. Hushan Guoji Villa 49. Wangxiangying Project
4 L B B BERgEE

46. Huizhou Golf Manor 50. Daya Bay Xiangshuihe Project
AEEBRRER AR EEKIEH

47. Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay 51. Daya Bay Houzaiwan Project
BT RE A Bk IE1E B

48. Hopson International New City
B A BB R R

Hushan Guoji Villa 1L BBz
Yuanzhang Avenue, XintangTown, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
KB TR YR SR & K8 (B 100% 4 50 )

5K
Sg.m.
S Construction completed 15,488
BRNATERBTI Construction to be completed
e —_ T —LTF in 2010 89,215
e —_T——4F in 2011 10,419
O =2 in 2012 50,000
e — T ——F B in 2013 and after 1,191,380
R-ZEZE += Land bank as at
= t+t—BHztinfEE 31st December 2009 1,356,502
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Huizhou Golf Manor &4 SBXitE

1, Longhe Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
HNTKAREFEE 15 (HEH 100% )

75K
Sg.m.
B 5L Construction completed 2,310
R TREEET Construction to be completed
e« _ET—TF in 2010 43,820
o —_T—_ 4 in 2012 105,365
e —T—=FlE in 2013 and after 2,052,648
RZTEZENF+ZA Land bank as at
=t+—BzZ LA 31st December 2009 2,204,143
Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay E/MFw5E
1, Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou (100% owned)
BT TR E— Eﬂhﬁ(%&*ﬁmo%%‘)
77K
Sg.m.
Bl Construction completed 30,974
BRI TERTEL Construction to be completed
|« —2—FF in 2010 121,187
e« —T——f in 2011 72,597
e T ——F in 2012 32,919
s TT—HFHNUK in 2013 and after 296,798
RZEZEANF+ A Land bank as at
=+—BzLi#E  31st December 2009 554,475
Hopson International New City &4 BIFE5
Yaxin Garden, Lianhe Village, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
HBMIK O SER A SRR IEE (BEB 100% 2 )
Sg.m.
25T Construction completed 81,880
B ATERTI Construction to be completed
o —_T—TF in 2010 8,158
o —_ T —=F & in 2013 and after 972,663
k. N—ZEZTNF+=A Land bank as at
B — - — Rz tiEE 31st December 2009 1,062,701
Wangxiangying Project BE<1EHE
Taipingxu, Taiping Village, Licheng Street, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
Pﬁﬁ%ﬁit?ﬁﬁif@ﬁﬂm%% i)
F K
Sg.m.
1 7 LA T Bl 58 T Construction to be completed
e —T—=FIE in 2013 and after 1,383,667
RZEZNF+ZA Land bank as at
=t+—Hz A 31st December 2009 1,383,667

EEERQT

—ETNFFH
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Daya Bay Xiangshuihe Project KEz&E kA& E
Xiangshuihe South, West side of Daya Bay (100% owned)
A gn PR E KO E BB (B 100% HE s )

75K
Sg.m.
AL TR T Construction to be completed
o — T T4 in 2010 3,100
o« — T ——14F in 2011 91,366
o —ET—_4F in 2012 66,083
s —T——HFFHUE in 2013 and after 1,989,451
RZTEZNF+=A Land bank as at
Zt—HBZLTiHE 31st December 2009 2,150,000
Daya Bay Houzaiwan Project RozEHx{FEI1EE
Houzaiwan, Aotou, Daya Bay Area (100% owned)
--
77K
Sg.m.
BRATERTT Construction to be completed
o — T T 4F in 2010 40,703
fey « —T——F in 2011 152,656
i o — T — — & in 2012 151,682
j o —_ T —=F g% in 2013 and after 1,197,170
s RZTEZNF+=A Land bank as at
DR - BT 31st December 2009 1,542,211

Huizhou Golf Manor
AHEBBAHE
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Yixian Lake Park
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52. Regal Court
=¥

53. Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
LR IE B

54. Zhongshan Rainbow Project
PR IIAR

Regal Court # =3t

Linggang District, Huoju Development Zone, Zhongshan (100% owned)
LT AER B R PR R R (B 100% 2 )

F 755k
Sg.m.
BExEL Construction completed 4,502
B ATERTI Construction to be completed
io —_T—FF in 2010 39,174
s _T——%F in 2011 66,612
o — T ——4F in 2012 67,604
R_EBEZENFE+ A Land bank as at
=+F—HzTifEE 31st December 2009 177,892
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Zhongshan Dongkeng Project FILRIIER
Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan (100% owned)
AL R (A 100% 1 %)

R 75K
' Sg.m.
AL TR T Construction to be completed
o —_E—=Ff A in 2013 and after 537,257
RZEZNF+Z=A Land bank as at
| =t—BztuHE 31st December 2009 537,257
B
E
i
Zhongshan Rainbow Project # L 4IIER
Caihong Planning Zone, West District, Zhongshan (100% owned)
| P AEEVAREE (5 100%Ex)
L T i 5K
; Sg.m.
R TEREEL Construction completed
o —E——FEHB in 2013 and after 479,499
o RZEZANF+ A Land bank as at
=T BZEMREE 31st December 2009 479,499

Sk s
]

Regal CoIth
R
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY FACTSHEET

Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st December RZZEZNF+ZR=+—HB1t £ERKE
2009 are as follows: MEREHIWT

Approximate

Group's interest Existing use gross floor area
Location y SEFGEDS Bz BREEBREEE
Guangzhou Jiahe Commercial City RRAEERE 75% Commercial/office/ 260,298 sq.m.
Guangzhou Avenue South, BMNTTE%E retail and carparking 260,298 7 %
Haizhu District BN K& [GEYE VNS
Guangzhou EAEEN ZEREES
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Hopson International Plaza FEIREE g 100% Commercial/office/ 353,300 sq@.m.
292 Jiefang 15BE2921 retail and carparking 353,300 5%
Yangpu District BEERES CEYE IN-A
Shanghai TEREES
Mainland China
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

HITES

CHU Mang Yee, aged 49, has been a Director since 1997. He is the Chairman
of the Company and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Chu has over twenty
years' experience in trading, construction, property investment and development.
He is also a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, an Honoured Citizen of Meizhou of Guangdong Province
and the Vice Chairman of Guangdong Research Institute for the Development
of Corporate Strategy. Mr. Chu is the sole director of Sounda Properties Limited.

Sounda Properties Limited is a substantial shareholder of the Company within the

meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

KREMR - 495% 0 B NNEFHERRFES - RREARAEFELAEENHD —EMA - RELEES - 2% WER
BERBERITEBEEB _+FER - RAKZERREZES - ERABMHRETRINERCXEREEAR ISR - REER
MEBEXARARZE—ESR  REEFMPEROIEXVE  FTEEX/ARBZEERR °

XIANG Bin, aged 62, has been a Director since 2001. He is the Deputy Chairman
of the Company and director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Xiang is a
Chinese Registered Superior Career Manager in the PRC and a senior engineer. Mr.
Xiang was a senior management staff of a public listed company before joining the
Group in February 2001. He has over thirty-six years' of experience in construction

and administration management.

B 6257 BT —FHAEARRES - FRAXFBEFERARRETHER
AlzEF - AEABEAPRSRGGEMBRELBENS R ITIZMBE R -T2 —F A
MBAKER - BEER - ETARNRRERAS - ERERTHER T HREBB= T FER -

CHEN Chang Ying, aged 42, has been an Executive Director since 2003 and the
Chief Executive Officer since 17th January 2008. Mr. Chen holds a Master degree
in Engineering and is a senior engineer. Before joining Hopson in 2003, Mr. Chen
was a senior management staff of a subsidiary of a listed company. He has over
ten years’ of experience in civil engineering, property investment, marketing and
enterprise management and is the Chairman of Beijing Guangdong Enterprise
Commercial Association. Mr. Chen resigned as an Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer on 21st January 2010.

REE 2% B TZ=_FHERTEFIN _TTENF - AT LRRHEETRE
Ho-RAEERIRBELIRERATIEM R _ZTZ=FNBEEZHMA—LTRAZ
MBARMRMEEAR - RELETARZE  HWEKRSE  2HEERCXEEIEES THFLR  YRETIEREREER
2ER BAER_Z—ZTF AT HABHERTESRITHAH
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

XUE Hu, aged 47, has been an Executive Director since 23rd October 2007. He is
also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Xue graduated from Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and
obtained a Master degree in Business Administration. He is a senior economist and
worked for higher education institutes and large state-owned enterprises in the PRC.
Mr. Xue joined the Group in 1994 and has over ten years’ of experience in real estate
investment, marketing and enterprise management.

BE 475 B_TEELF AT ZARBERTES - RITRERRITHRAR LK
RAETHBRARZES - BALFENEMNTLAEY R TRHERRLEMN - RASRK
EERD - SEBRNRBEARERREALBERALE - —ANOFNBREER  EFRHMER
B REEE CEXERTEERBTFER -

AU Wai Kin, aged 53, has been an Executive Director since 1997. Mr. Au joined
the Group in 1995. He is also a director of our other member companies. Mr. Au
graduated from Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and has over twenty years’
of experience in construction of buildings, town planning, real estate investment
and property development.

BEZ 535 B NANEFEERTES - BEER - WA RFMBEAEE - I
RAEBEHMK B AR ZESE - WEEREMPILARE - BEEERTEE  WH
HE  HEREMIEZRRTEER _TFLER -

ZHAO Ming Feng, aged 54, has been the Chief Financial Officer of the Group since 17th January 2008 and an Executive
Director since 19th May 2008. She is also director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Zhao holds a Bachelor
degree in Economics. She is a senior accountant and a certified accountant in the PRC. Prior
to joining the Group in 2007, she was Vice President of a large listed group. Since 1982, Ms.
Zhao had held different financial management positions at provincial level and municipal level
of the People’s Bank of China as well as in large enterprises. She has extensive experience in
financial management and monetary expertise.

HHE 545 MR N\F-ATELAREEARENBEE Y -TT/\FAATAR
HEARRARNITES - REBARRETHEARIZES - BLEIREHEZEL  SMEAKL
FEIEMERE e —ETEFMBARBZAEE—MAE LHEREREE - —AWN\ZFUEKD
AIERBEARRITATT W17 RECEEEVBEERY  RAGLENUBEEREREE
JTE Y TR B,
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE

LIAO Ruo Qing, aged 45, has been an Executive Director since 21st January
2010. He is also a Vice President of the Group and director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Liao graduated from Zhongshan University in Guangzhou
and obtained a Master degree from the University of Western Sydney of Australia.
Mr. Liao joined the Group in 2003. He has engaged in real estate investment and
business management for over ten years and has extensive experience in working

with government departments, legal affairs and investment development.

BEE 455 BT —ZEF AT -HREEWTES - RITAREEREHR
ARARETHBARZES - BAEEEREMNTUASWEENEZEABBELE
I - BRER-_FZ=FMBALXEKE - EREFHERERQLEERETHE+HF &
RTEENHRBUTMIIRERSER - REMETENEIELR -

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BYFHITES

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip, aged 74, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr.
Yuen is a retired solicitor and is a director of a number of listed companies. He is a
China Appointed Attesting Officer in Hong Kong and panel member of the China
International Economic & Trade Arbitration Commission. Mr. Yuen has been a
member of our Board since 1998. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee of the Company.

Bribi® - 745% - WUATES -BAER R —BEARRMRET LT RARZE
o RREBENTEZARTEARTEEREERRZEG ZMHEA - uLER
—ANNFRREEFEKE - RARERRZEREES  FHEESRBERS,/
BREATRZZEGEE -
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

LEE Tsung Hei, David, BBS, JP, aged 60, is an Independent Non-Executive Director.
Mr. Lee is the Chairman of DH International Group Holdings Ltd. He qualified as a
Chartered Valuation Surveyor in 1973 and registered as an Authorised Person in
1977. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional
Surveyor, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an associate of the
Incorporated Society of Valuers and Auctioneers, and an associate of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Lee is a former member of the Central Policy Unit, which is
known as the Government “Think Tank”, a past Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing
Society, a former member of the Supervisory Board of the Hong Kong Housing Society,
a former director of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, a former
Council member of Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a former member of the Land
and Building Advisory Committee. He is currently a member of the Steering Committee
on Review of the Urban Renewal Strategy, a member of the Remuneration Committee and Nominating Committee of
the Hong Kong Housing Society, a member of the Salvation Army Advisory Board and Chairman of the Property Advisory
Committee of the Salvation Army. Mr. Lee has been a member of our Board since 1998. He is also a member of the Audit

Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the
Company.

TER - WEHEE - X FHL - 6058 BIUFRTEER - TEERBERBEEZRBERATZERE - RR—NE=F%
RESEXRFFHNEMER YN —NEEFEMARITAL - RATBUEMZSERGE  BEIMEXNERM  FEEF
BEEREE  KEGHERNEMSEEEEMREBFIRASZEER - FALLABTEBRTTREFA(RIBNEEE) 287
ZE8  BAEFEBENIE TEREMSEESANZRE  FERBAETERARARZINES FEETABIRERELSL
WRERHAZEGNER - ST REEZREBNBELEELE  AAFEHSHTNZESREXZESEE - it
FEMZEGZERNEEEBERZESLR - FREA-NNN\FRAEFENE - RTA/RRARIZEREZES  HFMZ
BekEERS, BHBEBALRHZEGKE -

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver, aged 57, is an Independent Non-Executive Director.
Mr. Wong obtained his professional accounting qualifications in both Hong Kong
and Canada. Mr. Wong is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom. Mr. Wong is also a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an ordinary
member of The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and an associate
member of the Certified General Accountants of Canada. Mr. Wong had worked
in various renowned auditing firms in Hong Kong with over 15 years' experience
in handling auditing, financial accounting and taxation matters. Mr. Wong is

currently appointed as an independent non-executive director and a member of
Audit Committee of several listed companies in Hong Kong. He has also assumed
the duty of financial controller for several listed companies in both Hong Kong and Canada for over ten years. Mr. Wong
is presently practicing as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He has expertise in financial accounting, taxation,
import-export business and company management. Mr. Wong has been a member of our Board since 1998. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee of the Company.

BAE 575 BUFNTES - BRRERBBRNEAEEGEMSEEER - B ARBESF S0 MRBRFTRARER
MAGEREE  BESMASREXERGN  BEEASHNASEERNENEMEE - ELETELHARR

SIRMERAMTEBBTHEF  AREENE WS ARBRELER - SLERBNETEE LM AR Z BT
EENENLZERZE B HEZRABEMNEA LT AR ZMBRERMETHF - FRABBAZMSTESHH
¥ o mALHRMBER 5 EHOXBRAREEIAREZRE - BREB - NNN\FRRAEFENXE - WIT/EA
AZEREZES FTWEESRMERS BHEALRHZEGKE -
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

ZHU Guoxing, aged 60, Vice President of the Group, President of Commercial Property Headquarters and General
Manager of Eastern China Commercial Property Company. Mr. Zhu holds a Master degree. He is a senior economist
and a certified accountant in the PRC. He was appointed as Head of Financial and Taxation Bureau in Zhabei District
of Shanghai, Head of Financial and Taxation Bureau and Head of Audit Bureau in Pudong New Area of Shanghai and
the President of a large-scale state-owned group since 1988. He is the Chairman of Industry Association in Lujiazui
of Shanghai, Vice Chairman of Commercial Association in Pudong New Area of Shanghai. Mr. Zhu has substantial
management experience in commercial property industry and has in-depth knowledge in the operation and administration

of office building, hotel, shopping mall and hi-technology software park.

KEIF - 605% - AEBRAHFRDENELLBELERHEHERRLLE - RELHFFBELEMN  SRALEMRE R
hREIEMERE - BN N\FREFLERFILEFHRERE - DEERFTERHBERE FTRRARMALEEEEEHS
B REBERETEHESR  DEFRFERSRISR REEABLENDRMETEERLR  UBFE CBE B
1% BB EREFEEIEFEE -

XU Hong, aged 41, Assistant to President of the Group, Chairman and General Manager of the eastern regional
company. She graduated from the University of Western Sydney in Australia with a Master degree in Business
Administration. Prior to joining the Group in 1994, she worked in the real estate sector for over ten years and has
extensive experience in investment, development and management of land bank, real estate and project operation. She
possess good relations with the government and a vast network in the community.

BAL My AEEERDERRBREQFNERTRE  AFR - BT EEXNANORERBYETHERB LB -
—NNEOFEMBEREE  REFMETETHE  ELUORE  FHEREFREEENAREBEIALREE - HARINK
REAFEMLEER -

SU Bo, aged 42, Assistant to President of the Group and General Manager of Northern China Regional Company. He
graduated from the Chinese People’s Public Security University in 1989, with a Bachelor degree in Laws and completed
a post-graduate course in business administration at the Swansea College, University of Wales in England. He joined
the Group in 2008 and has been in the real estate industry for over 10 years, with extensive experience in corporate
operations and management, real estate investment and development management and project operations. He has a

strong connection with the government as well as community resources.

B 425 SEAREREFLRFEARRKE - — W/ \NWFEERTEARRLZAR - EEE LB - U HEEEHB
TARBHEAZRETTIHERPRERE - HEER _ZENFNBEAEE - LEFHETETHRTF  ELELEER &
WERERBEEENEAEFETILREE - BERINBTEENTEER
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

LIU Jian, aged 42, Assistant to President of the Group. Mr. Liu graduated from the Chongqing Institute of Architectural
Engineering with a Bachelor degree. He is a certified first-class architect and a professor-level senior engineer in the PRC.
He served as the Vice-President of China Institute of Aerospace Construction and Design and Deputy General Manager
of Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Development Limited respectively since 1989. He joined the Group as Assistant
to President in 2002 and also served as the Executive Deputy General Manager of Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate
Development Limited. Mr. Liu has wide exposure in real estate planning, design and engineering management with

extensive practical operations experience.

B3 - 425 ARERHBE - JBRALERENEERET RSN - 2L M - R R MEEM  BHEFSRTRE
B o BN NFREEHEMREZERTMERR R RIER G £ FHERBE AR ARERLE - _TE_FNBEAE
EERHEE - ARRERESENIFHERBEAR AR EBABLE - JZTARFLENFHERSIR - TIZEEK
B BREBEEREE -

ZHANG Zhenguo, aged 56, Assistant to President of the Group, Head of the President’s Office and Chairman of Tianjin
Company. He joined the Group in 2001 with undergraduate level of education and 22 years in military services. He served as
the Lodge General Manager in the Propaganda Department of the Central Government and the Head of the Propaganda
Department of the provincial party committee of Guangdong. He was awarded the honours as the Working Model
of Tianjin and Outstanding Member of the Communist Party of Tianjin, among others. He currently serves in various
positions including member of the committee of the Tianjin Baodi District People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Representative to the People’s Congress, Honorary Chairman of Arts Association in Baodi District, committee member
of Tianjin Province Industrial and Commercial Confederation, Vice President of Baodi District Industrial and Commercial
Confederation and senior economic consultant of the People’s Government of Baodi. Mr. Zhang is committed to research
and management in areas of real estate management and corporate operations. He has extensive practical experience in

management of large-scale integrated real estate company.

RIRED - 565% - AREAHENE - BEPEE  RERREFR - T —FNALREKE $ﬂ'ﬂ}*_* BEEE—_t+—F-
LEPREEHERELE  BEREZEENRR - BEREML KRG im@%%ﬁ%% KA - RERXETEERIK
HEER  RIEAAREK BERXBHRHREBIE REMIABEZE  HRERTABETE FERARBASELEBER SR
7 o REE-EFNNFHERLE  CEEBFEFHTHAMNEEEETF  BRALEA J;E% HENREEEESENERLR -

ZHANG Liming, aged 42, Assistant to President of the Group. She graduated from the Xinjiang University and is an
economist. Prior to joining the Group in 2002, she worked in Shenzhen Taxation Bureau and had been engaged in real
estate investment, operation and management for over ten years. She has substantial experience in government public

relations and investment and development.

REH - 42p% 0 AEEB@RIIE - EXNIEAR - LB o —TE_FMBAAREE  REATBHBNAITHER - LF
FHEREMEEERTETHRF  FYENBRNARBERIMIERBESTHELER -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

TURNOVER

0]

(i)

Recognised Sales

As the impact of the global financial turmoil was partially offset by
the expansionary policies introduced by the Central Government,
the Group achieved a satisfactory turnover of HK$11,225 million
in 2009 (2008: HK$10,775 million) amid the improving economic
environment. The overall GFA delivered by the Group in 2009 surged
20% to 896,934 square metres (2008: 750,286 square metres), of
which GFA delivered in Huizhou, Shanghai and Tianjin increased
by 544%, 114% and 67% respectively due to the delivery of new

projects in these regions.

In 2009, the average selling price for delivered and completed
properties dropped to RMB10,385 per square metre (2008:
RMB12,528 per square metre) as a considerable amount of lower
price products and remaining units were delivered during the year.
Shanghai on the other hand was able to secure a 22% rise in
average selling price due primarily to the delivery of three high-end
projects, namely the Hopson Dongjiao Villa, International Garden

and Hopson Yuting Garden.

Contracted Sales

The economic stimulus policies launched by various countries in
2009 alleviated the global economic downturn. China managed
to secure an 8.7% GDP growth in 2009. With positive market
sentiments and restored consumers’ confidence, a revival of the PRC

property market was seen in 2009.

The Group recorded a significant growth in contracted sales of 58%
to RMB15.09 billion (2008: RMB9.53 billion). Excluding the proceed
from the disposal of the Beijing Dongfangwenhua commercial
building in 2008, the year-on-year growth rate of contracted sales
was up by 88%. Average contracted selling price also grew 17% to

RMB 13,041 per square metre from last year.

R
() BmAHER

(i)

FRBUTHTERBEREE T #5
PREMARTRZTE  THERNK
BRERFENS  AEER-ZTH
FESME 2 &5 %5011,225,000,000
BT (ZZFZE)\F : 10,775,000,000
BIL) c RZETNEF - AEEEXR
7 RS EE EF20% £896,934
FHAK(ZZEZT\EF ¢ 750,286 F 75
K)o B EN - EERXEER
RAEMEARN - WBRNEERE
DRI EFA544% ~ 114% %67 % °

HRERE S EEBRAYRIEZER
RERBMEZZSZENFARNN
LB R RERYE 2 FHEE TR
EFFHARAARKEI0385T(ZEE
NF : BERARARK12,5287T) °
S—HHE @ bEhEz FHEERI
B2% AR TZHARERNH=(F
BINE B A ERBAE « SEBBRE
B REEMEREAE -

BRHERE

BER BT NFHHHE L LBERI
BE - BYEETEHEBERERR
R PEKINER _ZETNFREANE

EHRESTRMIEREX - MERAAE
o HBEREREL  hEEMED

BENR - TENEEH -

REBSHIHEEHEZIERS8%EA
RE1509BIL(ZTETNF: ARE
95.3187) c IR T N\FHEL
RRAXE[EREZMEHIE &
A EFIRFIZRES% - AHHEZ
FHEENRREF LA17%EFFEH
KAREET3,0417T ©

74  Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



FINANCIAL REVIEW

TURNOVER (Continued)

(ii) Contracted Sales (Continued)
The combined contracted sales of Beijing and Tianjin amounted
to RMB6,416 million, representing 42.5% of the total contracted
sales of the Group in 2009. With the launch of three new projects
in Beijing, namely the No. 8 Royal Park, Kylin Zone and Hopson
Dreams World, contracted sales of Beijing went up by 293% over
2008. Nine property projects were on sale in Beijing and Tianjin, of
which No. 8 Royal Park and Beijing Regal Court were the major sales
contributor.

Guangdong achieved contracted sales of RMB4,434 million in 2009,
representing 29.4% of the total contracted sales of the Group.
Nineteen property projects were on sale, of which four were located
in Huizhou and the rest of them were located in Guangzhou.
Contracted sales of Huizhou region were RMB1,397 million,
grew significantly by 235% from last year. The major projects in
Guangdong were Pleasant View Garden, Regal Riviera, Gallopade
Park — South Court, Huanan New City, Junjing Bay, Huizhou Regal
Riviera Bay and Hushan Guoji Villa.

There were eight property projects on sale in Shanghai, comprising
Hopson Town, Hopson Lantern Villa, Hopson Golf Mansion,
International Garden, Sheshan Dongziyuan, Hopson Dongjiao Villa,
Hopson Yuting Garden and Hopson International City. Contracted
sales of Shanghai were RMB4,238 million, grew 99% from last year

and representing 28.1% of the total contracted sales of the Group.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales included land and construction costs, decoration and design
costs, capitalized interest and land premium amortization. In line with the
increase in turnover, cost of sales was up by 11% to HK$6,558 million
(2008: HK$5,916 million) and, as a percentage of turnover, slightly
increased by 3% to 58% (2008: 55%) due primarily to more sales of
lower price products with lower profit margin in 2009.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit margin was lowered from 45% in 2008 to 42% in 2009.
The major reason for the slight drop was caused by the delivery of a
considerable amount of lower price products and remaining products
during the year as compared with the higher price products delivered in
2008.

OTHER GAINS

Other gains amounted to HK$734.0 million in 2009 (2008: 265.4
million) comprising (1) a net gain of HK$621.9 million from the disposal
of subsidiaries; (2) tax grants amounting to HK$81.5 million from
government authorities in the mainland; (3) a dividend income of HK$31.3
million; (4) a fair value loss of HK$0.6 million from investment in listed
securities, and (5) a loss of HK$0.1 million from disposal of equity interest

in a subsidiary.

OPERATING COSTS

The net operating costs relating to expenses for selling, marketing,
general and administration amounted to HK$1,374 million representing
an increase of 27% from 2008 of HK$1,080 million. The increase was
primarily due to a significant reduction in exchange gain, which turned to
a loss of HK$0.44 million. The decrease in exchange gain was attributable
to the insignificant difference in movements of exchange rates between
Renminbi and United States Dollars/Hong Kong dollars in 2009. In
addition, larger amount of new bank loans in 2009 led to an increase in
finance charges which further contributed to the increase in operating

costs.

OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit in 2009 surged by 114% to HK$8,728 million (2008:
HK$4,078 million).

FINANCE COSTS

Gross interest before capitalization decreased 1% to HK$1,148 million
from HK$1,157 million in 2008. The decrease was attributable to the
lower average bank borrowings in 2009 than in 2008. The effective
interest rate in respect of the Group’s borrowings was approximately 6.2%
per annum (2008: 7.5%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

SHARE OF PROFIT OF A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity represented the Group'’s share
of profit of HK$386 million (2008: loss of HK$1.71 million) delivered from
a jointly controlled entity located in Beijing. The significant increase in
profit from this jointly controlled entity was mainly due to the completion
and consequently the recognition of sale of the Beijing Donfengwenhua
commercial building during the year. Pursuant to the joint venture

agreement, the profit arising thereof was fully attributable to the Group.

TAXATION

The effective tax rate was 31% in 2009, down 19% compared with last
year. Excluding the (1) non-taxable items comprising gain on disposal of
subsidiaries of HK$622 million, dividend income from an available-for-
sale financial asset of HK$31 million, government grants of HK$81 million
and interest income of HK$14 million, and (2) share of profit from a jointly
controlled entity of HK$386 million and share of loss from associates of
HK$1.3 million, the effective tax rate would have been 35% (2008: 53%).
The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the provision for Mainland

China’s land appreciation tax during the year.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$5,800 million for 2009
(2008: HK$1,964 million). Fully diluted earnings per share was HK$3.69.
Excluding the effect of the net of tax gain from revaluation of investment
properties amounting to HK$3,525 million, underlying profit was
HK$2,274 million, up HK$538 million or 31% as compared with previous
year. The increase was mainly attributable to the recognition of net gain
on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$622 million and sharing of profit from a
jointly controlled entity of HK$386 million. The increase was, to a certain
extent, offset by the decrease in exchange gain of HK$272 million and the

decrease in gross profit of HK$191 million.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Property development continued to be the Group’s core business activity
(94%). In 2009, the Group maintained a balanced development in terms
of turnover in the three core economic regions, namely the Pearl River
Delta, Yangtze River Delta and Huanbohai Area. Guangzhou and Huizhou
contributed 36% to the total revenue of the Group, followed by Shanghai
(33%), Beijing (26%) and Tianjin (5%).

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31st December 2009, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$70,654 million and its total liabilities (excluding minority interests)
came to HK$40,155 million, representing an increase of HK$12,382
million and HK$4,447 million respectively over the previous year. The
increase in total assets was mainly attributable to the increase in (1) surplus
from revaluation of investment properties; (2) fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets; (3) investment in a jointly controlled entity due to
the increased share of profit from it; (4) development cost incurred in the
construction and completion of projects, and (5) cash and bank deposits.
Aligned with this, total liabilities also increased, primarily due to (1)
additional bank borrowings obtained, and (2) increase in deferred revenue

from property sale and tax liabilities.

Current ratio was 2.19 in 2009 (2008: 2.49). Equity increased to
HK$30,499 million at 31st December 2009 from HK$22,564 million at
31st December 2008, due primarily to (1) current year’s profit attributable
to equity holders; (2) placing of new Company’s shares in June 2009, and

(3) increase in asset revaluation reserve.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

LIQUIDITY AND BORROWINGS

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely monitors
its current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain its rolling cash
flow at a level which is considered adequate by the Group to finance the
Group's operations according to its cash flow projections and to maintain

sufficient cash to meet its business development requirements.

As at 31st December 2009, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio (i.e. the ratio
between total liabilities and total assets, excluding minority interests) was
57% (2008: 61%). The net debt-to-equity ratio (i.e. total debt less cash
and bank deposits over shareholders’ equity) was 32% (2008: 63%).

As at 31st December 2009, the Group has cash and short-term bank
deposits amounting to HK$6,714 million (2008: HK$2,414 million) of
which approximately HK$107 million (2008: HK$87 million) was charged
by certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage facilities granted
by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties. 92% of the cash
and bank deposits were denominated in Renminbi, 2% in Hong Kong
dollars and 6% in United States dollars.

Total borrowings from banks amounted to HK$11,502 million as at 31st
December 2009 representing a decrease of 3% or HK$406 million as
compared to those at 31st December 2008. Gearing measured by net
bank borrowings, Guaranteed Senior Notes and Convertible Bonds less
cash and bank deposits as a percentage of shareholders’ equity, was 32%,
down 31 percentage point from 63% as at 31st December 2008. The
decrease was mainly due to the increase in cash and bank deposits and

placing of new Company’s shares during the year.

All of the bank borrowings were either secured or covered by guarantees
and were substantially denominated in Renminbi with fixed interest
rates whereas the United States Dollars denominated Senior Notes and
the Renminbi denominated United States Dollars settled Convertible
Bonds due 2010 were both jointly and severally guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries with fixed interest rate, representing approximately 62%,
14% and 12%, respectively of the Group's total borrowings.

All of the other borrowings were unsecured, interest-free and substantially
denominated in Renminbi.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

B %5 51 R

LIQUIDITY AND BORROWINGS (Continued)
The Group's borrowing repayment profile as at 31st December 2009 was as

follows:

RBEERER#E)
AEER-BEAFT-A=+-AZHEE
EHEMRMT

As at 315t December 2009 As at 31st December 2008
H-BRAFTZAZT-B i tZA=1-A
Guaranteed  Guaranteed Guaranteed ~ Guaran
Bank Senior ~ Convertible Other Bank Senior  Convertible Other
Borrowings notes bond  borrowings Borrowings notes bond  borrowings
i i R
#RE  BARE  TRRES  AfRE iR
(HKS million)
(A&#7)
1 year £ 4,083 - 2170 200 8,255 (45%) 4263 - - 941 5,204 (30%)
1-2 years —FERE 1907 - - - 1907 (10%) 5017 - 202 - 7,039 (40%)
2-5 years WEERE 4m 2677 - - 7448 (#1%) 229 2,663 - - 4,98 (28%)
After 5 years Rk 761 - - - 761 (4%) 39 - - - 39 (2%)
Total 5t 11,502 2677 2170 202 183711 11,908 2,663 202 941 17,534
Less: Cash and W REREN
bank deposts B (6,714) (2414
Net borrowings EEFE 11,657 15,120

As at 31st December 2009, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$36,976 million (2008: HK$27,112 million) for short-
term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$25,474 million (2008:
HK$15,204 million) were unutilised.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

As at 31st December 2009, the Group provided guarantees to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the Group’s properties which
amounted to HK$9,981 million (2008: HK$8,737 million).

RZEZHF+-—A=+—0  KEERE
H R R HAER1T B 5 EL{S 4936,976,000,0007%
JL(ZZZ\4F : 27,112,000,000% 7T ) 2 iR
T{EE% - £ 25,474,000,0008 (=%
=)\ :15,204,000,00058 7T ) A BN o
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2 ¥E{R459,981,000,000/8 70 ( Z T T )\ F :
8,737,000,000/87T) °
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

B %5 ol R

CHARGE ON ASSETS BEEER

As at 31st December 2009, certain assets of the Group with an aggregate RIZEZNF+-_A=1+—8 AEEETF

carrying value of HK$7,355 million (31st December 2008: HK$10,147 FRE 418 /47,355,000,0007 70 ( =TT )\ F

million) were pledged with banks for loan facilities used by subsidiaries, +=ZA=+—H :10,147,000,000% T) Z

jointly controlled entity and related companies. BECHRMBAR - HEZEHEREREER
AEA EFEE R TIRT -

COMMITMENTS IR
The Group’s commitments as at 31st December 2009 were as follows: AEBR-_ZZNF+_A=+—H2&E
LENNE

As at As at

31st December 31st December
2009 2008
R-BENFE  HoTT)NF

+=A=+-8 +=A=+-A

HK$ million HK$ million
BEET ER-3:n
Capital commitments [EWINES i
Contracted but not provided for BETA B R H
— Property construction costs —WNERRE AR 880 411
— Acquisition of land and equity interests — R THEREEE .
in certain Mainland China entities T R AR AN A 170 656
— Capital contribution to a jointly controlled — —¥f—[E L RIIEHI B2
entity (“BJ Dongfangwenhua”) ([IEREAXEDZ
BARER 258 258
1,308 1,325
Authorised but not contracted for BIREEKRETH
— Land costs — bR 66 78
— Property construction costs R E 3= £ 95 %N 3,531 696
3,597 774
4,905 2,099
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B %5 51 R

COMMITMENTS (Continued) A E)

As at As at

31st December 31st December
2009 2008
R-BEAE R=—ZT)\F

+=A=t-B +=A=+-§

HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
Property development commitments M RASE
Contracted but not provided for BEETA B R
— Property construction costs R E 3= £ 957N 10,184 8,599
Authorized but not contracted for EEBERETL
— Property construction costs R E 3= =35 %N 38,258 29,365

48,442 37,964

The Group's share of capital commitments of the jointly controlled entity WARBIEE ERZ AEEREXREHETE
not included in the above were as follows: ZEREENT

As at As at

31st December 31st December

2009 2008
R=ZZBNF j

+=—HB=+—H
HK$ million
BEBT

Contracted but not provided for BETH B R

— Property construction costs . /ES = FN - 222
Authorised but not contracted for EEBERETL

— Property construction costs B /E 3= FN - 506

- 728
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B %5 ol R

COMMITMENTS (Continued) AIEE)

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of premises under REERZHABEBEME 2 TR T HLE
various non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The future aggregate HEHEMABLEHEFRYE - BREBETAIFEE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as KEMRAORBEZ ZRENESEENT

follows:

As at As at

31st December 31st December
2009 2008
R-BBNE R-ZFENF

t=A=+—-B +=A=+—H

HK$ million HK$ million
BEERT BEET
Amounts payable THIERA R 2 5K
— Within one year ——FR 27 40
— Within two to five years —-MEEREFER 76 116
— After 5 years —RFi& 49 9

152 165

With continuous cash inflow from property sales, the banking facilities HRYEESFERMIRSRA - LA
available and the cash in hand, the Group is expected to be in an adequate FSETTEELFEERS  AEEEHEE T
liquidity position to meet these on-going commitments by stages. RBMENE & AR [RIBE B 2 45 e -

TREASURY POLICIES MEBR

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and REEREHIE R RE R RKREEEE -
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that WEFRREREERARNERZLEBER
are directly related to the underlying business of the Group. BRI -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESTHRE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of Hopson Development Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries,
associates and a jointly controlled entity are principally engaged in
investment holding, property development, property investment, property
management and hotel operations.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by activity and their respective
contributions to operating profit for the year ended 31st December 2009

by geographical locations is as follows:

Guangzhou M
Beijing bR
Shanghai st
Tianjin R
Huizhou B
Others Hib

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments for the year
ended 31st December 2009 is as follows:

Property development MEER
Property investment MERE
Property management MRETR
Hotel operations IS &

EFEMARZALAREBARARA (AR
RAEDEEMBAR (SR AREDBE=
EENE+ A=+ B LEFENFRER
REGWWEBER

KRB R~ F'EHxé? AR - ETEMER

A BEARRAREHEREIENERE
2R %%?é)?é MERE  MEEEEH
RO E &

REERE-_TTAF+_A=T—HILF
BiitEE D 2 2 RBREE B HREER
ZEBAHTIT

Turnover Contribution to

operating profit

éﬂﬁ‘}fg/m J

BT Z Bk

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT AT

3,074,340 2,422,528

2,910,516 1,110,793

3,677,017 4,526,733

543,550 (97,175)

1,019,823 189,358

— 575,356

11,225,246 8,727,593

REEBEZTTNFTZA=+—HLF
EREBZHEDHEEBONET :

Turnover

EER

HK$'000

5T

10,631,159

31,174

431,355

131,558

11,225,246
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31st December 2009, the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for approximately 2.22% of the Group’s turnover
while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
13% of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 0.81% of the Group’s turnover while
the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 8% of the

Group's purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in Note
41 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial interest in the

Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December 2009 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 117 of this annual

report.

An interim dividend of HK$0.092 per share, totalling HK$146,498,000,
was declared and paid during the year. In order to meet the Group's
development needs and expansion plan, the Directors considered it
beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole to further
enhance the Group's liquidity to enable the Group to take more flexible
strategic move and to accelerate its expansion plan as and when
opportunities arise. Having taken into consideration of the above, the
Directors have resolved that no final divided be recommended for payment
to shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2009.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note

27 to the financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year

are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December 2009,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$596,215,000 (2008: HK$123,773,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$35,640,000 (2008: HK$18,652,000) to various charitable

organizations.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in properties and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to

the financial statements, respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in

Notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

BORROWINGS
Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2009 are set out in Note 24
to the financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 31 to the financial

statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years is set out on pages 252 to 254.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 30th April 2009, the Company and Guangdong Hanjiang Construction
Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”), being the respective holding
companies of the Group and the Hanjiang Group (comprising Hanjiang, its
subsidiaries and its associates), entered into a framework agreement (the
“Framework Agreement”) setting out, among other things, the principal
terms in respect of services/leased premises to be provided to the Group
by the Hanjiang Group and of services/leased premises to be provided by
the Group to the Hanjiang Group. The Framework Agreement is effective
for a term commencing from 16th June 2009 to 31st December 2011.
Hanjiang, a company owned by the brother of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the
controlling shareholder and chairman of the board of Directors of the
Company) (“Mr. Chu"”) as to 90 percent and the brother-in-law of Mr.
Chu as to 10 percent, is a connected person of the Company under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Hence, the
transactions between the Group and the Hanjiang Group as contemplated
under the Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of such

continuing connected transactions are set out as follows:

(i) Construction

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out construction works
for certain property development projects of the Group and the
Hanjiang Group agrees to carry out such construction works for the
Group. The construction fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for carrying out construction works for various property
projects of the Group in the PRC shall be determined by the parties
by reference to the prevailing market rates charged by independent
third parties for similar construction projects and the stipulated
standards prescribed by #i&Z & & (Construction Committee) of
such area where the particular property project is located. During
the year ended 31st December 2009, total construction fees
paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$1,899,903,000 (2008: HK$2,180,086,000).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Property management

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to manage certain properties developed
by the Group in Shanghai. The amount of management fees payable
by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for providing management
services to the said properties in Shanghai shall be determined by
the parties by reference to the prevailing market rates charged by
independent third parties for providing similar property management
services in similar locations, which shall conform with the stipulated
standards prescribed by FE LH#EIE B (Housing and Land
Administration Bureau) of such area where the particular property is
located. During the year ended 31st December 2009, management
fees paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$899,000 (2008: HK$1,947,000).

Design

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out design works for certain
property development projects of the Group and Hanjiang agrees
to procure any member of the Hanjiang Group which is engaged
in the business of property design, to carry out such design works
for the Group. The amount of design fees payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group for carrying out the design works for various
property development projects of the Group shall be determined
by the parties by reference to, and shall not be higher than, the
prevailing market rates charged by independent third parties for
similar design projects and the standards or guidelines prescribed
by the relevant government authority on the fees chargeable for
the provision of similar services (if any). During the year ended 31st
December 2009, design fees paid/payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$13,787,000 (2008:
HK$27,013,000).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(iv) Installation and decoration

(v)

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out installation and decoration
works for certain property development projects of the Group and
Hanjiang agrees to procure any member of the Hanjiang Group
which is engaged in the business of installation and decoration, to
carry out such installation and decoration works for the Group. The
amount of installation and decoration fees payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group for carrying out the installation and decoration
works for various property development projects of the Group in the
PRC shall be determined by the parties by reference to, and shall not
be higher than, the prevailing market rates charged by independent
third parties for similar installation and decoration works and the
standards prescribed by the relevant governmental authorities
of such area where the particular property is located. During the
year ended 31st December 2009, installation and decoration fees
paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$39,871,000 (2008: HK$65,997,000).

Office lease

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Hanjiang Group
agrees to lease certain premises in Guangzhou to the Group for use
as office. The rent payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group will
be determined by reference to the prevailing market rents charged
by independent third parties for the leasing of similar properties
in the vicinity. During the year ended 31st December 2009, rental
paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$2,363,000 (2008: HK$3,524,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(vi) Electrical power installation, intelligent building

installation works, budgeting and cost control
consultation

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out electrical power installation
and intelligent building installation works for certain property
development projects of the Group and to provide consultation
services to the Group in relation to budgeting and construction cost
control. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for carrying out electrical power installation works for the
property projects of the Group will be determined by reference to,
and shall not be higher than, the prevailing market rates charged
by independent third parties for similar works and the standards
prescribed by the relevant governmental authorities of such area
where the property is located. The amount of fees payable by the
Group to the Hanjiang Group for carrying out intelligent building
installation works for certain property projects of the Group in the
PRC will be determined by reference to, and shall not be higher
than, the prevailing market rates charged by independent third
parties for similar works and the standards prescribed by the
relevant governmental authorities of such area where the property is
located. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for the provision of budgeting and construction cost control
consultation services to the Group will be determined by reference
to, and shall not be higher than, 28 iR 5 Uk Z1Z 4 (Standard
Fees for Tender Agencies) issued by It R H RN ELZE S
(Beijing Municipal Commission of Development and Reform) in
respect of the provision of services to assist in the tender process
and TRREE A MAREWE BB E1THE% (Provisional Administrative
Measures on Consultation Fees for Construction Budgeting) issued
by the relevant department of #z&EF (Ministry of Construction)
now known as {FFE AR (Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development) in respect of the provision of budgeting services.
During the year ended 31st December 2009, fees for electrical
power installation works, intelligent building installation works
and budgeting and construction cost control consultation services
paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$76,579,000 (2008: HK$16,610,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(vii) Construction supervision

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to supervise the construction of certain
property development projects of the Group. The amount of
construction supervision fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for supervising the construction of certain property projects
of the Group shall be determined by the parties by reference to the
prevailing market rates charged by independent third parties for the
provision of similar construction supervision works and the standards
prescribed under &% T 12 8272 B AR BA AR TS I B 1R 4
Project Monitoring and Related Services Fees Standard). During

(Construction

the year ended 31st December 2009, construction supervision fees
paid/ payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$1,968,000 (2008: Nil).

(viii) Shop lease

(ix)

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group agrees
to lease certain premises in Guangzhou, Beijing and Tianjin to the
Hanjiang Group for use as shops. The rent receivable by the Group
from the Hanjiang Group will be determined by reference to the
market rents charged by Group for the leasing of the same or similar
properties to independent third parties in the vicinity. During the
year ended 31st December 2009, no rental was received/receivable
by the Group from the Hanjiang Group (2008: Nil).

Vacant property management

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Hanjiang
Group may appoint the Group to manage certain vacant properties
of the Hanjiang Group located in Guangzhou, Beijing and Xi‘an.
The amount of management fees receivable by the Group from
the Hanjiang Group will be determined by the parties by reference
to the standards on property management fees and related costs
prescribed by the Guangdong Provincial, Beijing Municipal and
Xi'an local authorities and the property pricing guidelines issued
by the local government. During the year ended 31st December
2009, vacant property management fees received/receivable by
the Group from the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$13,919,000 (2008: HK$2,316,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(x)

Design

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Hanjiang
Group may appoint the Group to carry out design works for certain
property projects of the Hanjiang Group. The amount of design
fees receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group will be
determined by the parties by reference to the prevailing market rates
charged by independent third parties for undertaking similar design
projects and the standards and guidelines prescribed by the relevant
local authority on fees chargeable for the provision of similar
services (if any). During the year ended 31st December 2009, design
fees received/receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$19,917,000 (2008: Nil).

The independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above

transactions and confirmed that:

(i) a.

(ii)

the above transactions have been conducted at arm’s length
between the parties on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are
on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favorable to the
Company than terms to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties;

. the above transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and

usual course of the business of the Group;

the above transactions have been carried out in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole;

during the year ended 31st December 2009, total construction fees
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,899,903,000 (2008: HK$2,180,086,000), which have
not exceeded the annual construction fees paid/payable to the
Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 30th April 2009 (the
“Announcement”);
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

during the year ended 31st December 2009, management fees
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$899,000 (2008: HK$1,947,000), which have not exceeded the
annual management fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2009, design fees paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$13,787,000 (2008: HK$27,013,000) which have not exceeded
the annual design fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2009, installation and
decoration fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted
to approximately HK$39,871,000 (2008: HK$65,997,000) which
have not exceeded the annual installation and decoration fees paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2009, office rental paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$2,363,000 (2008: HK$3,524,000), which has not exceeded the
annual office rental paid/ payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect
of the year concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2009, fees for electrical
power installation, intelligent building installation, and budgeting
and construction cost control consultation services paid/payable to
the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$76,579,000
(2008: HK$16,610,000), which have not exceeded the annual fees
for electrical power installation, intelligent building installation, and
budgeting and construction cost control consultation services paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the Announcement;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(viii) during the year ended 31st December 2009, construction supervision

(xi)

fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,968,000 (2008: Nil), which have not exceeded the annual
construction supervising fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2009, no shop rental was
received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group (2008: Nil), which have
not exceeded the annual shop rental received/receivable from the
Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2009, vacant property
management fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$13,919,000 (2008: HK$2,316,000),
which have not exceeded the annual vacant property management
fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the
year concerned as disclosed in the Announcement; and

during the year ended 31st December 2009, design fees received/
receivable from the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$19,917,000 (2008: Nil), which have not exceeded the annual
design fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect
of the year concerned as disclosed in the Announcement.

In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board of Directors

engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain factual finding

procedures on the above continuing connected transactions in accordance

with Hong Kong Standard on Related Services 4400 “Engagements to

Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information” issued

by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor

has reported the factual findings on the transactions based on the agreed

upon procedures to the board of Directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31st December 2009, the Group entered into the

following connected transactions:

On 2nd November 2009, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement with Hanjiang (the “Panyu Agreement”), whereby, Hanjiang
has conditionally agreed to transfer and procure the transfer to Hopeson
Holdings Limited (“Hopeson”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and/or its nominee(s) the entire equity capital in FEIK/IE
#EAFR AT (Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited) (“Panyu Zhujiang”),
a limited liability company established in the PRC, for an aggregate sum
of RMB3,346,073,000 (the "Acquisition Consideration”); and the Group
has conditionally agreed to transfer and procure the transfer to Hanjiang
the entire issued share capital of Cheerocean Investments Limited (8%
KEABMRRAT], an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
for the sum of RMB960,000,000 (the “Cheerocean Consideration”). The
balance, being the difference between the Acquisition Consideration
and the Cheerocean Consideration, payable by the Group to Hanjiang
will be settled by the issue of up to 204,925,468 new shares of the
Company to Mr. Chu at the issue price of HK$14.62 per share. In return
for the share issue, Mr. Chu has covenanted to the Group to pay the said
balance to Hanjiang on or before completion of the aforesaid transactions.
Pursuant to the Panyu Agreement, subject to the maximum liability of
RMB3,600,000,000, Mr. Chu has agreed to guarantee the due and
punctual performance by Hanjiang of its obligations in relation to certain
lands located between the south side of Zhujiang River bank of Nan Village
Town and the north side of South Road in Panyu District of Guangdong
Province with a total site area of approximately 1,511 Chinese acres under
the Panyu Agreement. Hanjiang, a company owned by the brother of Mr.
Chu as to 90 percent and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu as to 10 percent,
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Mr. Chu,
being the controlling shareholder and chairman of the board of Directors
of the Company, is also a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

On 2nd November 2009, the Group, through Hopeson, entered into a
share purchase agreement with Jumbo Advance Investment Limited (§8
BIREAFR AT (“Jumbo Advance”) whereby the Group has agreed to
dispose of 51% of the entire issued share capital in Nam Fong Guangzhou
Plaza Limited (F 5 Mi55E35 B R A 7)), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, at a consideration of RMB254,902,000. Jumbo Advance,
which is indirectly wholly-owned by the sister of Mr. Chu, is a connected

person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

In respect of the continuing connected transactions and connected
transactions, the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules in force from time to time.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)
Mr. Xiang Bin (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Chen Chang Ying (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 21st January 2010)
Mr. Xue Hu (appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 22nd March 2010)

Mr. Au Wai Kin
Ms. Zhao Ming Feng (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing

(appointed on 21st January 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David

Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Xiang Bin, Mr. Xue
Hu and Ms. Zhao Ming Feng retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all the Directors appointed
by the Directors during the year retire at the annual general meeting next
following their appointment. Accordingly, Mr. Liao Ruo Qing retires from
office and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of the
independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip,
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver, and considers
them to be independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 41 to the accompanying financial statements,
no other contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled
entity or holding company was a party and in which any of the Company’s
Directors had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st December 2009, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in shares

Number of shares of the Company

ESTHRE

EERGRN2ER
BRI BERE B RS SRR M EE 41 FTIRER S - A A
R B AN B A R E RS R -

EARABREIMMBRR - BERE -
IR B B SRR AR AR AN A B

EBBRH L EMEARNTIHEEN R -

EERTRARIRKRSD - HERSD
REZEEZEBER KR

RZZZNF+ZA=1+—8  ARRES
RATBHEEBIRE S KA E G0 #FH K
i"iflﬂﬁlJJ)%XV“B%7&%8n-E‘BE%IJ%ZSA

RES AT E A AR R R e B B EE
(E%Zﬁ 5 R EIE GBI EXVED) 2 B in
BERN RESFTEE 2Btk R (BIF
BIEFEH LRI ZZEREHERBK
BAERE 2Ok E) - S AS ARE
BHELREIEDIE3521ET UFE 2 B
A SRR ETEITAZRETELRRSH
RAESF A ([1RXESFRI ) A MG AR 7] R

Rz BEmTORB T ¢

REGzHR

Approximate

EARRGBHE percentage

Personal Family Corporate Other of shares

Name of directors interests interests interests interests Total  outstanding

HERTRG

Exps B AR RikED DEAER Hitigz BREIL

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (@) K&K A() - - 915,542,346 - 915,542,346 57.50%

Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) BUEE L) - - 34,500,000 - 34,500,000 2.17%
Notes: Biat -

KERECEBBEZERBZ ARINEE
X¥ERAARBETREG(REAN)BR
NEEEARRARFG,542,346% %17 °

a. Mr. Chu Mang Yee held 915,542,346 shares of the Company through a.
Sounda Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him, and HKSCC
Nominees Limited.

BERTEBBETERB RIEFIZ AR
#5872 7F)34,500,0008% 8515 ©

b. Mr. Au Wai Kin held 34,500,000 shares of the Company through a company b.
wholly-owned and controlled by him.
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ESTHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2009, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company and their respective associates had
any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or any of their spouses
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, and no Directors or chief executives or their respective spouses
or children under 18 years of age had been granted any right to subscribe
for equity or debt securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” above, as at 31st December 2009, according to the
register of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO,
the following entity had interests or short positions in the shares of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and

3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Capacity and nature

Name of shareholder of interests

RREMHE SO RESRME

Beneficial owner

EmEEA

Sounda Properties Limited
EBEEERAT

issued shares

EERITHRARNRSG - HERSG
REZEA BB KR @)

BREXEBEEN RZTZThF+=A
=+—H ARFEF  THEHSEES
BBMEABMENREZESRAEKRIIE
XVEBEET R B85 Bl A5 & AN A 7 R Bk A2 PRy
BRARAR RS HAAMAREE(EERF
FRHEEOIEXVER) 2kt - HHRERG 5
BEHEREEEREA - RKik - AR SHHEME
@R E (BIEREIEFRABKRIZZE
REWRRIEIERE 2 ERIKE) K
WAH NIRRT 75 S B E 1A ZE 35216 T LA
FEZELMA - ‘MEH’ETTETE'J%\Z Pl
RATRER T2 ERMEA - Kik - AR
HihEmske -

0|

REREFAIRRE  ARFSHEEFHEAT
WERT S RHE - MR E SRS 2 ]
B T\FA T FREEEBBEAAT]
SAEMEMEABR B S ESMiehE
@ TEEFRRITREHARESB 2R
F+N\BRA T FREEREAERIARB R
RABRNJEFEFRCITEZEER -

FERR

B B ZE S RITHAERRY - BERD
REFEBZETZRAR | —HHFEOERE
I RZBTZNF+TZA=+—H8  &ERQ
AIRIRE H R IR EHIF 33616 FE 2 &%
ATRLEE - THIEERARBIRMDFHERIR
BES KB GRIIEXVEE2RE3H A
AR FIRE ROk R

Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares outstanding
BT HEBRITRG
RGEE BABE D

915,542,346 57.50%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other persons
who, as at 31st December 2009, had interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted on
4th November 2002. The following table is a summary of the Scheme
disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the Scheme

ZatEIE &Y

2. Participants of the Scheme

Zatdlz28m%E

3. Total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme and
percentage of issued share capital
as at 22nd March 2010
REZET SR B TR 4R 8 %
RZE-—TF=A=-+=HEE
BEIIRAA D

4. Maximum entitlement of each
participant under the Scheme
RIEZEIGR2BETRERZ
BEe R A

5. The period within which the shares
must be taken up under an option

RITERRRER B < IR

FERRE)

B ESUREESN  REEMA - BEEAE
HMALTRZZEZNFTZA=+—BREAR
Al EE (F & R ESH R EE
EXVED) 2 fn - BERGONEST - BB
RIEFES M EEIRHIEXVEE2REIDE
BRARAIFEEZERIRE ©

BREINESR
ARR B E (%8 DR =TT
FH—AWBRS - RIF LR ZET S
MBI EFTER DT

As recognition of the contribution of the participants by granting options to
them as incentives or rewards.

A2EERTEEEURGRENER - WAL ERE & @8 -

Any executive, employee, director (including non-executive director and
independent non-executive director), consultant, adviser and/or agent of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

RARSEFRMBATZITRAL - EE -
FMITEER) - FERA - BERRHRIEA -

Ex (BREFNTESEREY

100,200,000 shares unless shareholders’ approval has been obtained
pursuant to the terms of the Scheme (approximately 5.72% of issued share
capital).

BRIEBIRZ A B IR AR BLE - B RI43100,200,0008% (15 E BEITARAS
#)5.72%) -

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of share
options already granted or to be granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital
as at the date of grant. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the rules of the Scheme.

BESEECEMNEEZREBAE (BFEEH) -+ EAPRRNER ZER
BT LATERRAETREETZRNEE (BRETEREARTENBER

) THEANELERASEITRA %  E— RO EABRLREL
BRE - AETHAEIRAARTRZETIRE -

Commencing on the date of grant of an option and expiring at 5:00 p.m. on
the earlier of the business day preceding the fifth anniversary thereof and the
business day preceding the tenth anniversary of the day on which the Scheme
was adopted.

BERERL RHEEZRE BAFERAF Y F—(AE% BB RNZtE
FHEFZ F—EEXE URFEERE) TFRAKIEER -
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INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BREESINESR 2)
6.  The minimum period for which Completion of half year’s full-time services with the Company or a subsidiary.
an option must be held before RARA RS —REWBAREI T F 2R o

it can be exercised

ANTIE RSB BB 2 &S HRR

7. The amount payable on Nil
application or acceptance of i
the option and the period
within which payments or
calls must or may be made or
loans for such purpose must
be paid
PR AA SR BB ARt 2 FE IR 2 BB IA
RAT RSB A TR 2 BAPR (82
BB E TR BR

8. The basis of determining The exercise price is determined by the board of Directors and shall at least
the exercise price be the highest of:
BETHEIEE THEEREESET - THRENATZES

a.  the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of the relevant
options;

RIEHAERBRES B AR ARORB A8 RHRER ZKWHIE

b.  the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the relevant options;
REZRHEEBREE A AT LS X B AR ERN OB H &R
BR 2 FHWHIE :

c.  the net asset value per share as determined in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and with reference to the
latest published audited financial statements in the annual report or the
latest published unaudited accounts in the interim report (whichever is
more recent) of the Group on the date of offer of the relevant options;
and
IR EBERES R RREBBVBRSEAFET2ELRNEER
TEATIEE 2 FRAKE RN BRE IS TE 2 P HRERNREE
RERBABUAHE RE) METEREETE &

d.  the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

RNRREMEIE °

9.  The remaining life of the Scheme The Scheme was adopted on 4th November 2002 and will expire at 5:00 p.m.

ZaTE| R R HARR on the business day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof.
ZAER TR F+ - AWNBRMN - ERETEFRc E—EAZERTF
FRFIEARIE o
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. However, the Group experienced no significant foreign exchange
movement and the Directors do not anticipate any significant foreign
exchange loss as a result of changes in exchange rate between United

States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi in the foreseeable future.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into

or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2009, the Group, excluding its associate and jointly
controlled entity, employed a total of 6,816 (as at 31st December 2008:
7,884) staff, the majority of which were deployed in mainland China.
Employees’ costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$401
million (2008: HK$449 million) for the year ended 31st December 2009.

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive
scheme is to link total compensation of executive Directors, senior
management and employees with the achievement of the Group’s annual
and long-term corporate goals and objectives. Remuneration package is
performance-based and takes into account business performance, market
practice and competitive market conditions in order to attract, motivate
and retain talent. The remuneration package of Executive Directors and
senior management comprises salaries, bonuses, discretionary bonus and

other benefits-in-kind.

Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly represent
their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee
meetings. The recommended remuneration package of the independent
Non-executive Directors comprises annual director’s fee and fee for

representation on board committees.

The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year is set out in
Note 31 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance and
Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

SN B

REBZEBRABARE  WAARES
MRARER  AmMARZ AREYETR
B ZERRR - AT AEEWEIE T
REAINERE) - MEETENEA R 2K
MAgREET BT ARE 2 EXZESH
EEERINERIE -

EEAH
FR - ARFLBAERAETESROE
BAER S SFEERRITHAL ©

==
R-ZEAF+-A=+—8  KEE(T
EEABEAAREREHER) ARES

H6816A(ZETNF+_A=+—0:
7,884 N)  HRRZEATBEAMES -
BHEZZZNF+-_A=1t—HLEFE &
B (BIEESBIS)EA401,000,000% 7T
TZ )\ : 449,000,000587T) °
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R BN S B R B 2 EABUR R HTT
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ESTHRE

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION AND SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31st
December 2009.

Subsequent to 31st December 2009, the Company repurchased
25,462,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company on the
Stock Exchange, details of which are as follows:

Number
of shares

Month of repurchase

repurchased

AT BERGEE

February 2010 25,462,000

—E-TFA

The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of the repurchased shares which had been cancelled. The premium
paid for the repurchase of the shares and related expenses totaling
HK$267,752,000 were charged to the share premium account.

The repurchase of shares was effected by the Directors pursuant to the
general mandate approved by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 16th June 2009, with a view to
benefiting shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value per
share and earnings per share of the Group.

On 2nd February 2010, the Company redeemed the full amount of its
US$ settled zero coupon convertible bonds due 2010 in the principal
amount of RMB1,830,400,000 at an aggregate price of approximately
US$280,418,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 104 to 112 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

Highest price
paid per share

ENERESE
(HK$)

(&7)

11.00

BE BERLEXRFAZLEHE
o)
BE-ZTAF+ A=+ BUFE &
RARAETHERFVEEHE - BERH
ERDEEF LIRS

R-BEAF+_A=+—H0%  ~AAFAE
B <2 P B8 [0 25,462,000 A% AN A B B AN AR & i
H{BE0.108 T2 %ty - BEEFFIBEWNT

Aggregate

consideration

Lowest price (excluding
expenses)
BE
(FEFEFX)
(HK$)

(B7T)

paid per share

ENERREE
(HK$)
(B7T)

10.18 269,402,280

AR BEITIRAC BLATE B B SEA D
EMEMHEE - BhEER M 2% E KA
Bk & 3£267,752,000/8 T 2 5 A RN % B
E.Eo

BOROTDAEERERRN_ZTAFX
ATRBBITZARRBAF RS LA
Z—RERETT EEEBRTAEEER
BEFELBERBNMREERRE KA

N3
ZS o
iy

MoE—TE - A0 KOTAERLY
280,418,000k T2 HEEER T —FTF
B HAAR &5 A A R #51,830,400,000 7T 2 A
ELENTEARRES -

TEER
ERARBMRAEELEERER TS
HARFRE104E112H »

ERABERE
RERRBA ARG ZERRBEESEH
o BEER NRAREBEFERNZAR
FIRENA EMRAFRENRTF -
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EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(@ On 2nd February 2010, the Group repaid the RMB1,830,400,000
aggregate principal amount of USD settled Zero Coupon Convertible
Bonds at 104.49% of the nominal value, of approximately
US$280,418,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,914,415,000).

(b) On 4th March 2010, the Group entered into a land transfer
agreement with Kunshan State Land Resources Bureau for a piece
of land situated at both sides of Ying Zhou Lu and the south
of Xin Tang He, Zhoushi Zhen, Kunshan city with a site area of
approximately 292,140.4 square metres. The total consideration of
the transaction is approximately HK$879,741,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB774,172,000).

(€0 On 16th March 2010, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited
("Panyu Zhujiang”) and the disposal of 100% equity interest in
Cheerocean Investments Limited (“Cheerocean”) with Guangdong
Hanjiang Construction Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”), a
related company. The balance, being the difference between the
consideration of the acquisition and the disposal, in the sum of
RMB2,386,073,000 was settled by means of share issuance on 16th
March 2010 in favour of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman), who, in
return, has undertaken to the Group to pay the balance to Hanjiang.
It is estimated that the completion will result in an estimated net
gain after tax of approximately HK$855,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB753,000,000) to the Group.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
Company'’s auditor for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of Directors

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective corporate governance will continue to
improve transparency, risk controls and ultimately enhance shareholders’

value.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code") as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) during year 2009, except that the non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for specific terms and the Chairman of
the Board did not attend the annual general meeting for year 2009 due to

other business commitment.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code"”) as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company, that they fully complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout year 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six executive and three independent non-
executive directors, whose biographical details are set out in the Directors’
Profile section on pages 68 to 71 which demonstrate a balance of core
competence having regard to the business of the Group. Pursuant
to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and their re-election is subject to a vote of shareholders at the
annual general meeting. The Board believes that the independent non-
executive directors, with diversified backgrounds and industry skills, shall
offer experience, independent judgment and advice on issues relating to
strategy, performance, conflict of interest and the overall management
of the Company such that the interests of all shareholders are considered

and safeguarded.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group and its business by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. It oversees the Group'’s strategic development, and determines the
objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The Board also monitors
and controls operating and financial performance in pursuit of the Group'’s
strategic objectives. The Board members have access to timely information
in relation to the Group’s business and make further enquires when
necessary. The Board has also agreed that directors may seek independent
professional advice on issues related to the Group’s business at the
Group's expenses.The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover

in respect of legal actions against its directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. There was no such relationship
as between Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the Chairman of the Company, and
Mr. Chen Chang Ying, the Chief Executive Officer throughout the year
2009. Mr. Chen resigned from the Board on 21st January 2010 and was
succeeded by Mr. Xue Hu as the Chief Executive Officer on 22nd March
2010.

All independent non-executive directors have offered sufficient time
and efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company and possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related
management experience and have contributed to the Board with their

professional opinion.

Of the three independent non-executive directors at least one has
appropriate financial management expertise in compliance with the Listing
Rules. Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence, and the Board considers these
directors to be independent under the guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Four Board committees, namely the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Option Shares Committee and the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee have been established
to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The Board has
delegated the execution and daily operations of the Group’s business to
the management. However, clear directions are given to the management
as to the matters that must be approved by the Board before decisions are

made on behalf of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Nine full Board meetings were held during year 2009 at which the
directors considered and approved significant matters including, among
other things, interim and final results of the Group, statutory financial
reports as well as acquisition of land sites and investments. Mr. Xue Hu
attended eight such Board meetings, Mr. Chen Chang Ying, Mr. Au Wai
Kin, Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver attended
seven Board meetings, Ms. Zhao Mingfeng attended five Board meetings,
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip attended four Board meetings, Mr. Xiang Bin
attended three Board meetings and Mr. Chu Mang Yee attended one
Board meeting.

Seventeen additional Board meetings were held during year 2009 for the
purposes of approving some operational matters such as approval of the
provision of guarantees by the Company in respect of bank loans granted
to the Company’s subsidiaries. Except for one such meeting which was
held by Mr. Chen Chang Ying and Mr. Xue Hu, the other sixteen meetings
were attended by all the executive directors.

Between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company
provides the directors with information on a timely basis regarding the
activities and developments in the businesses of the Group and meets
with the independent non-executive directors to seek their views on the
business and operational matters of the Group.

The company secretary keeps detailed minutes of each meeting which are
available for inspection by all directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The three independent non-executive directors are not appointed for a
specific term. This constitutes a deviation from Code provision A.4.1 with
respect to the appointment of non-executive directors for a specific term
subject to re-election. However, all directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting
at least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, this meets the objective of the
Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The role of the Chairman was segregated from that of the Chief Executive
Officer during year 2009.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (Continued)

The Chairman was responsible for managing and providing leadership to
the Board in terms of formulating overall strategies, business directions
and policies of the Company. The Chairman was also responsible for
overseeing effective functions of the Board, application of good corporate
governance practices and procedures, and encouraged the directors
to make a full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board. With
the support of the executive directors and the company secretary, the
Chairman sought to ensure that all directors were properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and received complete and reliable information

in a timely manner.

The Chief Executive Officer was directly responsible for the day-to-day
management of the business of the Company, co-ordinating overall
business operations and maintaining the operational performance of the
Company. With the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, he ensured
that the funding requirements of the business were met and closely
monitored the operating and financial results against plans and budgets,
taking remedial action when necessary and advising the Board of any
significant developments and issues.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
assisting the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and retaining
directors and senior management of the highest caliber and experience
needed to develop the Group’s business successfully. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
directors and senior management of the Company and for determining
their remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip and has specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities and are posted
on the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

° formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

o establishing guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief Executive
Officer and senior management;

° recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors (including non-executive directors and the

Chief Executive Officer) and senior management;
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
. determination of the remuneration of executive directors and
senior management, including benefits in kind and compensation

payments;

o review and approval of the compensation arrangements in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to executive

directors and senior management;

o determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance,
and

o consideration of the annual performance bonus for executive
directors, senior management and general staff and making
recommendation to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee did not hold any meeting during 2009.
Written resolutions were however circulated amongst the members of the
Remuneration Committee to resolve on the remuneration of the executive

directors for the year 2009.

No director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
Remuneration of the independent non-executive directors in respect of
the year ended 31st December 2009 was approved by the shareholders of

the Company at the 2009 annual general meeting.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Group does not have a Nomination Committee. New directors, being
individuals who are suitably qualified and expected to make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board having regard to the balance
of skills and experience appropriate to the Company’s business, are
identified by existing directors and submitted to the Board for approval. A
director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election by shareholders at

the first annual general meeting after this appointment.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the fees payable to the Company’s auditor for audit and
audit related services amounted to HK$5,000,000 (2008: HK$5,000,000)

and no fee (2008: nil) was paid for non-audit services.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
directors. It was chaired by Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip. The Board is of
the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to discharge
their duties. However, the Audit Committee is authorised to obtain outside
legal or other independent professional advice if it considers necessary.
The Audit Committee has written terms of reference which are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Audit Committee
include:

° to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor and to consider the terms of such
appointments;

° to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

° to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual
and interim reports and the auditor’s report to ensure that the
information presents a true and balanced assessment of the Group's

financial position;

o to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an
effective internal control system;

° to review internal audit programme and to ensure that it is allocated

with adequate resources and is effective, and

o to review the external auditor’'s management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to the management and the

management’s response.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

In year 2009, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an assessment
of the Group’s internal control systems, business management and
preventions against fraud and other irregularities. With respect to
the results of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2009,
the Audit Committee reviewed with the senior management and the
external auditor of the Company, their respective audit findings, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal
control, risk management and financial reporting matters. This review
by the Audit Committee included an appraisal of the integrity of the
financial statements and the annual report of the Company. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the external auditor’s remuneration. There was
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the

selection, appointment or resignation of external auditor.

The Audit Committee reports its work, findings and recommendations to
the Board after each meeting. During the year 2009, there were two Audit
Committee meetings. Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Wong Shing Kay,
Oliver recorded full attendance in respect of such meetings while Mr.
Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip attended one meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES
In addition to the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee,
two other Board Committees have been established to assist the Board in

the execution of its duties.

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee
The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee
was established on 4th October 2005 and is presently comprised
of the three independent non-executive directors, and chaired by
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip. The primary function of the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee is to review all
connected transactions and related party transactions to ensure that
they are conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group and to recommend to the

Board corrective measures in such transactions if needed.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(2) Option Shares Committee
The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th November
2005 and is comprised of two executive directors. Its primary
function is to deal with the allotment and issue of shares of the
Company upon the exercise of options granted or to be granted
under the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 4th
November 2002.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. It is also responsible
for preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group's financial position on a going-concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. Management provides
the Board with the relevant information it needs to discharge these

responsibilities.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2009, the directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and have made judgement and estimates that

are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits of four months and three months respectively
after the end of the relevant financial periods, as laid down in the Listing

Rules.

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interests. The directors confirm that the Group, through its Internal Control
Department, performs regular checks on office procedures, practices and
systems to safeguard assets from inappropriate use, maintains proper
accounts and ensures compliance with regulations. The regular reviews
also cover all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group. The
Internal Control Department reports directly to the Group Supervisory
Committee which in turn reports independently to the Board. The Internal
Control Department is independent of all management functions of the
Group and has direct and independent access to the Board. Summaries of
major audit findings and control weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the
Audit Committee.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

In year 2009, no frauds and irregularities, internal control deficiencies or
infringement of laws, rules and regulations have come to the attention
of the Audit Committee to cause it to believe that the system of internal
controls is inadequate. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the

system of internal control of the Group.

Circulars or guidance notes were issued to directors where appropriate to
ensure that they are aware of their continuing obligations as directors and

corporate governance matters.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations
and communications with its investors. Communication have been
maintained with the media, analysts and fund managers through
meetings. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s

developments.

The Company provides detailed press releases and reports to its
shareholders on the Group’s business and financial positions with timely
annual report and interim report, to ensure that they are effectively
informed of the Group’s status and developments. General presentations
are made immediately after the announcement of financial results. The
website of the Group is also updated regularly to keep investors and the

general public informed of the latest development of the Group.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the directors to meet and
communicate with shareholders, providing a forum for the shareholders’
views to be communicated to the Board. Both directors and senior
management make an effort to attend. External auditors are also available
at the annual general meetings to address shareholders’ queries. Separate
resolutions are proposed for each issue considered at the annual general
meetings. The 2009 annual general meeting circular was distributed to
all shareholders not less than 20 clear business days prior to the annual
general meeting, setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting
procedures and other relevant information. The procedures for conducting
a poll were explained by the chairman presiding at the annual general

meeting at the beginning of the meeting.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

EORKESHMEHM

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 115 to
251, which comprise the balance sheets of the Company and the Group
as at 31st December 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated cash
flow statement and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
December 2009 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22nd March 2010
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BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Land costs

Prepayments for acquisition
of land

Properties and equipment

Investment properties

Properties under development
for long-term investment

Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in associates

Investment in a jointly
controlled entity

Loans to subsidiaries

Available-for-sale financial
assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Land costs

Prepayments for acquisition
of land

Properties under development
for sale

Completed properties for sale

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Accounts receivable

Other receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other current assets

Due from an associate

Due from related companies

Loans to subsidiaries

Pledged/charged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
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12
13
14

15
13

18
25

10
1

17
20
20

19
41
41
13
21
21

Consolidated

W]

2009
“2EhE
HK$'000
TER

AN
M=)

2008
—ZTN\EF
HK$'000
FHET

EERERXR

As at 31st December 2009 R-ZEZ/H#FE+—-H=4+—H

Company

AT

2009
“2EAE
HK$’000
FTER

2008
—TTN\EF
HK$'000
FHT

329,440 749,663 — —
266,962 | 2,436,630 — —
3,175,029 | 2,405,623 — —
8,378,105 | 2,856,094 — —
— 125,856 — —
120,660 120,455 — —
— — | 14,665,885 | 11,328,978
40,925 42,201 — —
1,188,692 801,240 — —
— — — 170,499
2,671,719 476,250 — —
191,287 173,378 — —
16,362,819 | 10,187,390 | 14,665,885 | 11,499,477
24,580,807 | 24,163,460 — —
7,363,482 | 6,142,999 — —
9,611,470 | 8,910,522 — —
4,199,930 | 4,806,954 — —
11,083 11,655 — —
146,895 72,577 — —
488,175 758,405 — —
1,131,951 770,163 224 199
29,365 26,538 — —
13,664 6,979 — —
— — 217,638 | 1,334,367
168,479 271,450 — —
6,546,144 | 2,142,696 21,303 785
54,291,445 | 48,084,398 239,165 | 1,335,351
70,654,264 | 58,271,788 | 14,905,050 | 12,834,828
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BALANCE SHEETS

BEERER

As at 31st December 2009 R-ZFZNF+—H=+—H

EQUITY B
Capital and reserves FRRRERFEA
attributable to the PEAL R A R 4
Company'’s equity holders
Share capital (RN
Reserves i
Minority interests DB s
Total equity ERAE
LIABILITIES af
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Land cost payable JEfS L3k AR
Borrowings BE
Due to minority shareholders e DB 2 FUR
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBEE
Current liabilities k=t
Accounts payable FERTARTR
Land cost payable AP Ee: %N
Borrowings &
Deferred revenue EIEA
Accruals and other payables FERT IR
Hin e 308
Due to an associate N —FEEERRZ
A

Due to related companies
Due to a jointly controlled

PR RE AR 2 30R
FEA — R R

entity a8
Current tax liabilities ABHIEEE
Total liabilities BEAR
Total equity and liabilities BEREEEE
Net current assets/(liabilities)  F@BEE (&E&)FE
Total assets less current BREERRBER

liabilities

CHU MANG YEE
KA
Director

EF

27
28

23

24

41
41

41
26

Consolidated Company
&E NG
2009 2008 2009 2008
SBRAE  —TT\F ZBEAFE —TTN\F
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FHET FHT
159,237 147,237 159,237 147,237
28,034,506 | 20,032,657 | 9,845,968 | 7,949,909
28,193,743 | 20,179,894 | 10,005,205 | 8,097,146
2,305,733 | 2,384,179 — —
30,499,476 | 22,564,073 | 10,005,205 | 8,097,146
271,028 106,173 — —
10,116,598 | 12,330,211 2,676,697 | 4,685,439
419,411 49,983 — —
4,502,743 | 3,890,102 — —
15,309,780 | 16,376,469 | 2,676,697 | 4,685,439
2,941,424 | 2,933,721 — —
302,418 323,696 - —
6,232,260 | 4,262,798 | 2,169,685 —
7,260,538 | 4,458,379 — —
1,728,752 | 2,249,864 37,146 38,313
6,269 6,258 — —
173,721 174,920 — —
1,842,289 759,380 - —
4,357,337 | 4,162,230 16,317 13,930
24,845,008 | 19,331,246 | 2,223,148 52,243
40,154,788 | 35,707,715 4,899,845 4,737,682
70,654,264 | 58,271,783 | 14,905,050 | 12,834,828
29,446,437 | 28,753,152 | (1,983,983) | 1,283,108
45,809,256 | 38,940,542 | 12,681,902 | 12,782,585
XUE HU
RER
Director
EBE

The notes on pages 123 to 251 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

F1232251 A 2 M R B IRKRE G —
#Bin o
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mERER

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —ZEZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZE

2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Revenues Wz 5 11,225,246 10,774,624
Cost of sales SHERA 30 (6,557,985) (5,915,976)
Gross profit EF 4,667,261 4,858,648
Fair value gains on investment BEMEATENE
properties 4,700,097 34,076
Other gains, net Hiblizs - 558 29 734,033 265,395
Selling and marketing costs HE RIS HERER A 30 (378,757) (389,348)
General and administrative expenses — —f& &7 E R 30 (995,041) (690,877)
Operating profit BERF 8,727,593 4,077,894
Finance income BRI 32 13,551 12,376
Finance costs B SRR AN 32 (333,639) (226,765)
Share of profit less loss of associates {54 A B&F R E 18 14 (1,346) (33)
Share of profit/(loss) of a jointly DE—RIE T A= T,
controlled entity (E548) 15 385,759 (1,710)
Profit before taxation R B BT S ) 8,791,918 3,861,762
Taxation BiiE 33 (2,699,383) (1,912,812)
Profit for the year FEEF 6,092,535 1,948,950
Attributable to: e
Equity holders of the Company RARIIERE A 34 5,799,573 1,963,724
Minority interests DER R R 292,962 (14,774)
6,092,535 1,948,950
Earnings per share for profit BREAKRDTREZTEA
attributable to equity EBhaFTEZ2ESRER
holders of the Company €=1.'%: v
during the year
(in HKS per share)
— basic — &K 35 3.77 1.33
— diluted — s 35 3.69 1.33
Dividends s 36 146,498 294,621

The notes on pages 123 to 251 are an integral part of these financial F123E251 B2 AL M IS HREE+H —
statements. BB -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EEBARR

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #tZE —EFE N F1 = A=+—HILFE

Profit for the year FERF

Other comprehensive income Hib2mEKA

Fair value gain/(loss) on A ENKEEA AR
available-for-sale financial assets (E548)

Deferred tax for fair value gain/(loss) At H & B EE A FEK
on available-for-sale financial assets (B18) 2 BIEFIIE
Asset revaluation reserve realised upon HEHIEHEMEREREE

disposal of properties held for sales 1k EEE 28
Deferred tax for asset revaluation HEFIEREYEREREE

reserve realised upon disposal EhFEEZEERE

of properties held for sales
Currency translation differences EHETE H 2B
Other comprehensive income FEHMZEKA > NRFEER

for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income FEZHWBWALE
for the year

Total comprehensive income THALTEEZERALE:
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RRAFRIERSEA A
Minority interests DERRR R

2009 2008
—BERE —TIN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
6,092,535 1,948,950
1,082,325 (20,513)
(84,879) 5,128
(282,222) (546,921)
131,985 220,864
92,369 1,472,375
939,578 1,130,933
7,032,113 3,079,883
6,735,283 2,923,687
296,830 156,196
7,032,113 3,079,883

The notes on pages 123 to 251 are an integral part of these financial F123E251 B2 AL M IS HRERE R —

statements. BB o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

GERERNER

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —ZEZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZE

2009 2008
—EERE —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash flows from operating REFHREKE
activities
Cash generated from operations KEEE RS 37(a) 6,251,936 875,222
Interest received SA =) 13,551 12,376
Hong Kong profits tax RE(BRHBEBFEH
refunded/(paid) 2,678 (2,047)
Mainland China corporate BB RESEAMEH
income tax paid (1,301,248) (580,815)
Mainland China land appreciation BB R RE T IS E R
tax paid (186,234) (114,866)
Net cash from operating activities KRB ELE 2 IS F5E 4,780,683 189,870
Cash flows from investing BETBHESRE
activities
Additions of properties and YN E Y]
equipment (856,999) (277,983)
Proceeds from disposal of certain HE B AT
equity interest in a subsidiary B TR PTG HIE 5,561 —
Dividend income fi& 2N 31,313 —
Additions of an available-for-sale BAREEMEEE
financial asset (1,112,197) —
Additions of properties under BABERBIKREZ
development for long-term BERAME
investment (24,357) (87,034)
Additions of investment properties EAZRERLEYE
under development (342,555) —
Decrease in deposit paid [RENE& 0 44,261 340,632
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB A R — (801,096)
Proceeds from disposal of L EM B A RS HRIEA
subsidiaries 37(b) 212,837 —
Capital injection to a jointly m—EEREH BT E
controlled entity — (71,548)
Increase in other receivables A FE R IEIE N — (59,957)
Advanced payment for acquisition U BB RS AN 2k 2 TS FR0E
of equity interests — (12,337)
Advanced payment for acquisition W+ EREIIRE 2
of land for long-term investment TEFRIA (266,891) (550,925)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts FEWERE AT FIEGL ), SR
due from related companies (8,163) 36,773
(Increase)/decrease in pledged/ B IR IRI T
charged bank deposits () R (7,293) 25,974
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHFTA RS S5 (2,324,483) (1,457,501)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

GERERER

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #tZE —EFE N F1 = A=+—HILFE

Cash flows from financing

activities

New short-term bank loans

Repayments of short-term
bank loans

New long-term bank loans

Repayment of long-term
bank loans

Repayments to an associate

Advance from a minority
shareholder

Advances from a jointly controlled
entity

Interest paid

Net proceeds from share placements
Capital contributions from minority

interest of subsidiaries
Dividends paid to a minority
shareholder

Dividends paid to Company’s equity

holders

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Exchange gain on cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

MEFH2RERE

B HRTTE
EREHIRITER

g R EIRTTE R
ERRHIRITER

BE - E R RFUR

— R DBBIRER
— I RES B RN

BERHE
BTN ZF S FOR
MEAR LB RERNE

KT —HBLBRRZBE

IR T ARBIBRERAAZE

BMEEDHELZ R FH
RERREEEY 2 BMFR
FUHRE MRS EEY

RAelkAeFEYEL S

FRRE MRS EEY

The notes on pages 123 to 251 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

2009
=E 1 PE

HK$°000
TET

2008
—ETN\F
HK$'000
THTT

124,838 950,821
(736,608) (806,174)
6,411,204 6,661,238
(5.376,865) (3,967,291)
(2,779) (2,185)
155,600 49,983
1,080,695 —
(993,077) (1,017,469)
1,579,663 —
—_ 14,056
(1,722) —
(301,097) (611,180)
1,939,852 1,271,799
4,396,052 4,168
2,142,696 1,985,055
7,396 153,473
6,546,144 2,142,696

F1232251 B2 AL SRR EH—

#Bin o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEREmEER

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #Z —ZEZENF+ - HA=+—HIFFZE

Attributable to equity

holders of the Company

ERRRERE AEN
Share Minority

capital Reserves interests Total
DHRR

R fitfe g st

HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FBT FET

Balance at 1st January 2008 R-ZEENF—A—Hz&H% 147,237 17,717,146 2,213,927 20,078,310
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF/(EB) — 1,963,724 (14,774) 1,948,950
Other comprehensive income: Hitn2EWA ¢
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AR ENKEEY
financial asset NFEBE — (20,513) — (20,513)
Realised upon disposal of properties & EHEYEREIE
held for sales (Note 28) (PffzE28) — (546,921) — (546,921)
Deferred tax ERER IR — 225,992 — 225,992
Currency translation differences EHETE 1 58 — 1,301,405 170,970 1,472,375
Other comprehensive income FEAEMZEEA
for the year, net of tax HIBRIE — 959,963 170,970 1,130,933
Total comprehensive income FETEWALTE
for the year — 2,923,687 156,196 3,079,883
Share-based payment VAR 1D B ELRE 2 (B 1
(Share options granted) (BRI ERE) - 3,004 - 3,004
Contribution from minority B LR DHRE
shareholders of subsidiaries & — — 14,056 14,056
Dividends paid EAERE — (611,180) — (611,180)
— (608,176) 14,056 (594,120)
Balance at 31st December 2008 RZZTENEF
T-A=t+—B2&% 147,237 20,032,657 2,384,179 22,564,073
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERERSER

For the year ended 31st December 2009 #tZE —EFE N F1 = A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity

holders of the Company
ERRRERE AEN
Share Minority

capital Reserves interests Total
DHBRR

[ ik i 5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TET TR TET

Balance at 1st January 2009 RZZTZNF—F—B2Z&% 147,237 20,032,657 2,384,179 22,564,073
Profit for the year FEEF — 5,799,573 292,962 6,092,535
Other comprehensive income: HivZ2EMA -
Fair value gain on available-for-sale At HEHBKEE Y

financial assets NS — 1,082,325 — 1,082,325
Realised upon disposal of properties  HEREL EMERER

held for sales (Note 28) (Hiz%28) — (282,222) — (282,222)
Deferred tax RIEFTE — 47,106 — 47,106
Currency translation differences EHETE N AR — 88,501 3,868 92,369
Other comprehensive income FEHEMEEEA -

for the year, net of tax HBRTIE — 935,710 3,868 939,578
Total comprehensive income FEZARALBEE

for the year — 6,735,283 296,830 7,032,113

Proceeds from issue of shares, net of 317 Z TG EIE

share issue expenses — Placements BRI %17 —BLE 12,000 1,567,663 — 1,579,663
Disposal of certain equity interest & —FENE A RS TIE

in a subsidiary — — 5,697 5,697
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT — — (379,251) (379,251)
Dividends paid BRRE — (301,097) (1,722) (302,819)

12,000 1,266,566 (375,276) 903,290

Balance at 31st December 2009 S
=t—Bz&& 159,237 28,034,506 2,305,733 30,499,476

The notes on pages 123 to 251 are an integral part of these financial F123E251 B2 AL IS HRERE+H —
statements. e o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) is mainly engaged in the
development of residential properties in Mainland China. The
Group is also involved in some ancillary property related businesses,
including property investment, hotel operations and property
management.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 22nd March 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the two years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

In 2009, the Group adopted the following new or revised
standards, amendments and interpretations of HKFRS, which
are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2009 and relevant to the Group's operations.

—REH
BHERAREBERAR(ARR ] R
HIfB AR (MM AKE ) EZRF
BARENEEEMEER - AEET
SEIHMERBHRBEES - 85ED
ERE  BERERMEEE

ARG RRBRETIMERINER
EERA A =gt »
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

ARAREBYERSHERAF
(B3 ) £ - A A BB RAT
K_F-TE-ZA-I_AGEFE
TS -

TEETHRME
REAESVBRERAZEEESR
BEREINMT - RAZABRAI %
ERRENMEZRFENESRE
-

2.1 mEEE
KRR FEMBHRERMKRBE
PSS RS AR ([ BB 15 R
HEADRE - Rir & B 5 H®
KNEREKABEORR - I
LR ATEFEZEM/IREYD
¥ IHEEVBEERKZR
FEERERINKZMFEEE

4T -

BARBMBRE LRI
BERBFERAETERZ 285
et FEREEERERAR
SEEHBRRZBRETHELH
B o W RE S HIEHREMEZ
HE - REAGE T BIREM
EBREZZERREMF EE
FFEAR I EE -

RZZENEF - ARERAA
TRZFTFAF-A—H=HZ
B E AT I AR AL
BEGAEBIBEAVBREE
AFTRT B RTER » BAT AR
Mpake o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE#ME®)

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 mBEEE)
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial BESHENEIT  BHHRRIET
Statements (&)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs BESHENENE HEERL
(&)
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments BENBRELN  HENY
EX
HK(FRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction EEERNBEE BERMEZL
of Real Estate 2EZE9) i
-REEH
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a BANBRELN  R-REWBAR . LR
Amendments Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled SIRRERES  AHERIMELT
Entity or Associate BRIETRBTR)  ZRARA
HKFRS 7 Amendment Improving Disclosure about BRMBHEER  ERIERE ME
Financial Instruments ETR(BITR)
HKFRSs Amendments Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 ERORMEEN  —TT)\EEENE
(BETH) A

The effect of the adoption of these new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations are detailed below:

HKAS 1 (Revised)—Presentation of Financial Statements:
The standard required all non-owner changes in equity (i.e.
comprehensive income) to be presented in a single statement
of comprehensive income or in two statements (a separate
income statement and a statement of comprehensive income).
The Group has chosen to adopt the two statements approach
and a new consolidated statement of comprehensive income is
included after the consolidated income statement.

HKFRS 8—Operating Segments: HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS
14—Segment Reporting. The new standard uses a
‘management approach’, under which segment information
is presented on the same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes. There is no change in the business lines
or geographical classification but they have been combined
for presentation. Therefore there are certain changes in the
presentation and disclosure of information of the reportable
segments as a result of the adoption of this standard.

HKFRS 7 Amendment—Improving Disclosure above Financial
Instruments: The amendment requires enhanced disclosures
about fair value measurement and liquidity risk, in particular
the disclosures of fair value measurement by level of fair value
measurement hierarchy. The adoption of this amendment
results in additional disclosures.

SR A 1 %5 T 3T AR 4 T
B RREY PESRNT

R ENFE 1R EIERT) —
MBmEz 25 ZEABE
FrEREE NERZE(B2H
WA)ER — 1 2ERATRERK
MK (BUIIERR N EEW
ABREK)PIHHR - AEREDIEE
2IMP|ME - —DIRER
HRARKRENFABERRLZ
%o

BN E LRI — L E
DEb - BB E LR FEIR
RREBSTEF 145 -9
B|mE - EARABIEEER
# | By BE R TR IR B A AL
REMEAZEREEZT -
7 K& ) JAD (]

BESS25 - Bt - BREK
MULZEER > MmO B2 2
FIRIRBEERHIRE TR -

BAMBREERFETHR (BT
)-SR TAWE Z80E © It
RIERTRERIEME B A FE
AERRBETARCKES
B FRIRRAFEAZER
IKFE D 2 AP ERERES
H o KRBT EBARIN
FHEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R M R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE#ME®)

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEEE)
HKAS 40 Amendment—Investment property: The Group BEBGFEAFA% (BE]
adopted this amendment with prospective application from ) -—REME - REBER®A
1st January 2009. Properties being constructed or developed LIBETWIRATE — ST NF
for future use as investment properties are brought within —A—BRBER - BE %
the scope of HKAS 40 and are reclassified from land costs EAEBRIREDMEZ MER
and properties under development for long-term investment MAB BT ERIFE4057 8 E
to investment properties at 1st January 2009 at their carrying W WERAIEE ZERTY
amounts and are then measured at fair value. (RLHMKEAR_EZENEFE—
B—HEMHEMK @ HEiE
NPERE -
The effect of the changes following the adoption of HKAS 40 BB ERIZE 4058 (&
Amendment on the consolidated income statement for the AR MEBHEHE —_TTNEF
year ended 31st December 2009 is as follows: TZA=T-BLEFEZHEE

BRERIFENT

HKAS 40
Amendment
EHBETHE
SE405% (BRI &)
HK$°000
FER
Increase/(decrease) in profit for the year FREFEI, CRd)
Fair value gains on investment properties WEYENFERE 4,697,956
Profit before taxation BB A A 4,697,956
Taxation iia
Deferred tax FEEFIE (1,174,489)
Profit for the year F 5 A 3,523,467
Attributable to: FEAG
Equity holders of the Company RARIRIERB A 3,208,948
Minority interests DHRE R 314,519
3,523,467
Earnings per share (HK$) BREF(ET)
Basic HA 2.08
Diluted e 2.00
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
The effect of the changes following the adoption of HKAS
40 Amendment on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st

December 2009 is as follows:

TEEHBEBE®)

21 mBEEE)
KBS FHERF 4058 (25T
R)MESHR_TENF+=
A=t—Rz&GeB8EEEX

BT
HKAS 40
Amendment
EH G EL
F405% (5T A)
HK$’000
FH& T
Increase/(decrease) #hn, Gl

Land costs TR A (3,472,600)
Investment properties HEYE 8,378,105

Properties under development for FIERIRE 2 HEPME
long-term investment (203,549)
Total assets BEE 4,701,956
Reserves 1 3,211,679
Minority interests DHRRER 314,787
Total equity AT 3,526,466
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBAE 1,175,490
Total equity and liabilities m N B EERE 4,701,956

The adoption of other new or revised standards, amendments
and interpretations does not have a significant effect on the

results and financial position of the Group.

BRANELAD TR A MERT R
CHENESSIRN SETES PN
MR L BEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEESHBEMEw)
(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)
Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing MAREMZER - HEFEHR
standards that are not yet effective ZRBRIERT

ARG AGD RMETHE
REBBWP ] EIERTE
ERIARRE  HER_-F
ZhF-A—BRBZEFTH
fel 1) R 2B R 7 A 5 B 3P R 5 2
BRAR o

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued certain new/revised standards, amendments and
interpretations which are not effective for accounting periods a -
beginning on 1st January 2009, and the Group has not early
adopted.

Effective for
accounting periods

New or revised standards, interpretations and amendments

beginning on or after

RUT S HEER
M SRETER  RERIERT HERBREXR
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 1st January 2011
BAGFERIFE 245 (FIET) BEATHE —E2—%F—-H—H
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1st July 2009
B GERE275 (BERT) A BV M B —ZENELA—H
HKAS 32 Amendment Classification of Right Issues 1st February 2010
BB EEE32R(EFTAR) "l —T-TF-R—H
HKAS 39 Amendment Financial Instruments: Recognition and 1st July 2009
Measurement — Eligible hedged items
BRGHENE395E (BETA) SRMIE : BRKEE—AERYHIER —ZEThF+A—H
HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial 1st July 2009
Reporting Standards
BRUBHREENE RSB BRARME BN T IREER “ZThFLR—H
HKFRS 1 Amendment Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters 1st January 2010
BRUBHREENEIRUETTAR) BRERMNE 2 BIMNER —E2-Z2F-H-H
HKFRS 1 Amendment Limited Exemption from comparative HKFRS 7 1st July 2010
— Disclosures for First time Adopters
AEMBREENE T (EETAR) AHEBEBFBRELNETH - BRRNERE L —Z-TF+A—H
BREIFHE
HKFRS 2 Amendment Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment 1st January 2010
Transactions
AEUBRELANELR(BETAR) SEREHTRHNFRS “Z-TF—-H—H
HK- Int 4 Amendment Leases — Determination of the Length of Lease 1st January 2011
Term in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases
BB - RREASR(EIAR) HE-ErastulE s AHRE —E2—%F—-H—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBE#ME®)

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mBEEE)
Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing MAREMZER - HEFER
standards that are not yet effective (Continued) ZREBRIBII(E)

Effective for

accounting periods

New or revised standards, interpretations and amendments beginning on or after
RUTEHHER
AT RRIERTER - RRRIEET HERREN
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations 1st July 2009
EABMEEAEIR(EEE]) EBEM ZZENELHA—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1st January 2013
BEUBREERER SRIA —T—=5—R—H
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement 1st January 2011
Amendment
aE(ERIBREREEZEe) REESMTECENTIEA —E2—%—-H—H
—REE14R(BETE)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners 1st July 2009
AEERMBREREEES) MEEANRFREEE —ZThFLR—H
—ZEEITHR
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers 1st July 2009
EZE(ERIBRERBEEE) KEEPZEEESE —EENFLA-H
—ZRE18%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity 1st July 2010
Instruments
E(ERIBREREBEEE) URATIAEEIBER —E-TF+A—H
—ZRBE195%
HKFRSs Amendment Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 1st January 2010
AU BRELR(EITR) ZETNEE AU RE LR 2Lk s i
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the AEBEE MBI ERT R
impact of these new or revised standards, amendments and LASETXER] ~ BRI AR BES
interpretation, certain of which are relevant to the Group’s K8 ghaTHEALE
operation and will give rise to changes in accounting policies, CEBER  UHBBUANSE
disclosures or measurement of certain items in the financial ETERIEL E) - BEEEX
statements. However, the Group is not yet in a position to HEMBHmERETEE R
ascertain their impact on its results of operations and financial - ANEE SRR E LA
position. EEEEXBERMBEMRRENX
S -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up
to 31st December.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the

Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are

deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement (see Note
2.8).

2 IESHBE#SE#)

22 #HFERE
REVBHRRBEARARF R
HFFEMBARBET A
=+—HIEMEBHRE -

(@) MEBLTF

MBAREASEERE
SHUPB N2 EBOR ME
HIMATEER - —RM
BB BUC R E -
EFEAREEEEH S
—Bfel > BRTATES
A RBREEERRENT
ERZEHTER -

MBAREEEEEE
AEBZHEZHES

fR o P RIFEAEBIRERR
17 AR IR AR ©

REBERABEGIEH
RNEBUEHE 2R A
IR o WBE A AR TR It E
ERATE  BBTRAT
ARNR S HEES &
B aBEm s EERE
HZRAGTE - REKE
BHATURE AT 38 514 E B
iz BERIAERE
SEPRER 2 AT Eq
H - B HBR R RS
R o WA AN AR S
B RE (L P g Pl R & B
SFEZ AT EZ R
PR o (WU R AR DA
WIENEAREEFEY
NHE - BIEEEEENE
A (2R HEE2.8) o

tAREEERAT —TBhEER 129



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
considered as indicator of impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost together with advances
by the Company, which are neither planned nor likely
to be settled in the foreseeable future, less provision
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external
to the Group. Disposals to minority interests results in
gains and losses for the Group that are recorded in the
income statement. Purchases from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for by using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition
(see Note 2.8).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(9]

Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves
is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
associated companies are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of associated companies
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d)

Joint ventures

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture where
the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of
the participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity. Investment in jointly controlled entity
is accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
whereby the investment is initially recorded at cost and
is adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results, distributions received,
other necessary alterations in the Group’s proportionate
interest in jointly controlled entity arising from changes
in equity of jointly controlled entity that have not
been included in the income statement of the jointly
controlled entity. The excess of cost of investment over
the Group’s share of the aggregate fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired at the date of acquisition
is tested annually for impairment, as well as when there
is indication of impairment, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The Group's share of
post-acquisition results after taxation of jointly controlled
entities is included in the income statement.

A joint venture which does not involve the establishment
of a separate entity but involves the joint control and
ownership by the Group and other parties of assets
contributed to, or acquired for the purpose of, the joint
venture is accounted for as a jointly controlled asset.
The Group’s share of jointly controlled assets and any
liabilities incurred jointly with other joint venture partners
are recognised and classified according to the nature of
the relevant items. Income from the sale or use of the
Group’s share of the output of jointly controlled assets
is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group, whilst the Group’s share of expenses in respect
of jointly controlled assets is recognised as incurred.

2

TESTHEBE)

2.2 HZEERBE (&)

(d)

=)=

HEZEFHER—BSE
X Bt AEESEE
& &7 2E—REER
B MZAREREIIX
HEES - 28EHWE
BRI bAE o AR
BRZREDRERD SR
ENER B R
RYMERAEE - WHRE
& BLAN G B R FL R
BRMWEBRES KB
HEZEFHERNDIK -
ARG ABRRAZ KR
sHEERRESMES
ZAREBE L RS
BRSO E b E
TEHAR - WEKANEEE
BB FE AU B
H RIS B B HE 2 R
BERB EREEFLE
B HHRERETTHR,
BERF - RAKAKERZR
FUREERSIR - AEE
Pt FL R B BE A Wi
BEREAD T ABRR
A o

A RIE T BB HIK L
g R AR E R E A
THEAZEHREE 2GS
HEBEEREMAER
BB EE - THPI1EHR
FEGIEEAR - A&EH
FEAE 2 FLRIFR I & e B
Hit & 2B HEARBERDN
ERREDREEREAR
VS FIAER R D8 -
A S BASENE
HHRAENEEMELZ
WA~ REZIAR S HR
REMmAIEERAAE
B T AR - MAKE
BB RHRZEHEE
H 5 32 BIREEAE B T UABE

=7
o ©

1 32 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2 IEETHRHME®)

(Continued)
2.3 Segment reporting 23 SEWE
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with KA IRAF EEERE
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision- ARz ABHRE -—B 2D
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible HNE2W - BEDRERKTM
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the KEDMBRV 2 FELBARAR
operating segments, has been identified as the Executive A BERERIERREZH
Directors who make strategic decisions. TEE -
2.4 Foreign currency translation 24 HNEBE
(a) Functional and presentation currency (@) MEENEINEY
Items included in the financial statements of each of REESEERNIER
the Group'’s entities are measured in Chinese Renminbi, KAPIBEBEAUARE
which is the currency of the primary economic (BNARE] R EH I E A a]
environment in which the Company and its subsidiaries CEMENEELBR
operate (the “functional currency”). The consolidated ENEB)FE(RE
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, K1) o I IMERAABTITE
which is the presentation currency. N W =¥ /NI =7l
(b) Transactions and balances (b) XER#ES
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the HINERZR ZIRAR S BHE
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing KINE RBIEEEE - B8
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange I ERZ G EENE R RS
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of AR EINEEHER BH A
such transactions and from the translation at year- EMBENFRERRE
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities EERE R BEERmR
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the TR °
income statement.
(c) Group companies () &EEAT
The results and financial position of all the Group entities B EKH2| G
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary TRAzZEEER (SER
economy) that have a functional currency different FRERERIREERR
from the presentation currency are translated into the 2 EW) 2 HE R
presentation currency as follows: SUIRA T ERE R 2
HEH
() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet iy BEEABRE?Y
presented are translated at the closing rate at the ZEBERBEHN
date of that balance sheet; ZEERBEREH
H 2 W T E & 47
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
()  Group companies (Continued)

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and of
borrowings are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign
operation is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Properties and equipment

Properties and equipment other than construction in progress
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

2

TESTHEBE)

2.4

2.5

SNSIE (E)
(0 &£BARE)

(i) BEBERZBAR
P 1932 P &
BHE(BRIFZFY
BAFNZZEE
TEXZATE L
BEAEME - Eit
BN T AR
TR Z B 2 E*R
BHE) Rk

(i) PIEELZERZE
IR AR AR
ZIEIIER e

RAKRBR  BMEBIERKZ
REFELEEMELEZER
ERIETARRERA - R
ERINERE - G ABRCRER
MNZERZBNBRRPER
A ERESEERZ #B o

NEELS Ty L0t 3
ATEBED AR ER
TAEREERIET A A
ST

MERKRE
WMERZB(EZIRERINGR
2 B AS IR R AT E AN R AR
EERIIK - ELRABREK
%R B EREAMRX -

HERANRBEHERZIABBMH
R SR AL F 22 B AT BE IR AR
KB MaZEB KRG 5
FER TEEERENERR
BEXERASBLEE(RTEA
BI) - A B e RIREHE
EENPHMEAARERERT
B

1 34 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHHEHEEE)
(Continued)
2.5 Properties and equipment (Continued) 25 YIERREE)

Depreciation of properties and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Hotel property (superstructure) 28 to 50 years

Buildings Shorter of useful life or
lease term

Furniture and office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 3to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater

than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Construction in progress is investments in buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and which, upon
completion, management intends to hold for providing goods
or services in the ordinary course of business. These properties
are carried at cost which includes construction expenditures,
borrowing costs directly attributable to construction of
such properties and other direct costs, less any impairment
losses. On completion, the properties are transferred to
the appropriate categories of properties and equipment at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation is
provided for construction in progress until they are completed

and put into commercial use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the

income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEEMESE)
(Continued)
2.6 Investment properties 26 REY=

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group,
is classified as investment property. As from 1st January
2009, investment property also includes property that is
being constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held
under operating leases are classified and accounted for
as investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted
for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs and borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are performed in accordance with
the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are performed annually by
external independent valuers. Changes in fair values are
recognised in the income statement.

Fair value measurement on property under construction is only

applied if the fair value is considered to be reliably measurable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6

Investment properties (Continued)

It may sometimes be difficult to determine reliably the fair
value of the investment property under development. In order
to evaluate whether the fair value of an investment property
under development can be determined reliably, management
considers the following factors, among others:

o The provisions of the construction contract.

o The stage of completion.

o Whether the project/property is standard (typical for the
market) or non-standard.

o The level of reliability of cash inflows after completion.

o The development risk specific to the property.

o Past experience with similar constructions.

o Status of construction permits.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar
basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect
of the property. Some of those outflows are recognised as
a liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect of land
classified as investment property; others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6

Investment properties (Continued)

Following the adoption of HKAS 40 Amendment, investment
properties under development have been transferred from
land costs and property under development for long-term
investment to investment properties at 1st January 2009,
at their carrying amount. They have subsequently been fair
valued at the reporting date. All fair value gains or losses,
including those unrecognised fair value gains and losses (if the
losses have not already been recognised through impairment)
that arose prior to 1st January 2009, have been recognised in
the profit or loss for the year ended 31st December 2009 as

fair value gains or losses.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as properties and equipment, and its fair value at
the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting

purposes.

If an item of properties and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and taken directly to equity as a revaluation of properties
and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in

the income statement.

Investment property held for sale without redevelopment is

classified as non-current asset held for sale, under HKFRS 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7

Properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale

Properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale are included in current assets at the lower

of cost and net realisable value.

The costs of properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale consist of construction
expenditures, amounts capitalised in respect of amortisation of
upfront payments of land use rights, borrowing costs directly
attributable to construction of such properties and other direct
costs. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business as determined by management
with reference to the prevailing market conditions, less further
costs expected to be incurred to completion and selling and

marketing costs.

No depreciation is provided on properties under development
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)
(@) Goodwill (Continued)

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from
the business combination in which the goodwill arose

identified according to operating segment.

(b) Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s
share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired over the cost of acquisition and is recognised in
the income statement.

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal

of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends

on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its financial assets

at initial recognition.

(a)

(b)

(9]

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise
accounts and other receivables, pledged/charged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents in the balance
sheet (Notes 2.11 and 2.12).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

TESTHEBE )

2.10 BBEEE)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed
in the consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“other gains, net”, in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of
"other gains, net” when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised

in equity are included in the consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale debt securities calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “other gains, net”. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of “other gains, net”

when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

FRBEMEZMBEEY
MR 5 A (BARSEEER A
HEZEEE AR - ¥l
SR AT EEBERIIRZA
EWBEE  EREVIER
FEMRZRAER - ZRF
BB BEGIIR B EER
MR A FEFER - MR HK
RAEHRABERIE - Bt
BREWBRESREZENDZ
Mo EE  MAKECKHE
B2 @AM RN ERE
BRERE - MEEEMNRIRE
R ARKEMBEERER
FEEEBRSIIRIMBEE
HEZRRAFEINER - B
J& W R IR R R B R ) ROR AR
AT o

[Z AT EE BRI IR T
BEIENZ A FEBEME
Hn RELHEAEGARE
mRAZIN BRI Efb e — %
Bl BRAFEEBEBRIIRZ
MBEEZRBRARKEE
W ER B B R IR 2 HE M RSB 1R
ReBRERERA A
FER AR -

PBAT G2 BHR
SRR - PR
HATFERERRE
51l -

A HEESERABRNE
AR EZNEBEFABERR
MR A H e - 35 58
e ARHERATAZRE
AR AR B WEE BRIR 2 1
MigEERERA BERARER
Al e - JFEE | — BB

142 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

TEETHRMES)

2.10 BEEE)

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the Group established fair value by
using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and
option pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs

and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets in impaired. In the case of equity securities classified
as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss—measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss—is
removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not

reversed through the consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of accounts and other receivables is
described in Note 2.11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)
2.11 Accounts and other receivables

FESHBREE#E)

2. 1M BWRFR K H A FE W FR0R

Accounts and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of accounts and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the income statement.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity
holders until the shares are cancelled.

2.12

2.13

TR Mo B K 2 EL A B KRR 2
TEEMEE  BETEHAE
ENFEATSERRTS L
RE - BLRBEVTRAFE
HER - MERRRA BRI X
EYR O M S K RO (B R R R
2 MAETBHRERETAEE
1T RER B U AR 3R 2 [R B {6 K
WEIFERIMROR - AlEHE
Wi BR R K% L At B M R IR A R
BB - BBZBBRABER
E{EEGFRRRERERE
2z 28 WIRBHNIEE,
B B BBENIBERRPHE

27
uZLJ\ °

RERREEEY
RekReEEYMRRETFTER
T FR|ITZRATFR - Rk
HRERRS=EAHAR
MtBEERRZEHERE -

L€

ERBRDBABR o #ITHR
KB B i B R IR 2 AT AR
TIRBRA R VR R 15 508 (F0BR
BIR) 2 HR © ERAEE
RERRIBEARRR 2z
A RIS 2 KB (BIEESR
BREGZERAREMG
APELAZANNCI e £S5 2PN Al
RABRNE  BEEZFRMDE

144 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEHBERBES)
(Continued)
2.14 Borrowings 214 B8

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset or financial liability, including fees
and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers,
levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holders, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments which
contain both a liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is determined using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option as equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost, calculated using the effective interest method, until
extinguished on conversion or maturity. The equity component
is recognised in equity, net of any tax effects.

When the bond is converted, the relevant equity component
and the carrying amount of the liability component at the
time of conversion are transferred to share capital and share
premium for the shares issued. When the bond is redeemed,
the relevant equity component is transferred to retained

earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBERBES)
(Continued)
2.15 Borrowing cost 2.15 BERE

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying
assets are capitalised during the period of time that is required

to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement

in the period in which they are incurred.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entity operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of

amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, if the deferred
income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is

realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)
2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

TEETHRMES)

2.16 BNIREFEFRISH (&)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

Group companies operate defined contribution plans
only. The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory or contractual basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments

is available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

TESTHEBE )

2.17 EEER(E)

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as expenses. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are

expected to vest.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable for the sale of properties and services in the

ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is recognised

as follows:

(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of the properties are
transferred to the buyers, which is when the construction
of the relevant properties have been completed,
notification of delivery of properties have been issued
to the buyers and collectability of related receivables
pursuant to the sale agreements is reasonably assured.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to transfer of the significant risks and rewards of
the properties are included as deferred revenue under

current liabilities.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the relevant leases.

Property management fees, property design fees and

marketing consultancy fees

Property management fees, property design fees and
marketing consultancy fees are recognised when the

services are rendered.

Hotel operations

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised upon

provision of services.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(f) Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching with it and that the grant will
be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in the income statement over the period necessary
to match them with the costs they are intended
to compensate. Grants relating to the purchase of
properties and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets. Amounts received
for which the earning process has not been completed
are accounted for as deferred revenue.

2.20 Operating leases (as the lessee)

2.21

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the
income statement on a straight line basis over the period of
the lease.

Insurance contracts

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect
of mortgage facilities provided to certain property purchasers
and guarantees provided to its joint ventures and subsidiaries as
insurance contracts.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the liabilities
under its insurance contracts using current estimates of future
cash flows. Changes in carrying amount of these insurance

liabilities are recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBEMESE)
(Continued)
2.22 Dividend distribution 2.22 BE SR
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is MR A IR R 9 R 89 1% S AE AR
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements BEAARES PREMER
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the HRARAEB I ERERA
Company's directors/shareholders. FRafE-
2.23 Land costs 2.23 TR
The Group makes upfront payments to obtain land use 7N 58 B 3% A A B TR < RRIE LARR
rights on which properties are developed for sale, long T ERAE - AAEEER
term investment or hotel operations. The upfront payments AEHE - EITRIREIR
for the land use rights are recorded as land costs on the JEEEZME o B A
balance sheet and amortised on a straight-line basis over the AW RT AR RIEREE H
operating lease periods, or where there is impairment, the AR AT AR AR IEE BN
impairment is charged to the income statement, except for RESEEHE S EERR
investment properties where the land costs are included in B AlBRa&NG - RRE
the cost of the investment properties and accounted for as MEE (TR AT AREDEZ
finance leases (Note 2.6). During the period of time that is BRI A BRI VE R & & (K
required to develop the properties for its intended use, the F52.6)) 5N EREEERE
land amortisation is capitalised as part of the costs of the MERBZMEZBRA - +
properties under development. In all other periods the land WEBHEERNERERSDY
amortisation is charged to the income statement according to ERAR— B o PR E i HA
the classification of the properties. When completed properties A B DIREE
for sale is sold, the unamortised land cost is recognised as cost MEZHEBWEKRANR -
of sales. EAHEHEZEERMESE
B - KB TR A FER B BE
B -
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HBERERE
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 BMEEBEE
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: REEZEBLTHEERZZEY
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow BRK : SNERK  FER
and fair value interest-rate risk. The Group's overall risk B REESRERE LRSS
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial NFENERR - REENE
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effect on the BEREEREZINEM™
Group's financial performance. The Group regularly monitors SR AIIERME - I KRR
its exposure and currently considers not necessary to hedge HAREEMBRIRNEETH
any of these financial risks. T8 REETHERAAR
BERIER - WRAZBAIALE
A R A L S M IS R bR 1T
Epial
SEAIREEARAT —2BAFER 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risks as defined by HKFRS 7 arise
on account of monetary assets and liabilities being
denominated in a currency that is not the functional
currency; differences resulting from the translation
of financial statements into the Group’s presentation
currency are not taken into consideration.

Majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operates
in Mainland China with most of the transactions
denominated in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of
Renminbi against US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. It
has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of the
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Mainland
China government.

At 31st December 2009, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against US dollars with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$22.7 million (2008: HK$25.7 million)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of USD denominated senior
notes and bank deposits.

At 31st December 2009, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against HK dollars with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$1.2 million (2008: HK$0.1 million)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HK dollars denominated
bank deposits.

3

MR EREEE)

3.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
deposits with banks and credit exposures to customers.
The Group has credit policies in place and exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group manages its deposits with banks and
financial institutions by monitoring credit ratings. At
31st December 2009, deposits with banks amounted
to HK$6,714 million (2008: HK$2,413 million) were
placed with a number of international/national financial
institutions with sound credit ratings.

In respect of credit exposures to customers, the Group
normally receives deposits or progress payments from
sales of residential properties to customers prior to
the completion of transactions. In the event of default
by customers, Group companies undertake legal
proceedings to recover the property. In addition, the
Group monitors the exposure to credit risk in respect
of amounts due from joint ventures through jointly
controlling their financial and operating policy decisions
and reviewing their financial positions on a regular basis.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of property units and provided guarantees to
secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments.
If a purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage
during the term of the guarantee, the bank holding
the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount under the loan and any accrued
interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group
is able to retain the property sales proceeds received
from the customers and sell the property to recover any
amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is minimal (see also Note 38).

3 MEBERRERE)
3.1 MBEBEEE)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset (other
than equity securities included in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
financial assets) in the balance sheet after deducting
any impairment allowance. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from accounts receivable and other
receivables is set out in Note 20.

Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly
and closely monitors its current and expected liquidity
requirements to maintain its rolling cash flow at a level
which is considered adequate by the Group to finance
the Group’s operations and to maintain sufficient
cash to meet its business development requirements.
Management has periodically prepared cash flow
projections and the Group has a number of alternative
plans to offset the potential impact on the Group's
business development and current operation, should
there be circumstances that the anticipated cash flow
may be affected by any unexpected changes in global/
Mainland China economic conditions. The Company’s
Directors consider that the Group will be able to
maintain sufficient financial resources to meet its needs.

As at 31st December 2009, the Company has net
current liabilities of HK$1,983,983,000 which mainly
represents the liability components of the convertible
bonds of HK$2,169,685,000 due in February 2010.
In February 2010, these convertible bonds were fully
repaid (Note 43(a)) by way of fund through repayment
of shareholders’ loans from subsidiaries and dividends
received from subsidiaries.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(9]

Liquidity risk (Continued)

3

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

e I ERAR M

MR EREEE)

3.1
(0

PBEREERE)

RBESER(E)

TRETAKERAAT
ZEBAE - RIRAREE
HiAR - RIBEREEAE

BHRIZIHIR Z RS
I - RAMEE2E
BRAKNERBRAR R

=
= -°

Lessthan1  Between1  Between 2
year and2years and5years Over5 years
15/ 1225 225%F BiB5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR TR TEx
Group %8
At 31st December 2009 RZZETHE
+T-A=+—H
Borrowings (including interests) EE(REF &) 7,171,431 2,599,710 8,143,341 1,030,226
Accounts payable and FErt EE?JK B TER
accruals and other payables HENIE 4,670,176 — — —
Land cost payable [ER A 302,418 271,028 — —
Due 1o an associate JE N —fREE = AR 2 F0B 6,269 — — —
Due to related companies [ENELNR 5B 173,721 — — —
Due to a jointly controlled e — R L EEH
entity TR IE 1,842,289 — — —
14,166,304 2,870,738 8,143,341 1,030,226
At 31st December 2008 RZZENE
+=A=+—
Borrowings (including interests) EE(REF2) 5,376,257 7,981,386 5,698,810 415,159
Accounts payable and FERERRR - IR RIER
accruals and other payables Hib oA 5,183,585 — — —
Land cost payable JEA £ 3P 2R 323,696 106,173 — -
Due to an associate [Ef—fal & AR 2508 6,258 — — —
Due to related companies [ENEELNR 2B 174,920 — — —
Due to a jointly controlled e — R LR
entity ERZFAE 759,380 — — —
11,824,096 8,087,559 5,698,810 415,159
Company NG|
At 31st December 2009 RZZTHF
+=A=+—
Borrowings EBE 2,395,070 220,561 2,935,161 -
Accruals and other payables  JE&tF0E K E (b B[ F0E 37,146 - — -
2,432,216 220,561 2,935,161 —
At 31st December 2008 RZTENF
TZA=+—
Borrowings e 220,391 2,391,200 3,153,281 —
Accruals and other payables — fEtFUE M E b EM IR 38,313 — — —
258,704 2,391,200 3,153,281 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table above excludes guarantees given to banks
for mortgage facilities granted to certain buyers of
the Group’s properties (see Note 38 and 3.1(b)) as
management considers the risk as minimal.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from interest bearing
bank deposits and borrowings. Bank deposits and
borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
The Group has not hedged its cash flow and fair value
interest-rate risk.

At 31st December 2009, if interest rates had increased/
decreased by one percentage-point and all other
variables were held constant, the finance costs, net of
amount capitalised in the properties under development
and finance income, would increase/decrease the
Group's post-tax profit by approximately HK$49 million
(2008: HK$15 million).

3.2 Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern

in order to provide returns for equity owners and benefits for

other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure

to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group

may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity owners,

issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HRRBEERE)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 32 E2BEBEERE)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings, as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet) less pledged/charged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
represents total equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

AEBRERB B REALEE
2ER - BRBBLXRTIAE
BEFERAEERTE - BE
FRDABEE(REGREEE
BERARZABRIFRBE
BRI ERRRRTERR
Re MRS EEMHE - BE
AEREE(NREEEAR
RFUR) °

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2009 and 2008 were as RZZEZENEFRZZEZNE
follows: +ZA=+—HZEXEBEL
FAT -
2008
—EENF T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Total borrowings wEE 16,348,858 16,593,009
Less: Pledged/charged bank deposits & : 2 L R1T
and cash and cash equivalents FREBEEERS
(Note 21) ZEW(MiE21) (6,714,623) (2,414,146)
Net debt BEFE 9,634,235 14,178,863
Total equity e AEER 30,499,476 22,564,073
Gearing ratio BEREGLE 32% 63%

The decrease in the gearing ratio was mainly due to the
increase in cash and bank deposits, placing of new Company’s
shares and fair value gains of investment properties recognised

during the year.

BEARRBELEERDERHNE
MRS RRITHEFEM - &
RRBFRMIARREDER
FEWEME -

BEAREEARAT

—zEnEFER |15/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e AR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BERMRERE)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AV EGE

B-ZETAF-A—HE K
SERREERBRFPEAF
B B2 BHRREABTEY
BREERF 7R ZEFTA - It
RERTRES B T AFER
BRI ERATHEZHRESE

Effective from 1st January 2009, the Group adopted the
amendment to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments that are
measured in the balance sheet at fair value. This requires
disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following

fair value measurement hierarchy:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical o  HIEREEXHEENER
assets or liabilities (level 1). Mg 2 HME(CRFARE) (F

14%) °
e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level e  B1RANFABIEREES

BEUERCERBAH
R (BIanfEAR ) s B A
ZuR (BB BTt EE)
(RERRIM (F28R) -

1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

REEHAREMN S WIER
BAIERTIZER 2 @A
IR (AR A B R EIR)
(8B38) »

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on .
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

TREINR-ZZNF+-A
=t—BRAVEFEZAE

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are

measured at fair value at 31st December 2009.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FIR E2M 3 st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET TET THET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair BN EE BB
value through profit WIS EE
or loss
- Trading securities —BEEES 11,083 — — 11,083
Available-for-sale financial A]fft &8 %54 &
assets
- Equity securities N — 1,558,575 1,113,144 2,671,719
Total assets wEE 11,083 1,558,575 1,113,144 2,682,802
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HEERREERE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AVEMRE#E)
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets RERTISMEESMI A,
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. NFEDRBEREEB Z TR
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and TS ERETE o 8B & E R
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry BRRXGM  XHE - B4
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices ERAR - MERGEER
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions BESRE BERZEREER
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for BRRIEHEAFELELETTZT
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. 55 BTG AERER -
These instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included REBEFFMBEERAZ™
in level 1 comprise primarily Mainland China and Hong Kong HWMERBAZEANE - bF
equity investments classified as trading securities. TEBFAZIH - F14ETA
CIEFERFESFERESLR
52 RBARERES 2 RAR
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in RKEEERMSEEZE&MT
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) B(BIIMTETR) 2 AFE
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation DERBHEEEE - WEHE
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where ARG FEET SR
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific FRBEERR - WHRA R
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an KRB E R EME o MATAR
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. HE—BHTAAFEMRTEK
Instruments included in level 2 represent equity securities with WASBBABER  B@T
a restriction period of transfer. Bt AF2R - s AE 282
TEETHERGIEEAMZ K
PN
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on i — &k 2 (8 & K A BUR I
observable market data, the instrument is included in level SERBAEBRE MG EBRTE -
3. Instruments included in level 3 represent unlisted equity ERTESFAEIMR - 5T AF
securities. 3z TEAEIE EmIRANE S
AEAIREEERAT —E2EAFER 159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BERMRERE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AVEMESE)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial

instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar

instruments.

° Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining

financial instruments.

The changes in level 3 instruments for the year ended 31st

December 2009 are as follows:

Opening balance FARER
Purchase BE
Gain and loss recognised in other

comprehensive income REMEEWAER 2 B
Exchange difference HE 3 5
Closing balance FIREER

ARTESHITAGBEZSTE
HERE

o BUTAZTSHRELR

o  WMBRBEERENNTEE
A AR ETESS
BMTAZAFE-

HE-_ZZhF+=-_A=1+—
BILFEE » F3{TAZHN
T

Available-for-sale

financial assets

AHEEMBEE

HK$'000
FERT

1,112,197

947

1,113,144
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BRERREEE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AVEMRE#E)
The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of FEUCRR SR - HhfEURBRER - FE
accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts payable, B - HEEALZEHBRR
balances with related parties and land cost payables are FERT LM A 2 EE R (A ET
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of EERARE  DREEEAT
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by BEE  BEEmS  BBE
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current B2 N TE DR EE S
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar ZHEUSRIAZRITMISH
financial instruments or based on the current bid price in the KR RBEMSHEFZEAE
market. EARREHIESTRENBIED
HE -
4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EBERETHEERAE
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based HEH KA B S REEAT 2 5 - A
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations BEEREAGEARERER &
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the RBEAMBR THRAREMH ZEER
circumstances. o
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 4.1 ERGHHEERER
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the AN 5 B OR SRAF E  R fR
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, R EERL BUtMEZE
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and ATHEE A RAAR 2 BN
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material AR - AFEERBREETEN
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities BFEEZAERAERBERF
within the next financial year are discussed below. ERBE T RBRERT
MXamidt o
(@) Estimated impairment of properties and equipment @ UERRRFERBLAEZ
and intangible assets fEEtRE
Properties and equipment are reviewed for impairment MERRBIRE R
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate B RSB RTHAREER]
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. BE A~ BE R 1 5 1R AL (B 12
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each & - MIVAEIN SR
balance sheet date or whenever events or changes HEAFRHRBERED
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount BN HIREE A BT AR
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of EIFERER - RK
properties and equipment and intangible assets have R MR A B 2 AT
been determined based on value-in-use calculations, SRHEREREERR]
taking into account latest market information and past W EBETHT A &
experience. These calculation and valuations require the BEAER - ILFRIE R
use of judgements and estimates. ERERAERESR -
SEAIREEARAT —B2BAFER 1061



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(b)

Estimated provision of properties under development
for sale, completed properties for sale and related

land costs

For the purpose of determining provision, land costs,
properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. The
recoverability of the carrying amounts of these asset
is assessed based on their fair value less costs to sell.
The fair value is determined taking into account costs
to completion based on past experience and net sales
value based on prevailing market conditions. Provision is
made when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The

assessment requires the use of judgement and estimates.

4

EREEERAEE)

4.1

EERSTHEERBR(E)

(b)

AHHEZBRTYE
A& 2 BRI M
B RAARE R

MEERETS - LK
R~ BERPYERFHEL
EPARY % 7/E 2 CIE VA
DHBENEZ RIEKF
DR REEEZIREE
ERAYE - THIIREBEER
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RIEERTRAEZHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EEETEERYEE)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 BEETHERBRE)

(Continued)

() Estimate of fair value of completed investment ()0 CEAREVERERES
properties and investment properties under REWMEZ AN FEME
development
The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an N E &EREAEL
active market for similar lease and other contracts. In HE REME LR ERT
the absence of such information, the Group determines R 2 HITER o MRz
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value FHEER  AEEKEE
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers CREIER R ATE
information from a variety of sources including: HEHER - AEL HE

K NEEBERZEE
BHRR - B4E
(i) current prices in an active market for properties of iy RR\ERZzME
different nature, condition or location (or subject FRAREEE - AR
to different lease or other contracts), adjusted B (KFTH T
to reflect those differences, by reference to REExRHEME
independent valuations; and D) 2 WEZRIT
BR(E2ER T
hE) - WIEH A
B Eft R
2B R

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less active iy L2/ IHE
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes 1% MRIEBIREF
in economic conditions since the date of the 2GR ALY
transactions that occurred at those prices, by ZITHABRR - W 1E
reference to independent valuations. A AR B B 2
5 A HBLA SR 48 75 3R
R EAEBEZ

EEEZTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(o)

(d)

Estimate of fair value of completed investment
properties and investment properties under
development (Continued)

In the case of investment properties under development,
their fair value reflects the expectations of market
participants of the value of the properties when they
are completed, less deductions for the costs required to
complete the projects and appropriate adjustments for
profit and risk. The valuation and all key assumptions
used in the valuation should reflect market conditions
at the balance sheet date. The key assumptions include
value of completed properties, period of development,
outstanding construction costs, finance costs, other
professional costs, risk associated with completing the
projects and generating income after completion and
investors’ return as a percentage of value or cost. The
fair value is made by reference to independent valuation.

Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. Judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing
of payment of the related taxation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the periods in which such determination
are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred taxation assets and taxation
in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Current taxation and deferred taxation (Continued)

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in
Mainland China. However, the implementation and
settlement of these taxes varies among various tax
jurisdictions in cities of Mainland China, and the Group
has not finalised most of its land appreciation taxes
calculation and payments with the local tax authorities
in Mainland China. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of the land
appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognised
these land appreciation taxes based on management’s
best estimates according to the understanding of the
tax rules. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the taxation and tax provisions in
the periods in which such taxes have been finalised with
local tax authorities.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group’s net book value of properties and
equipment as at 31st December 2009 was approximately
HK$3,175,029,000. The Group depreciates the hotel
property, building, furniture and office equipment and
motor vehicles on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful life of 28 to 50 years, 50 years, 5 years and 3 to 5
years, respectively, and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, commencing from the date the
asset is placed into productive use. The estimated useful
lives and dates that the Group places the properties and
equipment into productive use reflects the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of the Group's
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

()

Acquisition of subsidiaries

The initial accounting on the acquisition of subsidiaries
involves identifying and determining the fair values to
be assigned to the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquired entities. The fair
values of investment properties and development
properties held for sale are determined by reference
to market prices or present value of expected net cash
flows from the assets. Any changes in the assumptions
used and estimates made in determining the fair values,
and management’s ability to measure reliably the
contingent liabilities of the acquired entity will impact
the carrying amount of these assets and liabilities, as
well as the amount of goodwill and negative goodwill

from the acquisition.

4.2 Critical accounting judgements

(a)

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from the sale
of properties in the ordinary course of business, as
disclosed in note 2.19. The assessment of when an
entity has transferred the significant risks and rewards
of ownership to buyers requires the examination of the
circumstances of the transaction. In most cases, the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership coincides with
the date when the equitable interest in the property
vests with the buyer upon handover of the respective

property to the buyer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

(a)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

As disclosed in note 38, the Group provided guarantees
in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for
certain purchasers of the Group’s properties. These
guarantees will expire when the relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with the various banks.
In order to obtain mortgages, the purchasers would
have settled certain percentage of the total contract
amount in accordance with the related PRC regulations
upon delivery of the properties. The Directors are of
the opinion that such settlements provide sufficient
evidence of the purchasers’ commitment to honour their
contractual obligations of the bank loans. In addition,
based on past experiences, there were no significant
defaults of mortgage facilities by the purchasers resulting
in execution of the bank guarantees. Accordingly,
the directors believe that significant risks and rewards
associated with ownership of the properties have been

transferred to the purchasers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Financial implication of regulations of idle land

Under the PRC laws and regulations, if a property
developer fails to develop land according to the terms
of a land grant contract, including the designated use of
the land and the time of commencement and completion
of the property development, the PRC Government may
regard the land as idle and issue a warning or impose
a penalty on the developer or reclaim the land. The
Group has certain tracts of land for which development
has not commenced according to the specified terms
of the respective land grant contracts. Judgement is
required in assessing whether these tracts of land will be
subject to the penalty of idle land or may be reclaimed
by the Government and thereby resulting in any adverse
financial impact to the Group. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates the extent of development of the
whole tracts of land, status of negotiation with the
government authorities as to the extension of time of

commencement or revision of development plans.

Distinction between investment properties and

owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
an investment property. In making its judgement, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash
flows that are attributable not only to property but also

to other assets used in the production or supply process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

() Distinction between investment properties and

owner-occupied properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions can be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions cannot be
sold separately, the property is accounted for investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in making

its judgement.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments

based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the business from both a business
and geographic perspective. Reportable business segments identified
are property development, property investment, hotel operations
and property management. Geographically, the Executive Directors
consider that the reportable business segments can be further
segregated into four main geographical areas, namely Guangdong
province (GZ) (including Guangzhou, Huizhou, Zhongshan and
Hong Kong), Beijing (BJ) (including Beijing, Dalian, Taiyuan and
Qinhuangdao), Shanghai (SH) (including Shanghai, Hangzhou and
Ningbo) and Tianjin (TJ).

EZESMHERAEE)

42 EESTHEE)

(0 ZDHEREMEEARWE
(&

B ¥EE R o A YEHRRER
HE S ERIEEZ 2D -
i 5 — &80 AIRFEE DL
ﬁi\Fg%ﬂ%@iﬁﬁxﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
%o MR EBHAUDFE
B (% *ETFF?]E’QT‘ &5 H
) - AIREEEEE
ZED AN o MZE
HOTASMEE - BlZ
MEESRIFIEEESH
FEE MRS ATE A%
2 &by R AR R DD B -
WHERAIREME - NE
I ERR IS E 2 R RES
BRKABRENERS
ERAMEL HIE - REE
PEH AR g Y EI1E
MEEBIERE -

7 EBEF
BRLERFEDERNTES - #1
TERBMAEENBRE - WUTE
FKARHEAR - EREDREXS
WEEELESH -

HITEFSUAXRMEARERE
e DR ZA2MEB DA B
MEER  MERE  EELZERD
XER BT EME - BITEE
RBAUEREBIHAIE-TEN S
mEXZmE  BRERE(BREE
M BN FILERER) - ER(BRE
R KE - ARRRES) £
(BELE - TUNRER) BRI -

A

LEREEERAT —Z2ThEEH 169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e AR

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of adjusted segment results.
Corporate expense, finance income and finance costs are not
included in the results for each operating segment that is reviewed

by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets consist primarily of properties and equipment,
investment properties, investment in a jointly controlled entity,
land costs, properties under development, completed properties
for sale, prepayments, deposits and other current assets, receivable
and operating cash (cash in Hong Kong has been included in the
property development segment in GZ). They exclude available-for-
sale financial assets, which are managed on a central basis, and
deferred tax assets. These are part of the reconciliation to total
balance sheet assets.

Segment results by business lines and geographical
areas

Sales between segments are carried out on terms equivalent to
those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The revenue from
external parties reported to the Executive Directors is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the consolidated income statement.

Revenue comprise turnover which included gross proceeds from sale

of properties, revenue from rental and hotel operation and property

management income.

7 EEFR (@)
HITEFRBERED BEETEE
ENW2RA - DRI - HHKRA
RS RARIL SEAt AITE F AT
ZEEEDEEME -
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THARA - BRBYE  CERZA
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£ ERHE TR AT R RS -
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W BREXE  EPaEmEEE
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Sales of properties Y E
MEETRULA
Income from hotel operation B G EERA
Rental income el

Property management income

2009 2008

S LIE A
HK$'000 HK$’'000
Tt i
10,631,159 10,271,331
431,355 306,306
131,558 155,038
31,174 41,949
11,225,246 10,774,624
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oHERE)
Segment results by business lines and geographical REBRMUEE S 2o WBEE
areas (Continued) (#&)
The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas for BHE_ZTNF+_A=T—HILHF
the year ended 31st December 2009 are as follows: EREBRMEE S 25 B A
T

Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management
53R 1588 Bres yzEm

Gz SH BJ Tl (¢ SH (¢ BJ Tl

RR bE ¥ by RR bg ¥ by
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000.
Thr T TEr  TER TR TEx  TEn  TEr TR Thn T

Year ended 31st December 2009 EE-2ThE
+ZA=t-R
L5E:
Total revenues el 3880730 3675466 2,681,010 484,260 3174 - 2,631 44313 62,614 4313 1132851
Inter-seqment revenues A9EkE (70,911) - - (193%) - - - - - (12,958) (103,265
Revenues I 3809819 3675466 2,681,010 464,864 3174 - 2,631 44313 62,614 431355 11,225,246
Adjusted segment results BREND%E 1439897 1510900 1,478,152 2699 1,710,754 3,020,245 7050 (14536)  (130,145) 79825 9,129,138
Depreciation bt (6,004) (1,953) (8,793) 257) (1) (81) (1308)  (11,206)  (51,566) (1,697) (91,250)
Amortisation B @m) (1,962) (512) (388) - - (2,620) (1,038) (112) - (9,409)
Fairvalue gains on investment B4 2 AFENE
properties - - - — 1679579 3020518 - - - - 4,700,097
Share of profitess loss of associates G BHA AT AR (522) - (824) - - - - - - - (1,346)
Share of profit of a ointly controlled 2~ LR34
entity R - - 38579 - - - - — - - 385,759
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R MR

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oHERE)
Segment results by business lines and geographical REBRUEE S 2o WBEE
areas (Continued) (&)
The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas for E_EENFT_A=T—HILF
the year ended 31st December 2008 are as follows: EREB IR E S 2 5 B A
T

Property
Property development [ ‘ management

- 8

1 Gz 1
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T AT BT TR TEL  TEn AT T T

Yearended 315t December 2008 HZ-ZZ\ET-f

SRR

Total revenues el 5210911 1356523 3587328 308,380 41,949 - 25392 53,849 15,197 300306 10,966,435
Inter-segment revenues APEkE (168369) (5448 (10514 (7.480) - - - - - - (191811)
Revenues Wi 5042542 1351075 3576814 300900 41,949 — 2539 53,849 75,197 306306 10,774,624
Adjusted segment results e GRS 1898083 440376 1572837 (8413 3982 148800 4630 (11493) (176,800 17,964 3,850,114
Depreciation it (620 069 (431 (2461 - (@5 (1205 (10820  (47,660) (1401) (85,382)
Amortisation 3] (1,520) 2,360) (952) (342) — — (2,521) (249) (160) - (8,110
Fairvalue gains on investment B 4E 2 AFENE

properties - - - - 34076 - - - - - 34,076
Share of profit less loss of associates 7 ﬁa"&n ARfEEE 990 - (1) - - - - - - - 3
Share ofloss of a jointy controlled 75— AR EESE

entiy - - - - - - - - - (1.710)
Ercess of acquirer's interestover AU HIERBLMEK

cost of acquisition 88 39,107 981 8499 - — 144902 - - - - 193,489
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oHER@®E)
Segment results by business lines and geographical REBRMUEE S 2o WBEE
areas (Continued) (&
The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas as at RIZEZNF+ A=+ —RHIRED
31st December 2009 are as follows: KBl Dz DHEENT

Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management

e NRERNFRE ilid4 eEE

6L SH BJ T (0 SH (04 BJ T

RR bE ¥ Py RR LE RR 1z Py
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$000. HKS000
Thr TEn TEn TRr  TEn  TEx TEr  fEr  TEn T T

Asat and for the year ended RIZENE
31t December 2009 tZAzt-8k
HEFALEE BAMA6T 7736545 21172034 4004030 2476368 5938360 507,104 391801 2174470 195875 67,791,258

Seqment assefs incude: APEERE:
Investments in associates REENFIRE 637 - 408 - - - - - - - 40,925
Ivestment ina jontly controlled ~~ R-EAREHES,
entity e - — 1,188,692 - - - - - - - 1,188,692
Additons tonon-curentassets  FEFTEEE
(other than financial instruments ~ (FE#ESBIAR
and deferred tax assets) EHELE) 11,935 14,806 134 481918 36570 514115 5,855 09 2133 1,519,433
The segment assets by business lines and by geographical area as at RZEENF+TZA=1T—HIEEY
31st December 2008 are as follows: KimEl D HMEENT

Property
Property development Property investmi management
VESE

T

HK$'000  HKS'000 i 000 HKS000 HK§'000
Thr  TEr  TEn A TR BT i

As at and for the year ended RIZENE
315t December 2008 T2A=+-BR
BEZAILEE 1931635 8763466 17872761 3149335 3400192 2360701 507574 379,086 1,799,667 303 57,622,160
Seqment assefs incude: ABEERE:
Investments n associates RBENRIRE 1,158 - 4 - - - - - - - 2.0
Investment ina jointly controled K- ARIHEE .
entity %E - — 801240 - - - — - - — 801,240

Addifons to non-curent assets  FEEREIAE
(other than finandalinstruments ~ (FEEABTAR
and deferred tax assets) EREEE) 14,583 2,980 19,187 19908 125153 407 151,69 5702 120,080 1,634 461,329
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R MR

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oHER®E)
Segment results by business lines and geographical REBRHMEE D 2o BEE
areas (Continued) (#)
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit from operations to profit A 25 P2 £ & R F SR T AR F
before taxation is as follows: HERWOT

Group
£
2009 2008
—EBENE ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Reportable segment profit from A 2D AL i A

operations 9,129,138 3,850,114

Unallocated corporate (expenses)/ KAWMAR(FXR) A - F5H
income, net (17,132) 226,037
Finance income B A 13,551 12,376
Finance costs B AR AR (333,639) (226,765)
Profit before taxation S5 ahznpawl 8,791,918 3,861,762

Reconciliation of reportable segment assets to total assets are:

AEB iz EERBEEYRN
-

—EEAF —EEN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Total segment assets NEEELTE 67,791,258 57,622,160
Deferred tax assets BEETRIEEE 191,287 173,378
Available-for-sale financial assets At HEREE 2,671,719 476,250
Total assets YR E 70,654,264 58,271,788

The Group primarily operates in Mainland China. All revenues for REEEERNFBI AL T o &

the year ended 31st December 2009 and 2008 are from Mainland E-TENFRZZENF+ZA

China. =+—BILFE - FBEREHREF
Eip NI

As at 31st December 2009 and 2008, all non-current assets RZZEZNFR_ZTZTENF+ A

excluding an available-for-sale financial asset are located in Mainland =+—H FAFRRDEE(TBHE

China. —IER R EMEEE) BN E
PNz
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

+ A
REBR LKA 2 ERIEEAEE
MEZR - EEEFESTOT :

6 LAND COSTS 6
The Group's interests in land costs represent prepaid operating lease

payments and their net book amount is analysed as follows:

Group
&£E
2009 2008
—E2NF 2T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB FBT
Beginning of the year =) 24,913,123 16,790,699
Additions i 3,416,005 7,152,816
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 by NG — 1,135,068
Disposals HE (1,303,858) (1,504,847)
Transfer to investment properties B IR Y (593,618) (25,151)
Transfer from investment properties WEAREME 2,058,618 —
Transfer to prepayments for RS T TR R
acquisition of land (1,702,340) —
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR (1,717,920) —
Amortisation ey (207,901) (193,272)
Exchange difference [E R ZE%E 48,138 1,557,810
End of the year FHR 24,910,247 24,913,123
Analysed as: DT
Non-current JEME
— in relation to properties under — BERRE
development for long-term ZEERBYE
investment — 418,957
— in relation to properties and — W N R
equipment 329,440 330,706
329,440 749,663
Current B
— in relation to properties under — e
development for sale BERAME 20,945,137 21,633,650
— in relation to completed properties — AHEEZ
for sale EERE 3,635,670 2,529,810
24,580,807 24,163,460
24,910,247 24,913,123
REAREEBRAT —Z2ThEFH 1/5



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e AR

6 LAND COSTS (Continued) 6

Land costs in relation to properties under B B+ ANE AR ARSI

development, included in current assets:
Expected to be completed and
available for sale after more than

BEHNERET —EARKRTIR
At

)% NE )

Group
&=

2009

—BBhE
HK$'000
T

2008
—ETN\F
HK$'000
FAT

twelve months 18,047,055 20,329,792
Expected to be completed and TEEIR B ARSI ® T K
available for sale within twelve HEEE
months 2,898,082 1,303,858
20,945,137 21,633,650

The amount of the amortisation expenses recognised in the
consolidated income statement is as follows:

REERBEXRPHERZHEHRA D

-
2009 2008
—ETNF —EBEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Cost of sales SHERAR 6,210 5,028
General and administrative expenses —RRITEE A 3,199 3,082
9,409 8,110

EHRBETRYMEZEERIEEY
198,492,000 ;L ( Z T T )\ F -
185,162,000/ 7T ) B, & &b /E B K
REtAERERYE JHEECZER
DR EINYSEIEIET -

The amount of the amortisation expenses related to properties
under development of approximately HK$198,492,000 (2008:
HK$185,162,000) has been capitalised as development costs
included in properties under development for sale, completed
properties for sale and properties and equipment.

Group
L
2009 2008
—EBENE 2T N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FEIT
In Mainland China, held on: BB ARE - AT RS -
Land use rights of over 50 years S0F A bz T R4 15,968,031 16,539,403
Land use rights of between N F10F E504F 2 T A
10 and 50 years 8,938,930 8,370,364
In Hong Kong held on: RES WA THRES
Leases of over 50 years S50F LA 2 A4 3,286 3,356
24,910,247 24,913,123
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LAND COSTS (Continued) 6 LTHRA(#)

As at 31st December 2009, net book amount of approximately RZZEZNF+-_A=+—8 ' &%
HK$4,451,119,000 (2008: HK$5,783,817,000) of the Group's land B BR T F (B 494,451,119,00078 70 (=
was pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note TZT)\4F ¢ 5,783,817,000870) 2+
24). R REREE 2 RITEE 2 HIT

fh(fI5E24) ©

As at 31st December 2009, approximately 239,000 square metre RZBEZAF+ZA=+—8"
(2008: 239,000 square metre) of land with a carrying amount #9239,000 F AR (ZEZ )\ £ -
of HK$241 million (2008: HK$240 million) was restricted for 239,000 F 5 K) 2 L (BREE B
development, transfer and pledge due to a pending litigation during 241,000,000 8 Tt (Z T T )\ F
the year. 240,000,000 7T ) ) & - $855E RE

WA FAZ FPRFATMZ RS o

PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT 7 WMERFRE

Group
£8
Furniture
Construction Hotel and office Motor
in progress  properties Buildings  equipment vehicles Total
HRR
HEEIE BEE BT WAERE RE Fot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Year ended 31st December HBZE-EBhE
2009 tZA=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount BREFE 964,047 979,775 229,730 208,140 23,931 2,405,623
Additions (including M (REEM L
capitalisation of land use FFEE)
rights amortisation) 836,709 — — 16,105 4,185 856,999
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR — — — (101) — (101)
Depreciation wE — (37,910) (7,327) (42,289) (3,724) (91,250)
Disposals & - - (92) (538) (365) (995)
Transfer B (622,229) 622,262 (33) — - —
Exchange difference EXER 1,824 2,168 386 333 42 4,753
Closing net book amount MR FE 1,180,351 1,566,295 222,664 181,650 24,069 3,175,029
At 31st December 2009 RZZEZNEF
+-A=+-H
Cost B 1,180,351 1,677,240 241,445 310,922 51,882 3,461,840
Accumulated depreciation 2:HhE — (110,945) (18,781) (129,272) (27,813) (286,811)
Net book amount BEFE 1,180,351 1,566,295 222,664 181,650 24,069 3,175,029
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7 PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 7 MERREE)

Group
&=
Furniture
Construction Hotel and office
in progress properties Buildings equipment Motor vehicles

ERETRE EEE BT BRERf e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT FAL

Year ended 31st December HE-ZFNEF

2008 +-A=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount HIREFE 736,340 899,118 201,947 207,290 19,116 2,063,811
Additions (including S (BEAR L
capitalisation of land use ERESH)
rights amortisation) 240,701 — — 27,201 10,081 277,983
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERE L F — — — 2,948 — 2,948
Depreciation neE — (34,576) (3,933) (41,691) (5,182) (85,382)
Disposals HeE — — (15,172) (3,054) (1,687) (19,913)
Transfer B (76,214) 45,376 30,838 — — —
Exchange difference EXER 63,220 69,857 16,050 15,446 1,603 166,176
Closing net book amount HRIRmF(E 964,047 979,775 229,730 208,140 23,931 2,405,623
At 31st December 2008 RZZTNE
TZA=t—-A
Cost A 964,047 1,052,654 241,159 295,723 48,295 2,601,878
Accumulated depreciation Z:TE — (72,879) (11,429 (87,583) (24,364) (196,255)
Net book amount EEFE 964,047 979,775 229,730 208,140 23,931 2,405,623
Hotel properties with a net book amount of approximately RZTZTENF+ZA=+—80 " KA
HK$90,104,000 (2008: HK$318,662,000) as at 31st December 2009 JE{E#790,104,0008 L ( ZTTN\4F -
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 318,662,000/ 7T ) 2 B & W ¥ B
24). REREBERITEE 2 ER S (M
24) o
Construction in progress mainly represents hotel properties, which FRIRTERRABRBEZBED
will be held for the long-term. All construction in progress is located ¥ o TBEREIRMARPRARE - U
in Mainland China on land held under land use rights expiring from RAABER ZEM_FE TN~
2042 through 2046. FHEERz TERERAEZ L
Hp, o
Depreciation expenses have been included in general and MERZEBEERERR 2 — B RIT
administrative expenses in the income statement. HERNA -
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8

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Completed investment properties
Investment properties under
development

8

EERREME
BRPEME

e ISR R M R

REWE
Group
£

2009 2008
“EZNF —TETNF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FTET FHET
— 2,856,094
8,378,105 —
8,378,105 2,856,094

Group
&=
2009 2008
—ZEEhE —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTERT FAT
Beginning of the year F4) 2,856,094 2,736,835
Additions (including capitalisation of — #&(BIEEACF B K+ Hb# )
interest and land amortisation) 342,555 —
Transfer from prepayments for 83 B i FE N FR0E
acquisition of land 2,533,834 —
Transfer from properties under HEEBERIRE ZERTYE
development for long-term R4 p AR (36 129)
investment and land costs
(Notes 6 and 9) 801,833 135,840
Disposals HE (122,120) (258,602)
Transfer to completed properties for — = HEBEZ D ERYE R
sale and land costs b A (2,742,468) —
Fair value gains on investment KEYENTFEW T
properties 4,700,097 34,076
Exchange difference ME W =58 8,280 207,945
End of the year FR 8,378,105 2,856,094
BEAREEERAT —TBAFEFEH 1/9
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e I RR M

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All investment properties are located in Mainland China on land
held under land use rights expiring from 2057 through 2058 (2008:
2037 through 2045). They were stated at fair values with reference
to valuations performed on an open market value basis by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent qualified valuers, as at
31st December 2009.

As at 31st December 2009, approximately HK$504,743,000 (2008:
HK$1,163,875,000) of the Group’s investment properties were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 24).

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR LONG-
TERM INVESTMENT

Beginning of the year F47)

Additions (including capitalisation of — #i& (BIERE AL F B K+ b #EY)

interest and land amortisation)

Transfer from properties under EREAMHNECERTYE

development for sale (Note 10) (Mf7E10)
Transfer to investment properties BB EYE
Exchange difference b H ZERR
End of the year FHR

The Group has adopted the HKAS 40 Amendment—Investment
property with prospective application from 1st January 2009.

Properties being constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties were reclassified from properties under
development for long-term investment to investment properties at
1st July 2009 (when management's intention to develop the subject
properties for future use as investment properties is confirmed) at
their carrying amounts and are then measured at fair value.

BEWR#)

FrA A ME DAL BRRE K7
BRER-_ZRELEFE_TRANF(Z
ZENF  R-E=AFE_ZTNH
F)HREEm L AERE 2
e MEREMECL2ESEREL
HEMEERTARATAR-_ZFTN
FHZA=T—HRAMMSERE
EEITZMEE  ARFETIER -

RZZZNF+_A=+—H8 &%
[E47504,743,0008 0 ( ZEZ/)\F -
1,163,875,000/8 7T ) 2 I EMHE E K
REREERITEEZ2EAR (MM
24) °

RERMREZBRDYE
Group
£=m

2009 2008
ZBEEhF —TETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
125,856 135,157
35,079 91,681
47,224 —
(208,215) (110,689)
56 9,707

— 125,856

AEBEBR -_ZTTNF— A BERN
HAEEA 2 BB G A 405
(BFTAR) —REM* -

ERAERTRARRBIEREN R
MECR _ZETENFLA-REEE
EBRERBBYEAMCKRAIERE
WMEER - RERAESFHERIKRE
ZERTOEEBNSBRREDE -
Higm R HERE -
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10 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 10 AHEZBRBEPWE
Group
£H
2009 2008
ZEBEhEF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Beginning of the year F4) 8,910,522 5,183,349
Additions (including capitalisation of #7118 (B EE AL B N 1 b §)
interest and land amortisation) 4,947,042 7,401,392
Acquisition of subsidiaries I B A ) — 486,208
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AT (712,843) —
Transfer to properties under BERSIBERIARE ZERPYE
development for long-term (B13£9)
investment (Note 9) (47,224) —
Transfer to completed properties ERZIHNEC BERME
for sale (3,501,844) (4,684,440)
Exchange difference V&N =% 15,817 524,013
End of the year FHR 9,611,470 8,910,522
All properties under development for sale are located in Mainland FRARHEE 2 ERPYEDLR P
China and are located on land held under land use rights expiring BIRRE - WRABREBER-_Z=tF=E
from 2037 through 2078. ZTA )\ 4F AR E W B L b R PR A RS
B dH e
As at 31st December 2009, approximately HK$1,173,451,000 (2008: R-ZEZNF+-_A=+—H &
HK$1,368,974,000) of the Group’s properties under development EE#91,173,451,0008 T ( ZEZ )\
for sale were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities £ :1,368,974,000/8 7T ) 2 Al HE
(Note 24). ZERPYFEEERERERRITE

B8R m(HEE24) -
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10 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 10 AHEZZERYEE)
(Continued)
Group
£H
2009 2008
“EZNF ZTTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Properties under development for sale: A& 2 B E R Y
Expected to be completed and TEERG BB+ [ A&
available for sale after more than BT RAHEEE
twelve months 5,209,397 5,372,990
Expected to be completed and TEEIBAR T ZEARE T &
available for sale within twelve A E
months 4,402,073 3,537,532
9,611,470 8,910,522
11 COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE 11 AIHEEZEERYE
All completed properties for sale are located in Mainland China and EHAHEE 2 BERYESR P
are located on land held under land use rights expiring from 2037 B RPERAABBER T =tFE=
through 2078. T NFHEER 2 L ERERSE
o i
As at 31st December 2009, approximately HK$1,135,613,000 (2008: RZZEEAF+ZA=+—H XK
HK$1,511,804,000) of the Group’s completed properties for sale £ [E%91,135,613,0008 T ( —ZZEN
were pledged as collateral for the Group's banking facilities (Note £ :1,511,804,000/48 7T ) 2 Al HE
24). ZEERYFEEERERERRITE

B8R m(ME24) -
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BEEE
Group
£
Goodwill
mE
2009 2008
—EEBAF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Beginning of the year F4) 120,455 111,819
Exchange difference &R =% 205 8,636
End of the year FR 120,660 120,455
Cost B 132,095 131,735
Accumulated impairment charge 2 REER (11,435) (11,280)
Net book amount FREDFE 120,660 120,455
Impairment tests for goodwill BB ZRERNR
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (“CGUs") AENEZRIE R D R A E
identified according to operating segment. A segment level summary EReESEM([ReEESN]) -
of the goodwiill allocation is presented below: FESBEZ D HHEZ2HN T
2009
“BENE J\F
Property Property Property Property
development  management Total development  management
WERR NEER st MEER MEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR BT BT THT
Guangdong province EHRA 93,570 — 93,570 93,412 — 93,412
Beijing bl — 27,090 27,090 — 27,043 27,043
93,570 27,090 120,660 93,412 27,043 120,455
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using

zero growth rate.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2009:

Property development

Guangdong province

Gross margin ER=
Discount rate PrIR &

12 BEEE®)
ReELBiy akESERES
FEESTE - ZEHETAERRER
BRI BEEGHRERSE
BRI 2 MeRIAETT - B AEH
U EZ RS RE TRT R R o

—TTAFEREEAEEZZIER

.
B

Property management

345 MEEE
Beijing

RRE =
25.7% 16.6%
14.3% 14.3%

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2008:

Property development

MEBR YEEE
Guangdong province Beijing
ERE =
50.1% 2.1%
11.3% 11.3%

EF%
ek

Gross margin
Discount rate

—TE N\FEREEAEEIZIER

Property management

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU
within the operating segment. Management determined budgeted
gross margin based on past performance and its expectations for the
market development. The discount rates used are pre-tax.

HERBRIDARSITE LD HBAZR
TELBM - EEESREBEERA
RESHMSER 2 TRAETREERN
K o FIERAZITRERWARET RBAE
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13 SUBSIDIARIES 13 KEAQT
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) RMBARZEE
Company
N
2009 2008
—EThF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T3
Unlisted shares, at cost IE TR - IREKAE 85,076 84,931
Due from subsidiaries i NG B/ 14,580,809 11,244,047
14,665,885 11,328,978

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest FEUL M B A R 2 R
bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms. These | BRI TEE B R

amounts due from subsidiaries are considered equity in nature. fil o ZEREUHE A B RIEH
BAERIEY -

R-FEAF+-A=+—A
ZE BHED AR E RN E

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st December 2009
are set out in Note 42.

42 -
None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any RBEZZZTNF+ A
time during the year ended 31st December 2009. =+ —HIEFEANEMAEHE
BEWEA R EEG T %
TEEER -
(b) Loans to subsidiaries (b) MBARZER
Company
AT]
2009 2008
“EBEThE —TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHTT
Non-current SEME
Loans to subsidiaries M AR ZER — 170,499
Current k2
Loans to subsidiaries WEB AT ZEm 217,638 1,334,367
217,638 1,504,866

MEAR BRIy ERIF - F
FRAIEEZIEB(-ZZEZEN
F8EERIE) -

Loans to subsidiaries are unsecured and carry interest at 8% to
8.9% (2008: 8% to 8.9%) per annum.
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14 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 14 REEQATZKRE
Group
=5

2009 2008

—EEBAF —ETN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Beginning of the year F4 42,201 39,206
Share of profit less loss of associates 1G5 < A 7 FFE 1B (1,346) (33)
Exchange difference VE N %8 70 3,028
End of the year FR 40,925 42,201
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14 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 14 REBERRAZRER)

The Group's interest in associates, which are unlisted, is as follows:

Particulars of issued

shares held

FrEE BT R G 1E

Place of

incorporation

AR 3 it 2

Principal

EXT Assets
TEER &E
HK$'000

BT

AEERFLHBERE 2@

T

Liabilities

&

HK$'000
T

Revenues Profit/(loss)
WA &R (F58)
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TAT

Interest
held
Fria

0
%

2009

“ERNE

Guangdong Registered capital of Mainland China Operation of 6,243 5,607 - (523) 40.0%
Huasheng Cultural RMB5,000,000 FERRE school
Development Falinie BHER
Company Limited AR#5,000,0007C

ERELHALER
BRAR

Beijing BHL Logistics Registered capital of Mainland China Property 46,198 13,918 — (823) 25.0%
Limited S$20,000,000 R KRE development

ERRENRER Ballies MEER
BRAF 20,000,000%7T

2008

—ERNE

Guangdong Huasheng Registered capital of Mainland China Operation of 6,814 5,655 1,801 990 40.0%
Cultural Development RMB5,000,000 FREARRE school
Company Limited aliEie BIHER

ERELHECHR AR5,000,0007T
BRAR

Beijing BHL Logistics Registered capital of Mainland China Property 45,872 12,825 — (1,023) 25.0%
Limited US$20,000,000 FREARRE development

ERRENRES BalilieN MEBR
BRAF 20,000,000%7T

Investments in associates at 31st December 2009 include goodwill RZEZENF+ZA=1+—H R
of HK$8,009,000 (2008: HK$7,995,000). &N T 2R E B TERE8,009,000%
TL(ZZZT/\F : 7,995,000/ 7T) °
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15 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 15 R—EHEEZEHERZKRE
Group
%E
Share of net
assets Advance Total
PHBEEE B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET
At 1st January 2009 R-ZEZENF—HA—H 185,068 616,172 801,240
Share of post-acquisition results D5 UkBE1E 248 385,759 — 385,759
Exchange difference R 643 1,050 1,693
At 31st December 2009 RZZEZTNF
+=-—A=+—~H 571,470 617,222 1,188,692
At 1st January 2008 R-EZEN\F—HF—H 104,465 571,995 676,460
Capital injection EE 71,548 — 71,548
Share of post-acquisition results DG UkBE 18 245 (1,710) — (1,710)
Exchange difference [E N Z%B 10,765 44177 54,942
At 31st December 2008 NZETNEFE
+=-A=+—H 185,068 616,172 801,240

As at 31st December 2008 and 2009, investment in a jointly
controlled entity represents the Group’s investment in Beijing
Dongfangwenhua International Properties Company Limited (“BJ
Dongfangwenhua”), a company with a property development
project in Beijing, Mainland China.

RZEENER_ZEENF+ A
=+—8 - R—HEREHEEE
BT eAREERIL R R T XEERE
EERDA([AERBEHE]) 2K
B bR XEREEREIL R —
EzERIEE 2 Q7 o
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15

INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
(Continued)

In 2007, the Group acquired 60.98% equity interest in BJ
Dongfangwenhua, for a total consideration and capital contribution
of HK$820,190,000 (equivalent of approximately RMB795,584,000).
The Group is responsible for contributing 97% of the capital of BJ
Dongfangwenhua and is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in
BJ Dongfangwenhua. Ordinary resolutions of BJ Dongfangwenhua
require 75% of the voting of the Board of Directors. Besides, the
Group is entitled to 100% of the profit arising from the office
building and 45% of the profit arising from the hotel in the property

development project.

Advance to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms. The advance

is considered equity in nature.

15

R—EHEEZEFHERZRE
(&)

REZZELF - AEBREIL RS
NEE 2 60.98% B AMkEw - RERE
N F B #A%8 4820,190,000 7 7T (48
LR H AR % 795,584,000 7T ) ° A
SEBEEASBILRRANEZIT%
EXREREEEEGILRR T XE
57.14% 12 FHE - Ik RR I XE 2 E
BRARABEC/SNIREE - It
G - REETERESIEIL R T SE
T E BT 100% % F K2 5K B8 9 %
BRIEHBETR 245%mF)

[ — A RZEG B R R FAEK
- RS RYEREERRRE - B%
2B RAR SRR
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15 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 15 R—EHEEZEHERZKRE
(Continued) (%)
The Group's share of the assets and liabilities as at 31st December REBRZZEZNFRZZEZTNF
2008 and 2009, and the Group's share of revenues and results of +-_A=+t—HOhzBEENE
the jointly controlled entity for the year ended 31st December 2008 B URAEERBE_ZZN\FR
and 2009 are as follows: ZEENF+ A=+ —RHLEFERN
DI ERIEH B HEENEEDN
™
2009 2008
—EThE —ZETN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T T3
Assets: BE
Non-current assets IEREEE 1,503 1,588
Current assets RENEE 2,408,512 2,444,354
2,410,015 2,445,942
Liabilities: 8E&:
Non-current liabilities JERBEE (1,147,095) (1,676,689)
Current liabilities mEaE (691,450) (584,185)
(1,838,545) (2,260,874)
Net assets EEZFE 571,470 185,068
Revenues Wz 1,680,276 7
Cost of sales and expenses HERAR AL (924,209) (1,717)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEALER],(E518) 756,067 (1,710)
Taxation IR (370,308) —
Profit/(loss) for the year NEERF,(EEE) 385,759 (1,710)
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16

17

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ASSETS
Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into a jointly controlled
assets arrangement with Guangzhou Zhuguang Real Estate
Development Company Limited, an independent third party, under
which each of the Group companies and Guangzhou Zhuguang Real
Estate Development Company Limited contributed land and other
assets for the development of properties located in Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, mainland China. During the year ended 31st
December 2009, the Group's participating interest in these jointly
controlled assets was 95.5% (2008: 95.5%). The Group's share of
the net loss of the jointly controlled assets for the year amounted to
HK$29,228,000 (2008: profit of HK$394,637,000) and the net assets
of the jointly controlled assets as at 31st December 2009 amounted
to HK$1,112,228,000 (2008: HK$1,579,300,000).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed securities: EHES
— Equity securities — Hong Kong — BAFES — B
Unlisted securities: JEETHES -

- Equity securities — Mainland China ~ — &R &% — th B Ak

End of the year FR

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
within operating activities as part of changes in working capital in
the consolidated cash flow statement (Note 37).

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in other gains, net, in the consolidated income
statement (Note 29).

16

17

e I ERAR M

RHEFEHEEZRE
AEBETHBARIE—BEIE=
FEMEAEWERZEER ARG
SEHREGIEERYE - B - K
SEET AR REMNKLFHERE
BIRA RS AR NP EAEER
EEMZMERB I RHEMEE -
REEZTZNF+-A=T—H1E
FERN  NEBHEAZE LR EZE
BEISSH(ZZTZTN\F 1 955%)2
SHlkEm o AEEFE B LRE
il & 7 /5 ¥8 % %8 /29,228,000 % 7T
(ZZZ N\ F : & H394,637,000
L) MAEER-_ZTZNFE+=A
=+ — BB HEREESEEFEE D
£1,112,228,0008 L (ZEE)\F ¢
1,579,300,0007%7T) °

RAFEZEBRRYIRNIE
BE
Group
&8
2009 2008
ZEBEhEF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
10,742 11,315
341 340
11,083 11,655
BRATESBERIIRNMEEER
FEReMERELEFDNINIELE
BomEio 28 (MF37) -

BAVEBRBRIIENMBEE L
RFEEPH I ANGERER ZEM
Wik - FEEA(HTE29) -

A

ERIR

SEERAT
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e B ISR R M

18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

18 AHHLEMBEE

Group
£E

2009 2008

ZEBAF —EENEF

HK$'000 HK$’'000

THET FAT

Beginning of the year F4) 476,250 463,158

Additions iz 1,112,197 —
Fair value gain/(loss) recognised in RIEZRP R 2 A ERE

equity (Note 28) (&18) (Fft28) 1,082,325 (20,513)

Exchange difference V&N =58 947 33,605

End of the year FR 2,671,719 476,250

There were no disposals or impairment provisions on available-for-

sale financial assets in 2009 or 2008.

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:

REIZENFR-_ZZENFLELE
A E I B B SR L A R (E B

e

AHHERHEEBRRATEA

Group
&5
2009 2008
—BEBIEF —ETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Listed securities: FTES
— Equity securities — Hong Kong — kAR FESH — BB (@)
(Note (a)) 1,558,575 —
Unlisted securities: JELMRES :
— Equity securities — Mainland China — BAFES — PEIRREE
(Note (b)) GEO) 1,113,144 —
— Equity securities — Mainland China — BAFES — PEIRREE
(Note (a)) (PFif#E(a)) — 476,250
2,671,719 476,250
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18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

e I ERAR M

18 THHEEMBEE®)

(@ InJuly 2009, the investee company was listed on the Hong (a)

Kong Stock Exchange. The Group's investment represents

shares with a restriction period for transfer of one year from

the initial public offering. The fair value of the equity securities

held by the Group was determined on a fair value basis,

by discounting the market price of the listed shares for the

restriction associated with the investment.

The investment is denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

(b)  The available-for-sale financial asset is denominated in Chinese (b)

Renminibi. It represents 5.09% attributable equity interest in a
PRC financial institution (see Note 41(f)).

19 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND AND
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER CURRENT

R-ZFZENFLA  HRER
RITIRABRAET - AEEZ
REEBERAAMBEERFTA
BE—FRBEIFEH BN - K
SEMBRAE SR 2 A FER
NPEEEEE - THKER
RABR Bl LD 2 T B T,

RETIAETTAHE ©

AHHEMBEETIAARE
FHE - EEG - EhEM B
1#5.09% 2 B A a5 (5 KT R
41(f)) °

19 WELHENARERENRK
B ReREMRBEE

ASSETS
Group Company
&8 AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EThE —TTN\F ZBBAE IZTTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TR FHTT FTERT FHTT
Non-current IERE
Prepayments for U B + 3t FB A FRIE()
acquisition of land (i) 266,962 2,436,630 — —
Current k2
Prepayments for Uk B8 £ b FB A FRIAG)
acquisition of land (i) 7,363,482 6,142,999 — —
Deposits for acquisition SR AN %S 2 IR & (i)
of equity interests (ii) 53,299 53,208 — —
Guarantee deposit ERZE 23,853 23,812 — —
Prepaid construction TEft R
expenditures 26,075 25,217 — —
Land tender deposits TR RE 160,156 204,107 — —
Prepaid sales taxes TERTIHER 334,690 220,428 — —
Utility and other deposits 2 F 5% & A% 4 213,315 138,787 — —
Receivable from disposal ~ H&—REH B AR
of a subsidiary (iii) 2 MG R i) 198,664 — — —
Others Hih 121,899 104,604 224 199
1,131,951 770,163 224 199
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19 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND AND
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER CURRENT
ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

@

(iii)

Prepayments for acquisition of land represents advances made for
the acquisitions of land use rights in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou,
Tianjin, Dalian and Shanxi, Mainland China. Formal land use right
certificates have not yet been obtained as at 31st December 2009.

Prepayments for acquisition of land include an amount of
approximately HK$4,300 million (2008: HK$2,500 million) for the land
situated in the Chaoyang district of Beijing in connection with the
Group's acquisition of 80% equity interest in Believe Best Investments
Limited which, through its wholly owned subsidiary, possesses the
right to develop the Jing Run Project on the land (see Note 41(g)).

This represents advances made to independent third parties for the
acquisition of majority interests in certain Mainland China entities
whose principal activities are property holding and development. The
acquisitions are not yet completed as at 31st December 2009.

The balance represents consideration receivable from the disposal of
a subsidiary, Nam Fong Guangzhou Plaza Limited to Jumbo Advance
Investment Limited, a related party (see Note 41(e)).

19 W ENREREANK
B BERAMRBEE W)

(ii)

(iii)

Wi 40 7 B FIEIE SR AR B K
BEdb R - B BN KoE L KB
oL PEURBE £t FR#E M 1B 2 22
RKeRZEENF+ZRA=+—
B - EAEBBIER L AR -

e B 4 7 TR BB E R LR
15 & 2 b 8 494,300,000,000 7
JL(=ZZ \4 : 2,500,000,0007%
TT) v MR TR AE EURE S ER
BERARZ80%ERAR © Mk
ARIERENBRARBAERERHE
T8 B bk 2 R (R KIFE41(g)) °

IV HERKEE S T BRI RE T (K
ITREBRMESERRE) 2%
R ERm MBS =TT EH 2
B N_TENFF A=+~
B BERARTERK

BRAGHRERRABEALERERE
BRARIHENBAGIEAMEE
HHR AT MmEN 2 RE(RHE
41(e)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R M R

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 FEWERR KR HiEUWFIE
(a) Accounts receivable (a) EWERR

Consideration in respect of properties sold is generally payable
by the buyers at the time of completion of the sale and
purchase agreements. Rentals in respect of leased properties
and property management fees are generally payable in

advance on a monthly basis.

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

EHEMEZRE-—REARE
B E BRET XN -
HEMEZHERYMEERE
—RBB AN -

FEWRF 2 BREE DT T

Group
#£@

2009 2008
—EBAF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
0 to 3 months 0Z3E A 54,317 41,031
3 to 6 months 326f@A 6,343 2,438
6 to 9 months 6Z9fE A 4,378 —
9 to 12 months 9Z 121E A 3,250 —
Over 12 months HBiB121E8 A 78,607 29,108
146,895 72,577

Carrying values of accounts receivables denominated in RMB

approximate their fair values.

As at 31st December 2009, approximately 16% (2008: 33%)
of the accounts receivable was due from one (2008: one)
customer. Other than this, there is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to accounts receivable as the Group has a

large number of customers.

As at 31st December 2009, accounts receivable of
HK$54,317,000 (2008: HK$41,031,000) were neither past
due nor impaired.

AR EHE 2 YRR 2 iR
EEEEATEES

RZZEZERF+_A=+—
H - EBRERFLNE16%(ZF
TN\F 133%) A/ (ZE
TNF : —B)BEPHER - BRIt
SN BRAEEBERERS -
FEUER I EE B R R o

RZZEZTAF+ZA=+—
H -+ FEUBR 54,317,000 7T
(ZZZ\F : 41,031,000
T BRI E - INERE o

BEAREEARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

BrRE R MY EE

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Accounts receivable (Continued)

As at 31st December 2009, accounts receivable of
HK$92,578,000 (2008: HK$31,546,000) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The

ageing analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows:

0 to 3 months 0Z318A

3 to 6 months 3%E6MEA

6 to 9 months 62918 A

9 to 12 months 9Z 1218 A
Over 12 months BiE121E A

During the year, impairment loss on accounts receivable of
HK$19,522,000 (2008: Nil) was recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of
accounts receivable mentioned above.

Other receivables

Other receivables relate to the Group’s participation in first
class land development projects in Mainland China with fixed
guaranteed returns based on a pre-determined percentage of
funds utilised by the Group.

Other receivables are denominated in RMB. Their carrying

amounts approximate fair values.

20 FEWERF

(a)

R EAth FEIFRIR (48)

PEUS BRFR (42)

RZZFEERF+A=+—
H - U ER 092,578,000 % 7T
(ZZZ N\ F : 31,546,000 7%
T BB EERRE o thFEFKIA
1% LT A R AR iR 2 B
2?\}575%5 o LERUIRR 2

H pi

X (N

Group
£E

2009 2008
ZBEIF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
6,343 2,438
4,378 —
3,250 —
78,607 29,108
92,578 31,546

(b)

FR - ERERZBEEIE
19,522,000 L ( ZTZ\F :
)RR B B RIER -

AEBEEG 2 RKEERR
APt FEMRAR SR 2 BREI B ©

H B FRIR

HoAth /8 o IR R AN 52 (B 22 B e
B KB A R 75 B E 12 3R (1R IR AS
SEFMPAES R EBLER
BAOLEE) 2t —RRAEIR
BEREE -

HAth Y RIBAA R EHE
REEEATERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R M R

21 PLEDGED/CHARGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH 21 BER ARBRTERERS
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RREZEEY
Group Company
£8 AFE]
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EBAE —"TTN\F ZBBEAFE ZTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT THET BT
Cash at bank and on hand {7 R FHERE 6,714,577 2,414,100 21,303 785
Short-term bank deposits 5 HIRITIER 46 46 — —
6,714,623 2,414,146 21,303 785
Less: pledged/charged o BRI
bank deposits RITIFER (168,479) (271,450) — —
Cash and cash equivalents R& KA HEY 6,546,144 2,142,696 21,303 785
As at 31st December 2009, the Group's cash at bank of R-BTZNF+-_A=+—H &X&
approximately HK$107,231,000 (2008: HK$87,567,000) was EER1TIH$49107,231,0008 L (=F
charged by certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage T)\4F :87,567,000/87C) BB T E
facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group’s properties. TFiR1T - AERITRERBRAEE

MEERETIRIBEER

As at 31st December 2009, the Group's cash at bank of RZZEZNF+-_A=+—8 ' &%
approximately HK$13,426,000 (2008: HK$108,757,000) was B A 804713,426,0008 L (ZTEN
restricted due to pending litigations. £ : 108,757,000 7T ) 2 R1TIRET)

RFEPRFF AT Z 2R -
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e B ISR R M

21 PLEDGED/CHARGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
The carrying amounts of pledged/charged bank deposits and cash

and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

21

BERHRRTERRRAS
RESEEM#)

DR MR RTERRASRRS
S{EY 2 REETIL TS HTIE -

Group Company
£8 NFE

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBAFE —EITN\F ZEBEIF —TETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT TET THETT
Chinese Renminbi AR 6,157,092 2,367,541 — —
US dollar =TT 436,921 38,412 11,719 200
Hong Kong dollar BT 120,610 8,193 9,584 585
6,714,623 2,414,146 21,303 785

The cash and cash equivalents include presale proceeds of
HK$825,025,000 (2008: HK$475,973,000), which are used for
purchases of construction materials and payments of construction
fee of the relevant property projects when approval from local State-
Owned Land and Resource Bureau is obtained.

22 LAND COST PAYABLE

Land premium payable JER i RS
Land compensation payable FEAS b (E R
Less: Amount due within one year W AT AR BEAER—FR

BEZEH

included in current liabilities

Land cost payable is denominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts
approximate fair values.

22

Re kRSB REBEMENR
15.825,025,000 L (Z T N\ F -
475,973,000/ 7T) * ZEFIBRES
#h )5 B + 1 ERE IR R ER AR
BEEMERINEBYMEER 2 &S
B -

FEAS £ 3 SR A
Group
L]

2009 2008
—EENEF —EENEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FRR FHT
75,689 80,367
497,757 349,502
573,446 429,869
(302,418) (323,696)
271,028 106,173

JERN LA AA R EHE - FREE
SEAFERE
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e ISR R M R

23 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 23
The ageing analysis of accounts payable (including amounts due to
related companies of trading nature) is as follows:

FE 4 B3R
FEA AR 3K 2 AR 6 AT (25 FE S T 7R
ERRBRRSMEZRFOWT -

Group
£

2009

—EENE
HK$'000
T

2008
—ETNF
HK$°000
FHET

0 to 3 months 0=318A 2,941,424 2,933,721

R-ZZhE+-F=1+—8  Eff
BRI #92,471,757,0008 L (=2 =
J\EE ©1,434,475,00058 7T ) B
BEBRNADNBETHBEAR D
MR 2 BB R EZ BRAK

As at 31st December 2009, approximately HK$2,471,757,000 (2008:
HK$1,434,475,000) of accounts payable were due to subsidiaries
of minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the Company in
respect of property construction fees.

RNBRFAARKE - REESER

Accounts payable are denominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts

approximate fair values. HEMEE -
24 BORROWINGS 24 BB
Group Company
£E A

2009 2008 2009 2008
—gBAE —TTN\F —RBAE —TIF
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FATT THET FHTT

Non-current FEMED
Bank borrowings RITIEE 7,439,901 7,644,772 — —
Senior notes BhRERE 2,676,697 2,663,312 2,676,697 2,663,312
Convertible bonds AR ES — 2,022,127 — 2,022,127
10,116,598 12,330,211 2,676,697 4,685,439

Current B
Bank borrowings RITEE 4,062,575 4,262,798 — —
Convertible bonds AIAREZ 2,169,685 — 2,169,685 —
6,232,260 4,262,798 2,169,685 —
Total borrowings wiEE 16,348,858 | 16,593,009 4,846,382 4,685,439
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e I RR M

24 BORROWINGS (Continued) 24 BE#)
In November 2005, the Company issued 8.125% senior notes RZZEZERF+—RH  XREIHELT
with an aggregate nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent 48 T & 3 350,000,000 3 7T (4 HH &
to approximately HK$2,730,000,000), for a total consideration of #2,730,000,0007%8 7T ) Z 8.125[E &
approximately HK$2,733,182,000. The senior notes mature in seven FRE - AREXNR2,733,182,000
years (November 2012) and are repayable at their nominal value BT BERBREFR(ZE—Z
of US$350,000,000. The Company will be entitled at its option F+—A)HH - WAKRESE ZHE
to redeem all or a portion of the senior notes on and after 9th 350,000,000 T fEE - RAAKE
November 2009 at the redemption prices specified in the offering BEEN _ZEZNFE+—ANBZHMA
circular, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. eI EBKPETA 2 BEE (N Lk

BEEDRHEMNRRTZHE)E
EESHBE=E-SE S

The senior notes recognised in the balance sheet are calculated as REEBERBERZEBARBFEN
follows: :
2009 2008
“EZNF —TTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FHTT
Carrying amount at 1st January R—A—BZEREE 2,663,312 2,674,717
Amortisation of premium BiHRE (516) (497)
Amortisation of issue costs BEHEITRAR 11,857 10,494
Exchange difference PEH Z%8 2,044 (21,402)
Carrying amount at 31st December Rt-—A=+—HZEREE 2,676,697 2,663,312
The senior notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by certain BREREHSE THE AT HE RER)
subsidiaries and are secured by the capital stock of the subsidiaries. RUEEHER - W AM B 282 RAE
The net assets of these subsidiaries were approximately R R ZFETNF+ZA=+—
HK$4,026,468,000 (2008: HK$934,654,000) as at 31st December CHREWBATCEEFENR
2009. 4,026,468,000 8 7T ( Z 2T )\ F :

934,654,000/ 7T) °

On 2nd February 2007, the Company completed the issue of RZZZLF AR KRFTHK
RMB1,830,400,000 aggregate principal amount of USD settled BIUETENZT B AR ES - &K
Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds. The bonds mature in three years TR A H AR 1,830,400,0007T ©
(February 2010) from the issue date at 104.59% of the nominal ZEEERETHERA=ZFE(Z

value or can be converted into ordinary shares of the Company on T-FF - A)RAEEE210459%
or after 14th March 2007 at a conversion price of HK$30.08 per EIER kAR =TT F=A+WA
share at a fixed exchange rate of RMB0.9958 to HK$1. A IR 30.08 8 T 2 R (B

BRARREBER - HEEEXSA
[R#0.99587T H BT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR M

24 BORROWINGS (Continued) 24 EE&#)

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a BEBH 2 AFETIRELIETRE
BHEREITREZ TISFIRTH - I
IR AR EA R ATREEE -
HEZRSBEFRER D HREIRH
Bk - BRTSBERNEREE
B - Bt AR R (ME28) -

market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond at
the time of issue, and is recorded as current borrowings on the
amortised cost basis, until extinguished on conversion or maturity of
the bonds. The residual amount, representing the value of the equity
conversion option, is included in shareholders’ equity (Note 28).

REEBBEXRPERZ JRREST
RN

The convertible bonds recognised in the balance sheet are calculated
as follows:

HK$'000

TR

Net proceeds from of convertible bonds issued R -ZTZT+F£ = — AT 2 oK ES

on 2nd February 2007 2R EIEFRE 1,790,801
Equity component TEZS BB (227,734)
Liability component on initial recognition R-TT+FE = A - AVEERR

on 2nd February 2007 aEsn 1,563,067
Interest expense FER 104,390
Exchange difference i H R 85,014
Liability component at 31st December 2007 N-ET+F+_A=+—R2B8E&EHH 1,752,471
Interest expense (Note 32) FLEFZ (M7E32) 129,317
Exchange difference JEN =58 140,339
Liability component at 31st December 2008 REZZENF+ZA=+—HZEBEHH 2,022,127
Interest expense (Note 32) BRI (B3E32) 143,990
Exchange difference [ R E%E 3,568
Liability component at 31st December 2009 RZEZTNF+—A=+—AZEEHH 2,169,685

BEAREEARAT
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e B ISR R M

24 BORROWINGS (Continued) 24 BE#)
The maturity analysis of the borrowings is as follows: BEZEHITET

Bank borrowings Senior notes Convertible bonds Total
RITEE BERE RRES EH)
2009 2009 2009 200 2009

“BENF £ ZBEAF \& Z8BAF F ZBEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET TR TR TAL TAL FAL FET

Within one year —FR 4,062,575 4,262,798 — — 2,169,685 — 6,232,260 4,262,798
Between one and —FERER

two years 1,907,019 5,016,827 — — — 2,022,127 1,907,019 7,038,954
Between two and MEERFN

five years 4,770,621 2,299,106 2,676,697 2,663,312 — — 7,447,318 4,962,418
Over five years BRRF 762,261 328,839 - — - - 762,261 328,839

11,502,476 | 11,907,570 | 2,676,697 | 2,663312 | 2,169,685 | 2,022,127 | 16,348,858 | 16,593,009

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the EEREENTIEEREMREE
following currencies with the respective weighted average effective B2 B METHEFEAT

interest rates:

2009 2008
—EENF —EENEF
Effective Effective
HK$’000 interest rate HK$'000 interest rate
FHET BERAI=E BT BERRH =
Chinese Renminbi AREE
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 11,502,476 6.2% | 11,907,570 7.5%
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 2,169,685 7.0% 2,022,127 7.0%
US dollar E
— Senior notes — BREE 2,676,697 8.6% 2,663,312 8.6%

16,348,858 16,593,009
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e ISR R M R

24 BORROWINGS (Continued) 24 BE#)
The carrying amounts and the fair values of the borrowings are as BEZREBERAFENAT
follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AYE

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF —EE)N\EF —EENF —EE)N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHTT THET T
Bank borrowings RITIEE 11,502,476 | 11,907,570 | 11,608,873 | 11,953,022
Senior notes BEZE 2,676,697 2,663,312 2,711,358 1,132,469
Convertible bonds AR ES 2,169,685 2,022,127 1,812,670 1,103,773

16,348,858 | 16,593,009 | 16,132,901 | 14,189,264

The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using rates based RER - R FEDIBBEREEFHE
on the Group’s average borrowings rate of 4.9% to 5.7% as at BEFRIERSTE(ZTZTNF .
the year end (2008: 6.3% to 8.3% per annum), depending on the 63EESIE)EA 2AE(RTEE
currency denomination of the borrowings. BERER)AE 2 TERSINER] -
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24 BORROWINGS (Continued)
As at 31st December 2009, the Group's banking facilities were

secured by:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the Group’s land costs of approximately HK$4,451,119,000
(2008: HK$5,783,817,000);

the Group’s hotel properties of approximately HK$90,104,000
(2008: HK$318,662,000);

the Group's properties under development for sale of
approximately HK$1,173,451,000 (2008: HK$1,368,974,000);

the Group’s completed properties for sale of approximately
HK$1,135,613,000 (2008: HK$1,511,804,000);and

the Group’s investment properties of approximately
HK$504,743,000 (2008: HK$1,163,875,000).

24

& ()
K-_EThE+-A=+—B  £%
B2 SRTERTA T IS B

0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

7K £2 @ #9 4,451,119,000 i JT
(ZZZ )\ : 5,783,817,000
ETT) 2 AN

AREE 4790,104,0008 0 ( ==
T\ £ : 318,662,000/ 7T) 2
B

7K £2 [H #91,173,451,000 i JT
(=ZZZ )\ : 1,368,974,000
BIL)ZAHEEZERFTY
3

7K £ B 491,135,613,000 7% 7T
(ZZZ N\ F :1,511,804,000
BIT) 2 Al S 2R
5

7N & 8] 49504,743,00078 7T ( =
T )\ £ 1,163,875,000 /&
TO)ZIEME -
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25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is

a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same

tax authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

e ISR R M R

25 EEFISH
EEREEER B EEEASHRIES
ERAEE RN TR KR
FSBi AR —FBRET - F A
IS o ST

Group
£H
2009 2008
—EBhE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Deferred tax assets: EETHTEEE
— Deferred tax assets to be — BRTZERA‘KE
recovered after more than FIEFIBEE
twelve months 139,318 151,095
— Deferred tax assets — B+ @A RKE 2
to be recovered within RIEFLIAE B
twelve months 51,969 22,283
191,287 173,378
Deferred tax liabilities: FEERIAEE -
— Deferred tax liabilities to be — BN+ @ ABEE 2
realised after more than REFIAR G
twelve months (4,015,543) (3,570,416)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be — BN+t —EARERZ
realised within twelve months FIEFIBAE (487,200) (319,686)
(4,502,743) (3,890,102)
(4,311,456) (3,716,724)
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e B ISR R M

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The net movements in deferred taxation are as follows:

25 EEFIEH2)
EEREE R BT

Group
%m

Assets/(liabilities)

Beginning of the year
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Disposal of subsidiaries

Recognised in the consolidated
income statement (Note 33)
Credited directly to equity (Note 28)

Exchange difference

End of the year

BE/(Af)

F1
W B 8 2 )
HEH B AR

KR & B RER (PE33)

B ik (FHFE28)
PE S ERE

FR

The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,

without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Beginning of the year

Recognised in the consolidated

income statement
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Disposal of subsidiaries

Credited directly to equity (Note 28)

Exchange difference

End of the year

F1

RiFRBERER

Lo L) VNG]
HEMB AR
BRI (P EE28)
PE S EEE

FR

2009

—BENE
HK$'000
FHBT

2008
—ETNF
HK$'000
FHTT

(3.716,724) (3,759,809)
— (91,249)
427,335 —
(1,058,758) 183,798
47,106 225,992
(10,415) (275,456)
(4,311,456) (3,716,724)

BERIAEEMREHRIRBE 2 &
(Y| E BARR DA R A 2 A 8RR

)T
EEREBEEE
Revaluation surplus
BEfhZeR
2009 2008
i35 3 —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET BT
(3.890,102) (3,867,687)
(1,089,538) 128,756
— (91,249)
440,466 —
47,106 225,992
(10,675) (285,914)
(4,502,743) (3,890,102)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Beginning of the year F)
Recognised in the consolidated

income statement RS IBERER

Disposal of subsidiaries HEME R A
Exchange difference ME 2R
End of the year F

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2009, the Group did
not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately HK$183,879,000
(2008: HK$115,559,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to
approximately HK$893,802,000 (2008: HK$574,302,000). Tax
losses amounting to approximately HK$428,256,000 (2008:
HK$244,687,000) are expiring from 2010 through 2014. The

remaining tax losses do not have expiry dates.

As at 31st December 2009, deferred tax liabilities of HK$767,918,000
(2008: HK$545,015,000) have not been recognised for withholding
tax on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries, as these

earnings are expected to be reinvested.

e ISR R M R

25 EEFTSEB#)

FEBIEEE
Tax losses
BEEBE

2009 2008
—EThF —ETN\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET T
173,378 107,878
30,780 55,042
(13,131) —
260 10,458
191,287 173,378

IRIERTE & B Ty FEARRA R 15 Al 2R F]
7 38 R TR E R B v ) B R i Bk AT A
EoBEBEEER - RZEThF
+ZA=+—8 AEEVEREH
TH [E5 18 49893,802,000 B L (= F =
JVEE 1 574,302,000 7T ) fE R IR T
FiTE & FE 49183,879,000/8 L ( = &
= /\H 1 115,559,000/ 7T ) ° B
#9428,256,000 T (Z T T )\ F -
244,687,000/ 7T ) 2 BIBEE KR =
T-EFE_T-NFAER - &
RIBE LB EMAR o

R-BEZAF+_A=+—H &
EERETHBARRELZF
EHHRMHABERECHEAR
767,918,000 % ;L ( Z T T )\ :
545,015,000 7T) « REALERF
TEHA FRIERIRE -
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e B ISR R M

26 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES 26 FHBEER

Group Company
£E D]
2009 2008 2009 2008

—ETAE —TT/\F —REAE —TI)F
HK$"000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000

FTET FAT FET FAT
Hong Kong profits FEREENEH
tax payable 19,659 13,507 — —
Mainland China corporate FEffrR B AFED 2
income tax payable FTiSHs 852,035 1,349,607 16,317 13,930
Mainland China land FERT R B A BE + b
appreciation tax payable — #Z{EF{ 3,485,643 2,799,116 — —
4,357,337 4,162,230 16,317 13,930
27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 BXR
Number of
ordinary
shares Par value
ZEREE H{E
‘000 HK$'000
T FAT
Issued: 28T :
At 1st January 2008 and RZZZENF—A—BRK
31st December 2008 —EEN\F+-_A=+—H 1,472,368 147,237
Issue of shares BT
— Placements — id& 120,000 12,000
At 31st December 2009 RZZEENF+=RA=+—H 1,592,368 159,237
The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000 A T 8 A% 48 214 2,000,000,000 %
shares (2008: 2,000,000,000 shares), with a par value of HK$0.1 per (=ZZ )\ : 2,000,000,0000% ) &%
share (2008: HK$0.1 per share). HEE..VET(ZTZTNF : 015
TO) 2 &R e
All issued shares are fully paid. FIEBEBITRMNIEIE HUB K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
In June 2009, the Company issued 120,000,000 shares
(approximately 7.54% of the Company’s issued share capital
as enlarged by the subscription) for a cash consideration of
HK$1,596,000,000. The related transaction costs amounting to
approximately HK$16,337,000 have been netted off against the
proceeds received.

Share options

The Company has an employee share options scheme, under which
it may grant options to employees (including executive directors of
the Company) to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a
limit that the total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the share options schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The exercise price
will be determined by the Company’s board of directors and shall
at least be the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant of the options, (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the options, and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company's shares of HK$0.1 each. This employee share
options scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to
2012.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

27

e I ERAR M

& NE P

RZZZENFEAA  ARAENUR
% X & 1,596,000,000 #& T 3 77
120,000,000 % i {7 - &R AR A
IERBER 2 B BITRALT.54% ©
THRARZ A2 #16,337,0007%8 L B 82
EUER 2 FTiS ZUE MR o

R
ARARE-HEESBEETE - &
- ARBAAEES (BEARRHR
TEF)RLBRENRBAQFR
o - R DR ERER R AL
BB RITE 2 B T AT R 2
2B RE - NMEBEARDQ BT
BTN 230% © (TREMBAR
AEEEET UK TIRTI=%
ZEEE (VAR FRBRO N ERER
HEHZHE - (DR ARRDRE
EBRERLAHAMAERSE ¥
FTHE + RiDAR RN EESR
0.1 - NMeERRETIANEE
—E-CHF I FHEgSE R -

RARTTE RS B & E AR 4T
BITEEZESHMT

Average
exercise
price in HK$
per share Options
GRS
BITATEE Rt
‘000
T
At 1st January 2008 RZZEZENF—HA—H 21.24 8,964
Lapsed RE 21.24 (8,964)
At 31st December 2008 and 2009 RIEBEE)\FR_ETNF
+=-—A=+—8 —
LEAREEERAT —2ThEFE 209
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e I RR M

27 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 27 BAE)
Share options (Continued) BB ()
No share option was granted or exercised during the years ended HEZZTTN\FR-ZTTNF+=A
31st December 2008 and 2009. 8,964,000 share options were =+—BIEFE - BIERLRITEE
lapsed upon the resignation of two executive directors during the g - HE_TENF+=ZA=1+—
year ended 31st December 2008. HIEFE + 8,964,00017 I i% # 2 7

AN TE BB ERRR
28 RESERVES 28 f#fE

Group
&8
Asset Convertible Currency
Share  Statutory revaluation bonds translation Retained
premium  reserves (i) reserve (iii) reserve  difference earnings Total
EEEM AR BERER
RIDRE EEREG) fik (iii) BHRE 8 REBF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR THET TET TR TR TR TR
Balance at st January 2009 RZZZNF—A—H
=33 6,664,596 161,117 1,659,834 227,734 2,278,132 9,041,244 20,032,657
Currency translation differences S [E 3 258 - - — — 88,501 — 88,501
Profit for the year FERT — — — — — 5799573 5,799,573
Dividend relating to 2008 BRZZZNFZRE - - - — —  (154,599)  (154,599)
Dividend relating to 2009 BRZZZNEFZRE - - — - —  (146,498)  (146,498)
Issue of shares BIRG
— Placements — fieflk 1,584,000 — — - — — 1,584,000
Share issue expenses nETR Y (16,337) — — — — — (16,337)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale A HERHEEZ
financial assets (Note 18) AT (B (MFE18) — — 1,082,325 - — — 1,082,325
Realised upon disposal of HERELEMER
properties held for sale (i) 23 (i) - - (282,222) - - - (282,222)
Deferred tax (Note 25) BB A (F13E25) - — 47,106 - — - 47,106
Balance at 31st December 2009  RZZTZENEF
+ZA=+—-B2
s 8,232,259 161,117 2,507,043 227,734 2,366,633 14,539,720 28,034,506
Analysis by: A1
Company and subsidiaries ARA KM BAR 14,075,889
Jointly controlled entity HFEEFIEER 467,697
Associates NG| (3,866)
14,539,720
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e ISR R M R

28 RESERVES (Continued) 28 fEfE#)

Group
Asset  Convertible Currency

Share Statutory  revaluation bonds  translation Retained
premium reserves (i) reserve (jii) reserve difference earnings

BESf Mgl ERER
RfEE  RERE R M (i) 8 REEA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt FAL BT BT TR BT TR

Balance at 1st January 2008 WZEZN\F—A—H

=i 6,707,997 161,117 2,001,276 227,734 976,727 7,642,295 17,717,146
Currency translation differences  HE R 25 — — - — 1,301,405 — 1,301,405
Profit for the year FERF — — - - — 1963724 1,963,724
Dividend relating to 2007 BRZZZLEZRE — — — — — (47,158 (471,158)
Dividend relating to 2008 BRZZZNFZRE - — — — —  (140,022)  (140,022)
Employee share options scheme (& & &Rzt 2
— Value of services provided —FRERBER 3,004 — — — — — 3,004
Share options lapsed BRI ERE (46,405) — — — - 46,405 -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AJ{t &R EE 2
financial asset (Note 18) ATFEEEFES) — - (20,513) - - - (20,513)
Realised upon disposal of HERFEHEMER
properties held for sale (i) 25 (ii) — —  (546,921) — — —  (546921)
Deferred tax (Note 25) IEFERIR (Ff3E25) — — 225,992 — — — 225,992

Balance at 31st December 2008 H=ZE\&E

+ZA=+-Bz
=23 6,664,596 161,117 1,659,834 227,734 2,278,132 9,041,244 20,032,657
Representing: &
2008 Final dividend ZEEN\ERERE 154,599
Others Hit 8,886,645
9,041,244
Analysis by: i
Company and subsidiaries KRR RHBAR 8,961,826
Jointly controlled entity HRITHEE 81,938
Associates NG (2,520)

9,041,244
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e B ISR R MR

28 RESERVES (Continued)

Balance at 1st January 2009 RZZZENF—H—H

ol 3o
Profit for the year FERT
Currency translation difference  &#[& ¥ 258
Issue of shares Eseran)
— Placements —iE
Share issue expenses RN BT
Payment of dividends SRS
Balance at 31st December 2009 R=—ZZNF
TZA=T—Bz&H

Balance at 1st January 2008 RZZT\F—HF—H
o
Profit for the year FEERM
Currency translation difference  E#&[E 5 =%
Employee share options scheme (& & B &gzt 2]
— Value of services provided ~— — Fri2 LIRS BE

Share options lapsed BRM Bk

Payment of dividends XS

Balance at 31st December 2008 W -ZZ \F
+ZA=t—Rz&%

Representing: &

2008 Final dividend “ET\FREKE

Others Hith

Share

premium

RADEE
HK$'000

T

28

Convertible
bonds
reserve
AR
B
HK$'000

FAT

)

Company
AT
Currency

translation

difference
B
EXEH
HK$'000

FATL

Retained

earnings

REBA
HK$'000

FATL

Total

#5t
HK$'000

6,664,596 227,734 779,207 278,372 7,949,909
— — — 618,940 618,940
— — 10,553 — 10,553
1,584,000 — — — 1,584,000
(16,337) - - - (16,337)
— — —  (301,097) (301,097)
8,232,259 227,734 789,760 596,215 9,845,968
6,707,997 227,734 (100,037) 475,006 7,310,700
_ — — 368,141 368,141
— — 879,244 — 879,244
3,004 — — — 3,004
(46,405) — — 46,405 —
— — —  (611,180)  (611,180)
6,664,596 227,734 779,207 278,372 7,949,909
154,599
123,773

278,372
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

(0}

(i)

(iii)

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are required
to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior
year losses) to the statutory reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at
rates determined by their respective boards of directors. The statutory
reserves can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for
the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund
can be utilised for the development of business operations. When the
statutory reserves reach an amount equal to 50% of the registered
capital of the Company’s subsidiaries, further appropriation needs not
be made.

Upon completion of the acquisition of Guangzhou Nonggongshang
Construction and Development Company Limited in 2007, Guangzhou
Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate Limited (“GZQREL") became a subsidiary
of the Group and the fair value gain in respect of the 69.5%
interest in GZQREL previously held by the Group of approximately
HK$2,180,096,000 net of tax has been accounted for as an asset
revaluation reserve directly in equity on acquisition. Upon subsequent
delivery of the properties developed by GZQREL, which represents
partial disposal of the business of GZQREL, the related portion of the
asset revaluation reserve is released to the income statement.

Asset revaluation reserve represents revaluation reserve of available-
for-sale financial assets and fair value gain in respect of 69.5% interest
in GZQREL previously held by the Group.

e SRR

28S fEfE(#)

29

(ii)

(iii)

R B RBRRMETA - AAF
TR BIRFE RS e 482 2 I BB A
AREERBREEN(CEREBEFE
ERR) PR Mo DEERER
CEHRAD  HEDHEERS
EE o AERE BIEREBESF
EERE BIERITAM - M
RESRRBIFRRET - B5E
REZEIEERARARMB ARG
MEAR50% 2 LFER - #5HRME—
HEREK -

R-ZTLFRRRERMNTET
BEEERAEAR(TEAIAA
A% BNKIEEHEESR
REN[BED R AEREBZHBA
Al - AEBE S ATF A E#69.5%1#
52 A EWE#2,180,096,0007%
T(EHNBRFHE) ERBEREET
ERIIEBEMBERE - £EEX
B ER(BLERE
Ho¥ER) AEBGFHIBZ BN
DS AU ER ©

AEEMARERETREENHEE
KB B SR B SE Al A (5 #069.5%
Rea AT EWE 2 B -

Hftpigas o B

29 OTHER GAINS, NET

2009 2008
—EENF —ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET BT
Excess of acquirer’s interest over cost  UgBE ARERE SRR A 2 7018
of acquisition — 193,489
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR Z WS
(Note37(b)) (BF5E37(b)) 621,933 —
Loss on disposal of certain equity HE—fFIBARETREZERE
interest in a subsidiary (136) —
Dividend income from JEEMIEERBIUA
unlisted investments 31,313 365
Government grants AT BD 81,496 79,898
Fair value loss on financial assets RATEEBERIIERZ
at fair value through profit or loss WBEE AP EEE (573) (8,357)
734,033 265,395
BEAREERRAT —ZThEFH 213
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e AR

30 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing costs and

general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

Advertising costs
Amortisation of land costs (Note 6)
Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of completed properties sold
Depreciation of properties and
equipment
Direct operating expenses arising
from investment properties that
— generate rental income
— did not generate rental income
Employees’ benefits costs
(including Directors’ emoluments)
(Note 31)
Loss on disposal of properties and
equipment
Net exchange loss/(gain)
(included in general and
administrative expenses)
Operating lease rental in respect
of premises

EERX

T bR ASEE 35 (P Ee)
2 Gillkn

& BRI E 2 AR
MERRETE

UNTERIREMEEE L
BREERX
—EXESWA
—WEELAHSEA

BREBHKA
(BEE=M) (HE31)

HEMERRBER

&R &R (e FER
FIA—REITRER)

MEZKEMERS

30 MBS 2HX
B IR E A - ERTISHRE
A - AR—RRITBER - Hirm

2009
—EENE

HK$'000
TFET

239,019

9,409

5,000

6,129,462

91,250

532

2,430

400,674

995

442

25,309

2008
—ETNF
HK$'000
TETT
268,757
8,110
5,000
5,533,692
85,382
2,277
3,949

448,888

19,913

(272,264)

31,426
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e SRR

31 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS (INCLUDING 31
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BERAKE(BRESHE)

2009 2008
—EThE —TTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHEIT
Salaries and allowances e loRgh 301,826 330,426
Sales commission and bonus HEME R 43,992 59,996
Share-based payments R BER 2 EN(BERHZ
(Share options granted) BERRAE) — 3,004
Pension costs RIRE A
— Defined contribution plans — B HEETE 54,810 55,362
— Provision for long-service — RERGSEE
payment 46 100
400,674 448,888

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (”the MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group (the
employer) and its employees make monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The monthly
contributions of each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in mainland China, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in mainland China. The Group’s employees make
monthly contributions to the plans at approximately 8% of the
relevant income (comprising salaries, allowances and bonus),
while the Group contributes 12% to 22% of such income and
has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable
to the retired employees.

(a)

BihE — REMKETE
REECBEEEARELHZ
H—TAR BB AEE
ZEREMHETE - Bl SR
Bortal([RESTE]) - R
BoaEesrdl  AEE(UEX)
LEEBSBERAHEARE
EEPIFTAE S BIRZIEB K
AZ5%MZaEIEG AftEK -
BREREEFREZGAHERZ
FREA1,0008T - MER
1,000 7T LA T8 2 50 Bl &8 B
MHE -

R B KR XM PARE -
AEBR/ERTERNEZEE
EE—EmBERERZRIRG
- AEEREESAKRENER
WA(BREHE - 2R RIEL)
#I8% EETBIMF MR - ANEKE
ARZE M A12%E22%1EH
K - BRELHFI - RNEE
T EEMBEERRRSNRE
f-BEREPZERNRFEEER
XERKEEZ 2BRAE -

A

LRIREEARAF

—2EnEFHR 215
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e B ISR R MR

31 EMPLOYEES' BENEFITS COSTS (INCLUDING 31 EEBARA(BREESHE)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (#&)
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (Continued) (a) BhkE — R EHREE
(&)
During the year ended 31st December 2009, the aggregate Bz _ZZAFE+-_A=1+—
amount of the employer contributions made by the Group HIEFEHE  AEEELZ
amounted to approximately HK$54,810,000 (2008: & =t 3X 48 58 3% #954,810,000
HK$55,362,000). BT (ZEZJ\4F : 55,362,000
HBIT) °
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) EEME
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st BE_ZTZNAEF+_A=1+—
December 2009 is set out below: HIEFE  SEZZH&EH7
W
Employer's
contribution to
Salaries and  Share-based pension
Name of Director allowances payments scheme Total
DRfE EXHEH#RE
BEEpR e FHepElE ERCEf aTEZ M st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR THET TR TET FER
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Au Wai Kin BRERELE - 240 - 12 252
Mr. Chen Chang Ying (i) BRREEAE() — 6,785 — 60 6,845
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KEEE - — — - -
Mr. Xiang Bin BEREE — 2,000 — 12 2,012
Mr. Xue Hu EREE - 1,324 - 54 1,378
Ms. Zhao Mingfeng HRE LT — 3,000 — 12 3,012

— 13,349 — 150 13,499
Independent non-executive  BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David NS 240 — — — 240
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oilver AL 240 — — _ 240
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Phillip s e 240 — — — 240
720 — — — 720
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e B ISR R M R

31 EMPLOYEES' BENEFITS COSTS (INCLUDING 31 REBARA(BREESHE)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (&)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEM<&E)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st B 2T )N\F+_-_A=1+—
December 2008 is set out below: HIEFE  SEZZH&E7
W

Employer's

contribution to

Salariesand  Share-based pension
Name of Director Fees allowances payments scheme
MRfhs EEHERS
EEMA Be  FekEl  ERvER ATElZ 50
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR THET TET TET TEx
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Au Wai Kin EEs= vt - 240 — 12 252
Mr. Chen Chang Ying BRELE — 6,706 — 52 6,758
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KEKEE — — — — -
Mr. W Jiesi (i BV B G) — 1,271 — 1 1272
Mr. Xiang Bin By rpte — 2,000 — 12 2,012
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia (i) BB (i) — 178 — 13 191
Mr. Xue Hu EREE — 1,294 — 48 1,342
Mr. Zhao Hai (iv) HEEEW) — 5,000 3,004 — 8,004
Ms. Zhao Mingfeng HEE T — 2,392 — 12 2,404
— 19,081 3,004 150 22,235
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Shafran Steven (iii) T BY S A (i) — — — — —
Independent non-executive BV EHTES
directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David TEELE 240 — — — 240
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Qilver EARLAE 240 — — — 240
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Phillip Ul it 240 — — — 240
720 — — — 720
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e AR

31 EMPLOYEES' BENEFITS COSTS (INCLUDING 31 EERARAK(BIEEEMS)
DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (#&)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEMeE)
Notes: Mi5E
(i) Mr. Chen Chang Ying resigned on 21st January 2010. (i) REBEEN_T—TF—
AZ+—HEHft -
(i) Mr. Wu Jiesi resigned on 17th January 2008. (i) HEBLEER_ZETNF—
B+t HEHT -
(i) Ms. Xiao Yan Xia and Mr. Shafran Steven resigned on 19th May (iy FERERIREERILEER
2008. TN \FRA+ILAE
£
(iv)  Mr. Zhao Hai resigned on 31st December 2008. (iv) BETERZZTZENF+=
A=+—H#HE

During the year, Mr. Chu Mang Yee waived emoluments of FRCARRREERERS

HK$240,000 (2008: HK$240,000). 240,000/ T (= FF/)\F
240,000/ 7T) ©

(c) Five highest paid individuals (0 BEERHFAL
AEEAEEREGaFTAL

BHE=2(ZTTNF  ImH)
B REZMECR EXAR

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2008: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The

252 HHTRE - B R
FEBME(ZBENE  —
Z)ERIALZBEMT -

emoluments paid and payable to the remaining two (2008:

one) individuals are as follows:

2009 2008

—EEAF —ETNE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FAET

Salaries and allowances e MoERL 3,982 2,272
Employer’s contribution to pension  {E X ¥R A S 518~ (X

scheme 14 12

3,996 2,284
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

31 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS (INCLUDING 31 EEEIAKR(BIEEEME)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (#&)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) () EBERSHALHE)

e FATER

The emoluments fell within the following band:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C 22,000,000/ 7T 1 —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T 22,500,000/ 7T 1 1
2 1

32 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 32 BIBEWARRKA

2009 2008
—gEAE  —FE)\F

HK$'000 HK$°000
FH FIT

Interest expense: MEFX :

— on bank loans wholly repayable —ARRAFRNEHEEZ

within five years SRITE 743,848 779,266
— on bank loans not wholly —NERRFRNBEHEEZ
repayable within five years RITEN 28,714 17,653
— on senior notes wholly repayable —ERAEFRNBEEEZ
within five year BARER 231,856 230,547
— on convertible bonds wholly — AR AEFRREEEZ
repayable within five year Al ES 143,990 129,317
Total borrowing costs incurred Firi Ko 2 #BIE B R AN 1,148,408 1,156,783
Less: Amount capitalised as part B BRIERERTWEZ
of the cost of properties FAD KA 2 FRIE

under development (814,769) (930,018)
333,639 226,765

Interest income from bank RITHEUA (13,551) (12,376)
Net finance costs B RSP AN SR 320,088 214,389

BEAREEARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e AR

33 TAXATION 33 ®HIE
2009 2008
—gEnFE  —TT\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Taxation consists of: FREeE
Current tax NEATR IR
Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) BEFEEL (M) 3,397 18,852
Mainland China corporate AR B KB 2 FRS FE (M RE (b))
income tax (Note (b)) 778,360 915,016
Mainland China land appreciation P B AP 4 b 32 (E R (P 5E(c))
tax (Note (¢)) 858,868 1,162,742
1,640,625 2,096,610
Deferred tax IRFERTIE
Mainland China corporate B KRE R FTIS L (B 3E(D))
income tax (Note (b)) 1,096,835 (119,871)
Mainland China land appreciation Fh B A £ b (E i (T 5E()
tax (Note (c)) (38,077) (63,927)
1,058,758 (183,798)
Taxation (Note (d)) I (M15E(d)) 2,699,383 1,912,812
Share of the jointly controlled entity’s taxation for the year ended BHE_TTZNF+_HA=+—BL
31st December 2009 of HK$370,308,000 (2008: Nil) is included FE DEZARZTEHERHIEAS
in the consolidated income statement as share of profit/(loss) of a 370,308,000 Lt ( — T ZT )\ &F :
jointly controlled entity. /) WERBRRAIES(hZ
EiESFE 2 EH,(EE) -
(a) Hong Kong profits tax (a) BTEFBH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BBFIGH 2 AT R R T
(2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. #16.5%(—ZZFN\F 116.5%)

PRSI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 TAXATION (Continued)
(b) Other income taxes

(c)

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
March 2016. Subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands are
incorporated under the International Business Companies Acts
of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are exempted

from the British Virgin Islands income taxes.

Subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are
subject to Mainland China corporate income tax at the rate of
25% (2008: 25%) for the year ended 31st December 2009.

Mainland China land appreciation tax

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including costs of land and development and
construction expenditures.

33 FIE#E)

(b)

(c)

HtFrigst
AARERLHME REMR
B HE_ZE-RF=Al-
RERLBESHERRIRE
REBREABHEERBERRDE
FEMARSZ - Bt - R A
RBELBSEN -

HEZTTNF+ZA=+—
BIEFE  AARRHPEK
PERR AL R4S & 2 T B A B Tyik
25% (=TT )\F : 25%) 2 Ft
KRR B KRR ZEFTIS R

AR K Bt it 3B B

R B K B St 3 (A A B 4 s 3
& - B EEHEERIEN
BRI HRIE B (B4 i R
XRBEERAR)  RBERE
30% E60% UKL

—E2ENEER 22



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

33 TAXATION (Continued) 33 BiE(#)

(d) The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the (d) AEEBFA GG SRIZRBER
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted A B ANAE 3 38 A S R B R 5
average tax rate applicable to profits of the group companies as BYEBHOEAMER i
follows: m

2009 2008
—EENF —EENEFE
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET BT
Profit before taxation B LA A 8,791,918 3,861,762

Less: Share of profit less loss B D EEE R ENE RIS
of associates 1,346 33

Less: Share of (profit)/loss of a jointly & : & —FE £ FEE & E 52

controlled entity CaF),/Eia (385,759) 1,710
8,407,505 3,863,505

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates  IZRAEE 2 B FEARRA

applicable to profits in the B E 2 Fi1E
respective countries 2,079,192 964,881
Income not subject to tax NEETION (121,027) (15,216)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 57,305 65,194
Land appreciation tax deductible AIHRERFTEMBR AR Z
for calculation of income T IS ER
tax purposes (205,198) (274,704)
Utilisation of previously )RR R IEEE
unrecognised tax losses (118) (8,477)
Deferred tax asset not recognised RERBELEHIEEE 68,438 82,319
1,878,592 813,997
Land appreciation tax + B EF 820,791 1,098,815
Taxation A 2,699,383 1,912,812
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 25% (2008: IETFERRER25%(ZF
25%). ZT\F 1 25%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R M R

34 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 34 AATIRERE ARGER
THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt KRNalREZFAE AREMWL A
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of 618,940,000 B L ( =T T )\ &F :
HK$618,940,000 (2008: HK$368,141,000). 368,141,000/ 7T ) B A AN A B B 15 4R

RARM

35 EARNINGS PER SHARE 35 BRER
Basic E-WiN
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit FRERZF HRIEARRD FREFE
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted ANEEFBRAFRD TS RRZ
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. IEFHEE T -

Profit attributable to equity holders — ANAFIEHER A AR (THETT)

of the Company (HK$'000) 5,799,573 1,963,724
Weighted average number of ordinary =217 & @A% < it & (TFR%)

shares in issue (‘000) 1,539,437 1,472,368
Basic earnings per share BREREN(BRETT)

(HK$ per share) 3.77 1.33
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

35 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The convertible
bonds are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares,
and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense less
the related tax effect. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the conversion of convertible bonds.

35

BREN#)

uE

SAESRESRNE  CHERTE
B MAEFHBIELRE - AR
RTERBEE N 2 BRRETHE
B AR ESME - BRAAR
BERMEZE BT B - AR

A ST AR A B IS R 2N A
o DA Rt AR E 2 IR EE 18D
R AR AT AR E S M B 1T 2R 1D
HEETH -

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company (HK$'000)

Interest expense on convertible bonds
(net of tax) (HK$'000)

AR ES 2 SR
(EEmE) (F#T)

ARBIBAER B ARMERN (THT)

Profit for calculation of diluted SFESRESEEN G (TET)
earnings per share (HK$'000)

Weighted average number of ordinary =217 & @A% 2 hnfEF9 & (TR%)
shares in issue (‘000)

Adjustments for AR — RS AR AR E AR
— shares to be issued on conversion  FE77 7 XD (THR)

of convertible bonds ('000)

Weighted average number of ordinary stE&EEEER] 2

shares for diluted earnings LmAr i TS (FAR)

per share ('000)

Diluted earnings per share
(HK$ per share)

FEEEARN (SBET)

For the year ended 31st December 2008, the convertible bonds are
auti-dilutive.

5,799,573 1,963,724
110,364 N/A
5,909,937 1,963,724
1,539,437 1,472,368
61,108 N/A
1,600,545 1,472,368
3.69 1.33

BE—TT)\F+-A=1T—HL*HF
B AR EsAREEYE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R M R

36 DIVIDENDS 36 BRE

2009 2008
—e®rE  —TINF

HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT T

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.092 B H AR B TR E AR 0.092 T

(2008: HK$0.0951) (ZZZ)\F : 0.0951%7T)

per ordinary share 146,498 140,022
Proposed final dividend of nil BORAHR B R T BREAE T

(2008: HK$0.105) (ZZZ\F : 0.105%7T)

per ordinary share — 154,599

146,498 294,621
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 37 ZERESREBRWE
STATEMENT
(a) Cash generated from operations

(a) BHEMEzRE

2009
—EENF
HK$'000
FHET
Profit before taxation B B8 R s A 8,791,918 3,861,762
Adjustments for: I
— Interest income — FBUA (13,551) (12,376)
— Finance costs — BAFER A 333,639 226,765
— Dividend income — RBUA (31,313) —
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  — HEHTE A Rk (621,933) —
— Loss on disposal of certain — HER—HMWBARET
equity interest in a subsidiary et < iR 136 —
— Share-based payments — LA R ETE 2 BT — 3,004
— Share of (profit/loss of a jointly — — 25— HEHZEHI
controlled entity CEF),/E5iE (385,759) 1,710
— Share of profit less loss — PGB A E A
of associates VY, SEi= 1,346 33
— Depreciation of properties and ~ — ¥)% R ETE
equipment 91,250 85,382
— Loss on disposal of properties — HEWENREEIE
and equipment 995 19,913
— Amortisation of land costs — AR ANEE 9,409 8,110
— Fair value gains on investment — WEYEIFE S
properties (4,700,097) (34,076)
— Excess of acquirer's interest — WRE T R = AU B AR
over cost of acquisition 2B — (193,489)
— Fair value loss on financial — BRAFEBRER RS
assets at fair value through WBEEN AT EERE
profit or loss 573 7,992
— Net exchange loss/(gain) — EXEE (W) F5E 442 (272,264)
Changes in working capital LEEEH (T EFBIE -
(excluding the effects of acquisition, HEMBR A ME K =58
disposal of subsidiaries and HIRERE 2FE) -
exchange differences on
consolidation):
— Land costs — AR (393,759) 864,860
— Completed properties for sale — A E 2 BEER I E (169,670) (4,260,958)
— Accounts receivable — FEULBR R (74,131) 74,023
— Prepayments for acquisition — URBE b AN A
of land (1,003,437) (860,125)
— Prepayments, deposits and — JBNFIE - R REAMRE
other current assets BiE (249,726) 124,474
— Accounts payable — FERFBRER 2,702 1,888,472
— Land cost payable — B AR AR 97,331 (385,919)
— Deferred revenue — R A 4,359,799 (874,376)
— Accruals and other payables — JEETERIE R E A A A 223,961 103,730
— Mainland China business tax — FREIRREE R (18,189) 7,280
— Due to a jointly controlled entity —— Bt —fEILREIEHIEE
1B — 491,295
Cash generated from operations KRB IS 6,251,936 875,222
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 37 #EEeRERMET®)

STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEKBATR
During the year ended 31st December 2009, the Group BE-_TZNAF+_A=1+—
disposed of 50% equity interest in Interwell Developments HIEFEE  AXEED M@ —
Limited and its subsidiary, Shanghai Mintai Real Estate BELE=ZR—REES
Company Limited (collectively, the “Interwell Group”) to an & 7 Interwell Developments
independent third party; and 51% equity interest in Nam Fong Limited R M E A7 L8R %
Guangzhou Plaza Limited and its subsidiary, Guangzhou Xiu B HiE AR A T (G Interwell
Nan Real Estate Development Company Limited (collectively, EBE ) Z250% M Az R
the “Xiu Nan Group”) to a related party (Note 41(e)). The net BHMEESAR AT REK
assets at the time of disposal were as follows: J& & B BN T F5 R A B

ERAG(HE I FmERD 2
51% Mg ANz (M 5E41(e)) ° R

HER EEFENT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT T
Total consideration satisfied by: BREUTIFAZA
Cash and cash equivalents received B & KRS EEY 1,257,814
Less: Net assets disposed of Land costs B BHEEEFET A 1,717,920
Properties under development for sale Al E 2 R 712,843
Completed properties for sale AR E 2 BRI 866,276
Deferred tax assets EER B E B 13,131
Properties and equipment LIEN &S 101
Current tax recoverable ANEAR] U [ A0 31,960
Prepayments TBIFRIE 43,959
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFEY 184,166
Deferred revenue EIEUR S (857,088)
Accruals and other payables FEFHRRIE K EoAth A< FRIE (633,262)
Bank borrowings RITER (847,589)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEEE (440,466)
Minority interests LIRS (379,251)
(412,700)
Less: Amounts due from the disposed B RN E HEEEFUE
groups (223,181)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMTE A R 2 W= 621,933
Analysis of the net cash inflow in respect  H & Interwell &£ 82 50% %
of the disposal of 50% equity interest AR NS EREZ51%M
in Interwell Group and 51% equity AR R RANFE 2D
interest in Xiu Nan Group:
Cash consideration ReRE 1,257,814
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed & : B HER S RIS ZEY (184,166)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BTFEERRZES R
received in prior years REEED (662,147)
Less: Consideration receivable W EWRE (198,664)
Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal  H &lInterwell &£ 8 2 50% %
of 50% equity interest in Interwell Em M AEEEZ51%K
Group and 51% equity interest TEm  BE RN FHE
in Xiu Nan Group 212,837
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R MR

38 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 38 HIBER

Group Company

£E D]
2009 2008 2009 2008
—BEAE ZTT/N\F ZBEAF ZTTN\HF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TAERT TAT TERT TAT

Financial guarantees not AR EwRER P IEL

provided for in the B 2 B TS EIR

financial statements are PO

as follows:
Guarantees given to banks giEEAREEME S

for mortgage facilities BETEREHIEZS

granted to certain BRI TIEL

buyers of the Group's ZER

properties 9,980,834 8,737,386 — —
Guarantees given to banks BB AR 2817

for bank borrowings BEmMmIRITIED

of subsidiaries Z PR — — | 6,351,923 | 6,949,835

Guarantees given to bank gt — L FEE G E
for bank borrowings of a  $R{TEEEH 2~
jointly controlled entity 2R 567,930 — 567,930 —

10,548,764 8,737,386 6,919,853 6,949,835
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 PENDING LITIGATIONS

(a

Summary of litigation in relation to contracts for transfer of
land use rights in state-owned land between Guangzhou
Hopson Junjing Real Estate Limited (BEMA& 4B EEHERR
73 a]), a subsidiary of the Group and Southern District Office of
Zhongshan Municipal People’s Government (/1L A REUT
% #$ =5 5Z); Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Real Estate Limited
(BMNA&EBEREMEARAQT) and Zhongshan Municipal
Bureau of Land and Resources (FRILTT R+ &R E)

In September 2009, Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Real Estate
Limited (“Hopson Junjing”) successfully bided for the land use
rights of a piece of land identified as Zhongshan Dongkeng Lot
"P26-07-0049" (the “Lot”) for a price of RMB500,000,000.
On 10th October 2007, Hopson Jungjing entered into the
“Contract for transfer of land use rights in state-owned land
in Zhongshan Municipal” with Zhongshan Municipal Bureau
of Land and Resources for the transfer of the land use right
of the Lot. After the execution of the said contract, Hopson
Junjing paid a security deposit of RMB15,000,000 and partial
land transfer price of RMB 250,000,000, with the balance of
the land transfer price of RMB 235,000,000 remaining unpaid.
On 28th October 2009, Zhongshan Municipal Bureau of Land
and Resources assigned its rights to receive the said unpaid
balance of the land transfer price from Hopson Junjing to
the Southern District Office of Zhongshan Municipal People’s
Government (“Southern District Office”).

On 9th November 2009, the Southern District Office, as
plaintiff, instituted a civil proceeding against Hopson Jungjing,
as defendant, in the Guangdong Province High Court for
payment of the balance of the land transfer price of RMB
235,000,000, an overdue penalty of RMB 178,250,000 (a
tentative sum which shall be adjusted in accordance with the
actual payment date) arising from breach of contract, and the

costs of the proceedings.

39 1FREFER

(a)

BEAEEETHB R REM
BERSFHWERR AR EHR
WmARBNEERER &
MEERSEMERR QR R
FLUTmBELTERBEAERES
T DI ERAES .2 FR
e

RZZEZNFNA - BINEE
BEREMEBRRAR (A EHE
= 1) A AR ®500,000,0007T 2
BREIRE—RER AP L
R 38 [ P26-07-0049 | ([ %
W) 2 HHERE - RZF
T+HE+HA+RH ALEHEH
FILTE L ER B EEZ
o i AR L E R
W B A Tt T e RES
Hlo B LIEHE - BERE
S+ AR #15,000,0007C 2
RiESE M AR250,000,0007T
ZED THEERE - EBRAA
R #235,000,0007T 2 T8
BRIMARZN c RZZETNF
+AZ+NB  RLTELE
TR B M A A B S U i+
ERB AR NER RN EE
ERILTTARBITER T EE
(ImEMHEED -

RZZZENF+—ANB @
EREREVEARSEA)RE
RERBARERAGERS
(EREEN)IRERERA -
EPEMRINHT T E RS
A R # 235,000,000 + A #
ReEHEEZBRIAARE
178,250,000 7T ( #% 7B iR IR E R
NRBERTURAE 2 EELE)
KRB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 PENDING LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(a

(Continued)

On 17th December 2009, Hopson Jungjin, as plaintiff,
instituted a proceeding against Zhongshan Municipal Bureau
of Land and Resources, as defendant, in the Guangdong
Province High Court on the ground that the Lot did not meet
the conditions of transfer of State-owned land, the transfer
procedure was illegal, the Lot was not a cultivated land and
the Lot could not be developed due to the presence of high
voltage cables on the upper section of the Lot. Hopson Jungjin
pleaded for a judgment that the Zhongshan Municipal Bureau
of Land and Resources shall repay the security deposit of
RMB15,000,000, the land transfer price of RMB250,000,000
and interest of RMB42,890,250 accrued on the above
sums (interest rate being the interest rate for bank loans
of the same period, from the day following payment date
to 25th December 2009, to be adjusted by the actual date
of repayment), and to bear the costs of the proceedings.
The Court has accepted and registered Hopson Jungjin's
application in January 2010.

Based on the advice of the Group’s internal and external legal
counsels, the Company’s Directors consider that there are
grounds to contest the claims by the Southern District Office
and therefore no provision has been made in these financial
statements.

Summary of litigation instituted by YTO Group Corporation (4
B —#6 5= B AR A 7)) against Guangzhou Laureland Property
Co., Ltd. (BMEMEEMEBRAF) and Guangzhou Ziyun
Village Real Estate Company Limited (EMEE LT E#ES
fR /A 7|]), a subsidiary of the Group, in relation to dispute over
guarantee

In December 2004, (YTO Group Corporation) (“YTO Group”)
and Guangzhou Laureland Property Co., Ltd. (“Laureland
Co") entered into an agreement, whereby Laureland Co
agreed to provide a counter-guarantee by pledging its seven
villas as security for repayment in respect of the amount
of RMB127,138,320 guarantee provided by YTO Group in
respect of a bank loan obtained by SAEGE2 2 A & (Henan Jian
Ye Company). Payable of a balance of RMB 93,138,320 by
Laureland Co to YTO Group is overdue.

39

743 AN s
FRGFAR (&)

(a)

(b)

(%)

RZZEEANF+=_A++tH"
EEBRE(ERREAN)RE
RERBAREBR A LT E
TERB(FEAKSE A IREF
A EREEZMRT A
EREE T 2 G R
BFETER - R I IEH
#ho JRRAIFE - TR Z
WEMMBERFEREEE
Fish - &4BESZE kP LTHE
TERBABERESARE
15,000,0007T + LB EE A
R #250,000,0007T } _t it 488
Z FEETFIS AR 42,890,250
T(FEAERB(ENKBER
HEZZZNF+-A=+h
H)RITERFIE - LERER
HERFLAFAEE) - DA RARIERL
B ERER T —TF—
AR REREEBRE 2 BE -

RIFAER B A 7B Ko SN A 12 R
BzBR ARREERAR
FEERERBEEMELR
BRI BAmRER AR
TRRIEL B

hE—EEEAR AR RER
MR EMNEREFLESR
RERAEEETHEARE
MEZLHEEMERRQRE
HEF AL E

RZZTZENFE+=—F PE—
BEEARAR(—HEEE])
HEMNRBEEHEGRAD A
([RMWEAT DI L% - &
FRBEATRASERERE
+iE R E AR R HRER
NEE—EEEMTEEER
ARG RITER MR EAEA
R#127,138,320 0 2 1R - &
MEARm—HEE 24
R AR ¥£93,138,3207L 2 18]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 PENDING LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

On 21st June 2007, YTO Group, as plaintiff, instituted a
proceeding against Laureland Co, as defendant, in Luoyang
Province Intermediate People’s Court, claiming for the payment
of the remaining balance of RMB 93,138,320. On 25th July
2007, the plaintiff issued “supplementary pleadings”, claiming
that Laureland Co and E/NEEE#MEAR A 7 (Guangzhou
Ziyun Real Estate Company Limited) (“Ziyun Co") maliciously
colluded to transfer assets at an undervalue and infringed the
legal rights of the YTO Group, hence adding Ziyun Co as a co-
defendant in the claim. YTO Group pleaded for judgment that
the abovementioned transfer(s) at an undervalue be declared
void and an order that the co-defendant to repay the balance
of RMB93,138,320.

On 7th August 2007, the Luoyang Province Intermediate
People’s Court made an injunction to freeze the sum of
RMB11,446,100 in the bank account of Ziyun Co and the land
use rights of the land situated in Nanan Village, Zhangcheng
Xintang Town, Guangzhou Province, with a total area of
130,452.83 square meters. On 18th March 2008, the Luoyang
Province Intermediate People’s Court released the said land
and freezed another land use rights of the land situated in the
same location, with a total area of 239,498.29 square meters.

On the basis of the damage arising from the bank account and
the land use rights being frozen as aforementioned, Yizun Co
instituted a proceeding in Guangzhou Province Intermediate
People’s Court against YTO Group and Laureland Co, pleading
for judgment that the co-defendants be injuncted from
infringing the rights of Yizun Co and to compensate Yizun Co
for its economic loss of RMB20,000,200.

Luoyang Province Intermediate People’s Court heard the
proceedings in relation to YTO Group's claims on 15th and
16th May 2008. The court ordered Laureland Co to repay the
sum of RMB 93,138,320 owed to YTO Group and that YTO
Group shall have priority in sums recovered by auction or sale
of the mortgaged properties. The court further ordered that
Yizun Co shall be liable for sums which Laureland Co may be
unable to settle. Yizun Co appealed against the decision and
applied to set aside the judgment and to declare that Yizun
Co shall not be liable for the settlement of the sums.

Based on the advice of the Group’s internal and external
legal counsels, the Company’s Directors consider that there
are adequate grounds to defend the case and therefore no
provision has been made in these financial statements.

39

73 h AN e
FRGFAD(E)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R MR

40 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments
Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date but not yet

incurred are as follows:

EATHEREE
— WERERA

Contracted but not provided for
— Property construction costs
— Acquisition of land and equity

interest in certain Mainland Tt R AR A

China entities

— Capital contribution to a jointly

controlled entity (“BJ (TR 3
Dongfangwenhua”) (Note 15) BERERL(HRE
Authorised but not contracted for B EEEKRETH
— Land costs — TR AR
— Property construction costs — MR ERAR

40

— B ETHEARERZ

— H—-RARERER

Dz
5)

IR
(a) EBEAEIE
REERRKREECERAX
M
Group
%
2009 2008
—EENF —ZETNF
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET THETT
879,839 410,988
169,562 656,473
258,400 257,960
1,307,801 1,325,421
66,332 78,376
3,530,730 695,781
3,597,062 774,157
4,904,863 2,099,578
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e B ISR R M R

40 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 40 EiEE)

(a) Capital commitments (Continued) (a) EBEXRAEESE)
The Group’s share of capital commitments of a jointly
controlled entity (Note 15), not included in the above, is as

YTARBEELRZAEE DG
— R FE S B8 2 B ARIE

follows: (FEE15)20TF -
Group
£E
2009 2008
—EBhE —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contracted but not provided for BRI B REE
— Property construction costs — MR A — 221,944
Authorised but not contracted for EREERETH
— Property construction costs — WP EEEEERN — 505,998

— 727,942

ARBAIR-_ZTZNF+_A
—t+—HIBEEREE(ZZEZS
J\ s HE) o

The Company has no capital commitment as at 31st December
2009 (2008: nil).

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) WEHERE
The Group has operating lease commitments in respect
of premises under various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

AEERZNEREENMEZ
AR HEEHE BB &
BHEALE - RIETAEHEL
BHONARZRERNEE

HemEmT
Group
58
2009
—EENF
HK$'000
THERT FAT
Amounts payable T AR L 2 5R18
— Within one year — —FR 26,854 40,404
— Within two to five years — MEERFR 76,077 116,382
— After five years — A& 49,129 9,108
152,060 165,894

The Company has no operating lease commitment as at 31st
December 2009 (2008: Nil).

ERARARZZEENFE+ZA
=t RYEKEEEAE(C
ET)\E) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e AR

40 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 40 EEE)
(c) Future minimum rental payments receivable () RERFJFEEWEERE
The Group leased out certain investment properties under AEERBELEHEELHEET
operating leases. The future minimum rental receivable under REWE o BT RELE
non-cancellable operating leases is as follows: HE 2 ARKEEKESOT :
Group
55

2009 2008

—EZNF —TENF

HK$'000 HK$’000

TR FHIT

Within one year —FR 53,879 38,271

In the second to fifth years —ERFER 164,543 118,455

Over five years HERE 145,303 97,268

363,725 253,994
The Company has no future rental receivable as at 31st KRR ZEENF+ZA
December 2009 (2008: nil). =+ — B W E (A AR R FE UL

S(ZTTENF - |E) -
41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41 BEAEREG

The Company is controlled by Mr. Chu Mang Yee (“Mr. Chu"), who RRARBERAKEE(REED Z
owns approximately 57.5% to 62.18% (2008: 59.00% to 62.18%) lc HREBE_ZTThhF+=A
of the Company's shares during the year ended 31st December =T —RIEFERNEALNTS%E
2009. The remaining shares are widely held. 62.18% ( Z T ZE \F : 59.00% &

62.18% ) AN A FIRRD - BT IRH B E
HALTEZER -

The ultimate holding company is Sounda Properties Limited. BEERARAFEERZER RG] -
(@) The following significant transactions were carried out with (@) THAHEBEEALTETZEES
related parties: R
Sales of goods and services WEEDRRE
2009 2008
—EENF —ETENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
Property management services RETFHEBERAGZMEESE
to related companies (i) ARTE () 13,919 2,316
Property design services RETFEEARZYERS
to related companies (i) ARTE (1) 19,917 —

33,836 2,316
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e B ISR R M R

41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 41 BEATXRZ &)
(@  The following significant transactions were carried out with (@ THAHEMEBALTHETTZEER

related parties: (Continued) 5 ()

Purchases of goods and services

2009 2008
—EENF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET BT
Property construction services from  B#&E A alfg {2 W3 2 AR ()
related companies (i) 1,899,903 2,180,086
Property design services from BB Rl 2 W2 LA ARTS ()
related companies (i) 13,787 27,013
Decoration services from — R E R AR 2 R ARTE)
a related company (i) 39,871 65,997
Office rental services from FENRIRBEIHAEHE
related companies (i) ARTE ) 2,363 3,524
Property management services from  B#&E R alig {2 ¥ E 2 AR5 ()
related companies (i) 899 1,947
Property construction supervision —HEERERE R
services from a related company (i)  ESE AR () 1,968 —
Electrical power installation, BEARIRFZENRE
intelligent building installation BERAELZETR  BER
work, budgeting and cost control B 7% 1) B8 s AR 745 (i)
consultation services from
related companies (i) 76,579 16,610
2,035,370 2,295,177
Note: B 5T -
(i) These related companies are minority shareholders of certain 10) ZEpENFARNATET
subsidiaries of the Company and subsidiaries of these minority MHEATIMADEBRERZE

shareholders.

BEEmR

KB

PHERAMBAR

BEAREEARAT
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e AR

41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 41

(b)  Amounts due from/to related parties were as follows:

Due from related companies
Amounts due from minority
shareholders of
certain subsidiaries of the
Company and subsidiaries

of these minority shareholders

Due from an associate

Due to related companies
Amounts due to minority
shareholders of certain
subsidiaries of the Company
and subsidiaries of the

minority shareholders

Due to an associate

Due to a jointly controlled entity

FEUBRE X RIFRIR
FEW AR BIETHB AR
DEIR K% E D BBIRD
B~ R FIE

& %(Hﬁ?&* SOHIE
/B A R 2 508

FE& I — B & R R FOR

FE A — R AR HI E R 2 3R

As at 31st December 2009, the Group had accounts payable of
approximately HK$2,471,757,000 (2008: HK$1,434,475,000)

due to subsidiaries of minority shareholders of certain

subsidiaries of the Company in respect of property

construction fees (see Note 23).

As at 31st December 2009, all outstanding balances with

related companies, associates and a jointly controlled entity

were unsecured, non-interest bearing and without pre-

determined repayment terms.

REALRZ#)
Fele/RBEALFRBMT -

2009

—EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FBT
13,664 6,979
29,365 26,538
173,721 174,920
6,269 6,258
1,842,289 759,380

RZZEZNF+_A=1+—
B $%IJEH$ GIESinl )

LERREIHBARZ
%%E%%iﬁz 471,757,000
TT(ZZFZE)N\F :1,434,475,000
) (RMIEE23) ©

ENFTA=+—
HEERR - BERR R
—RkREE %HaagZiﬂé% R

w=
B

/Eﬁ &IH{

._»
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e B ISR R M R

41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 41 BEATRZ®)
() Amount due to minority shareholders (0 ERIEIREFIE
The amount due to minority shareholders represents FERT D BURRFRIEIE D ERR
shareholders’ loans to subsidiaries from the minority MBAREE ZRERER -
shareholders, which is unsecured, non-interest bearing and BRAFEREER 2ERE
without pre-determined repayment terms. The amount is BEERE - FEEEIME
considered equity in nature. R AR o
(d)  Key management compensation: (d) FEEREWH
2009 2008
—EBAE  —TI)\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHTT
Fees e 720 720
Salaries and allowances 4 NoEaL 13,349 19,081
Share-based payments LARR (0 BB R 2 (BT
(Share options granted) (BERE B — 3,004
Pension costs RIRE KA 150 150
14,219 22,955
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(e)

Disposal of Xiu Nan Group

On 2nd November 2009, the Group, through Hopeson
Holdings Limited (“Hopeson”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a share purchase agreement
with Jumbo Advance Investment Limited $EEREBE A
a]) ("Jumbo Advance”) whereby the Group has agreed to
dispose of 51% of the entire issued share capital in Nam Fong
Guangzhou Plaza Limited (5 MFEH AR A F]), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of
RMB254,902,000 (“Consideration”). Jumbo Advance, which
is indirectly wholly-owned by the sister of Mr. Chu Mang Yee,
Chairman of the Company. Pursuant to the said share purchase
agreement, the Consideration shall be paid by Jumbo Advance
by two installments: (i) a sum of RMB80,000,000 shall be paid
upon the signing of the agreement on 2nd November 2009;
and (i) the remaining balance of RMB174,902,000 shall be paid
within 90 days after the signing of the agreement, namely 31st
January 2010. Payment of the said RMB80,000,000 was made
by Jumbo Advance on 2nd November 2009 and the remaining
balance of RMB174,902,000 (equivalent to HK$198,664,000)
has been included in prepayments, deposits and other current
assets at 31st December 2009 (see Note 19).

Investment in an available-for-sale financial asset

In September 2009, the Group invested in 5.09%
attributable equity interest in a PRC financial institution (the
“Financial Institution”) for RMB980 million (equivalent to
HK$1,112,197,000). Such shares are held through three
related parties of the Company (“trustees”) pursuant to
certain trust agreements made between the Group and each
of the trustees, against the guarantees given by Mr. Chu
Mang Yee, Chairman of the Company, in favour of the Group.
According to the legal advice obtained by the Group, the trust
agreements are legal and valid under PRC laws so far as the
Group and the trustees are concerned. However, the Financial
Institution has the right to require the trustees, who have
subscribed the shares not in the capacity as beneficial owners,
to sell the shares back to the Financial Institution or any party
it may designate at cost. If the Financial Institution exercises
such right against the trustees, it will be obliged to return the
investment (together with all dividends and interest accrued

thereto) to the Group.

41

BEALRZ @)

(e)

HEFEEE
RZZEZNF+—AZH XK
SEBBRARNBRZEWNB AR
AEEEARAR([AE])H
SEREEFRAR(EEDET
VEBEEWE  BEPASKERE
LEMIBAEESBRATE
HeBHTRAZI% R -
K A& B A K ¥ 254,902,000 7T
(RE] - sEEARRBIER
REKEEZ WHKEEE2ER
£ BEREEWRNAERAR
ZEEAT - IRE LRGN
BEfiE - ERAS MBS AR
B:OBER_ZZAF+—A
ZHEHEAEINEHEAR
#£80,000,0007T : K (i)ZBR =
E-ZE-F=+—HEIW
HEOOHAZ N TEHA
R # 174,902,000 7T ° it A
R % 80,000,000 7T | 4F & ©
ZEENF+—ARZBXH -
i & A R 174,902,000 7T
(198,664,000/ L) se AR =&
SAF+—A=+—RHZ#EH
A e REMEBEE(R
fiEE19) o

BRERAIHHEMBEE

R-ZZFZENFNA  AEE
FEfE —Mh R E (2R
#E1)5.00% A EE AR
980,000,0007%.(1,112,197,000
BILELRE - REBEARFE
JERF MK AR 2 FE R (A
AEERXHEAN)EEFRALZS
RIME TR - BRAKD
BEB=MARRRET ([E7E
ADNFEE - REASEESZ
ERER  RAREREFEA
R - ERpEN P BIAR
ATEBEEEM - A - &&
WEBRE KU FANERER
AZEMRBERMD 2 EFEAR
X7 R & B M B X HL m] BE R TE
ZAEA =TT E R o fr B
RS ERATEERER -
mEAAAEERDERE(GER
FrERE RERFIR) -
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41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(9)

Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the Chairman of
the Company, to the Group in relation to acquisition of Believe
Best

In 2007, the Group completed the acquisition of 80% of
the issued share capital of Believe Best Investments Limited
("Believe Best”) from Mr. Chu Mang Yee, Chairman of the
Company. Believe Best has, through its indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary (the project company), acquired a piece of land for
development in Chaoyang District, Beijing, China (known as

the "Jing Run Project”).

In relation to the Group's interest in the Jing Run Project
through its 80% interest in Believe Best, Mr. Chu Mang Yee,
has (i) fully guaranteed the bank loans which were used by the
project company for the demolition and relocation of the extra
public greenfield site peripheral to the Jing Run Project at the
request of the local government; and (ii) undertaken to the
Group to be responsible for the excess amount, if any, being
the difference in the unit cost per square meter (including the
demolition and relocation fees for the extra public greenfield
site and the land transfer fees as compared with the original
agreed valuation price of Jing Run Project) for the gross floor
area to be developed, payable by the project company in
respect of any increase in plot ratio as the government may
approve. The demolition and relocation on the construction
site have been completed, building construction is in progress
and pre-sale permit in respect of one phase of the Jing Run
Project has been obtained. The demolition and relocation work
on the extra public greenfield is ongoing and related costs of
approximately RMB1,410 million had been incurred by the
Group up to 31st December 2009. Such additional costs may
be compensated by an increase in plot ratio for the Jing Run
Project. However, government approval for increase in plot
ratio is pending.

41

BAE

(9)

AERF (&)
RRFERFE ARG E LR UE
EEMAREERM A

R-ZZETLF  AEEZKMA
RRBEFRGKEEWRERE
EREARAR(MEEDND#
TR Z280% st » [ZERE
BEREZZEMNBARCERER
AW RN P B R
BRAHER T (BRIR
HEB ) -

REBAAEBEFBENEE
80%EmMAEAE W HIEE 2
wmME - RAKEEBNHEH
BRASEZBEEAREE
Bz Esk - B EIEE FEE
BONAALAL T 2 IREB A
BERE 2 EMMBITER - K
[F) 7N 5% [ 5 B8 {18 8 3 AT 8k 52
FREEINA BEAL L i 2 B
EhB Lz AREE - mEBFH
K2R (BERREEAR
EfHERESZEIINAHEN L
MFBEERRTHERE)
BRRAREZHE - KAK
S AEAEENZIBER AR RZ
EEBBL S8 - BRAM
ZIRBELE TN EFIEE
T WEESABREER
—HZTEEFAE - IR
bt 2 IR TIEIETE#EAT
FMAEEREBEE-_ZZTN
FH+ZA=+—HEEZHA
R #1,410,000,000 7t Z 18 &
PR o REONBK AR SK & RS IR
HIER 2 BEESARE - A
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e I RR M

42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

42

FTEMBRAFE

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December

2009

Name of company

DEEB

Hopson Development
International Limited
SERIEBBREARAR

Addup International Limited
KEEBEARAR

Archibald Properties Limited
BEEEARAT

Beijing Hopson Beifang
Education and
Technology Limited®

IEREEIFTHE R
BRAF

Beijing Hopson Beifang
Real Estate Development
Limited"

e LT EHERE
BRAR"

Beijing Hopson Bright Day
Property Development
Limited”

IEREEFREMER T
BRATF?

Beijing Hopson Lu Zhou
Real Estate Development
Limited®

bR EEEMNE T ERE
BRAF"

Beijing Hopson Wang Jing
Real Estate Development
Company Limited”

IEREEEREMERE
BRAR"

Beijing Hopson Xing Ye
Real Estate Development
Limited*

IERE A S R A B
BRAR

Beijing Hopson Yuling
Real Estate Development
Limited®
EREEmMREERE
BRAF"

Place of
incorporation
and operations
= BRI K
BiE B

British Virgin Islands
KBRS

Hong Kong
e

British Virgin Islands
RBEAHS

Mainland China
AR RE

Mainland China
AR B ARE

Mainland China
AR RE

Mainland China
B RRE

Mainland China
AR B A RE

Mainland China
AR RE

Mainland China
AR B R R

Issued and

fully paid capital
ERTR
BERAE

US$2,000
2,000%7T

HK$1
17T

us$2
PES

RMB 1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007T

US$86,500,000
86,500,000 7T

RMB 10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

RMB463,370,000
AR¥463,370,0007T

RMB364,990,000
AR #364,990,0007C

US$31,600,000
31,600,0003 7T

US$37,500,000
37,500,000% ¢

UWTAR-_ZEZNF+-_A=+—8
ZTEMBRATRE :

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
SEELRKRE
Bok
Directly Indirectly

B S

100% —

— 100%

— 100%

— 49%(ii)

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

Principal activities

EEXK

Investment holding

RAER

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding

RAER

Provision of training and
consultancy services
RERIMEY A

EEE
Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

UES

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER
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42

DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

R

Place of
incorporation
and operations
= i AR 32 K%
EEM I

Issued and

fully paid capital
ERTR
BERAE

e ISR R M R

42 FEMBATFHBEE)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
SEEMRE
Aok
Directly Indirectly

HiE i =

Principal activities

EFEXK

Beijing Xingjingrun Property Mainland China US$131,990,000 — 80% Property development
Co., Ltd.* rhBIARE 131,990,000 7T MEER
R RBEEGR AR
Beijing Yi Shang Property Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited” AR B ARE AEE#10,000,0007T MEER
b RE R ERE
BRAR"
Beijing Zhujiang Century Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100% Property management
Property Management AR RE AR #5,000,0007T MEER
Limited”
IERWIELEYEER
BRAF"
Believe Best Investments British Virgin Islands Us$100 — 80% Investment holding
Limited RERIHE 100%7T REERR
BERABRAR
Chia Lung Group Company Samoa Us$6,500,000 — 100% Investment holding
Limited fEEECR B 6,500,000% 7T REERRK
FEEEEARAT
Dalian Hopson Hotel Mainland China RMB30,000,000 — 100% Hotel operation
Investment Management R B KR AR ¥30,000,0007T B
Company Limited®
RESHBEEREER
BRAF
Dalian Hopson Xing Ye Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Development R AR AR#50,000,0007T MEER
Company Limited®
RES HEFEF i ER %
BRAF?
Dynawell Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 50%(ii) Investment holding
BEAIRERRAF i 10,000%7T REER
Ever New Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary HK$3 — 100% Investment holding and
BHEERRAA B non-voting deferred property investment
shares (i) BEERRMERE
2B LR
3B TEICRE
IRFERZ A7 (i)
Funland Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding
EEXBRAR RERIHE 23T RERERR
Grand Avenue Limited Hong Kong HK$22,500,000 — 100% Investment holding
L BER AT 6 22,500,000 7T BEERK
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42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42 FEMBELRFER)

Name of company

R

Guangdong Esteem Property
Services Limited*

ERESMERBARAF

Guangdong Hopson Dijing
Real Estate Co. Ltd.”

BREEFREIE
BRAF

Guangdong Hopson Hong
Jing Real Estate Company
Limited®

BREEMRFEIE
BRAR"

Guangdong Hopson Lejing
Real Estate Co. Limited*

ERAELESFHE
BRAR

Guangdong Hopson Minghui
Real Estate Limited'

BRELRERE
BRRRA]

Guangdong Hopson Yuehua
Real Estate Limited®

BREEMERME
BRAR

Guangdong Huajingxincheng
Real Estate Limited"

BERE S E I E
BRAF"

Guangdong Huanan
New City Real Estate
Limited'

R E R A
BRRRA]

Guangdong Huanan Real
Estate Limited'
EREREMERRAA)

Guangdong Jinan Real Estate
Limited'
BREREMEGRAR)

Guangdong New Tai An Real
Estate Limited*

BERFHRLEMmEARAR

Place of
incorporation

and operations

EER VA
EEM R

Mainland China
AR B RRE

Mainland China
AR B RE

Mainland China
ey

Mainland China
ey

Mainland China
e N

Mainland China
B KR

Mainland China
AR RE

Mainland China
AR B ARE

Mainland China

P BIARE

Mainland China
A B K RE

Mainland China
AR RE

Issued and

fully paid capital
ERTR
BEBRAE

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7T

US$37,500,000
37,500,000% 7T

RMB200,280,000
AR#200,280,0007

RMB44,500,000
AR #44,500,0007T

RMB41,532,852
ANER#41,532,8527T

RMB41,500,000
AR41,500,0007T

RMB93,500,018
AR#93,500,0187¢

RMB464,750,000
AR#£464,750,0007T

RMB48,046,856

AR #48,046,8567T

RMB65,084,340
AR #65,084,3407T

RMB 19,100,000
AR#19,100,0007T

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
EEEARE
Aok
Directly Indirectly

HE i =

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 90%

— 100%

— 100%

— 99%

— 70%

— 90%

— 100%

Principal activities

EEXK

Property management

VE S $L

Property development

MR

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

R

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

WEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MR

Property development

MEER
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Name of company

R

Place of
incorporation

and operations

EE
EE MR

42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Issued and

fully paid capital
ERTR
BERAE

e ISR R M R

42 FEMBATFHBEE)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
SEEMRE
Aok
Directly Indirectly

HiE i =

Principal activities

EFEXK

Guangzhou Hechuang Mainland China RMB30,000,000 — 100% Provision of construction
Construction Company B A e AR #30,000,0007C service
Limited® RS RTS
EINE A TREEBBRAF"
Guangzhou Hopson Cuijing Mainland China RMB53,550,000 — 97% Property development
Real Estate Limited’ B R RE AR#553,550,0007T MERER
BMNEERRFiE
BRAT
Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Mainland China RMB42,500,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited’ LGN AR#42,500,0007T TR
BMEERFREIE
BRAR
Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Mainland China RMB221,670,000 — 95% Property development
Real Estate Limited’ rh BB AR#221,670,0007T MEER
BMEEBRRFEIE
ARRR]
Guangzhou Hopson Keji Mainland China RMB 133,340,000 — 95% Property development
Garden Real Estate AR B RE AR# 133,340,000 MEER
Limited'
BMNE SRR EE hE
BRAR
Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui Mainland China RMB42,287,624 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited' rh B AR AR#42,287,6247T )R
BING EBEEhE
BRAT
Guangzhou Hopson Mainland China RMB3,000,000 — 100% Water supply
Qingyuan Water Supply R B R RE AR #3,000,0007T oK
Limited®
BME B RFKERAF
Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing Mainland China RMB500,000 — 100% Provision of clubhouse
Business Services Limited® 0 A e AFR#500,0007C and residential services
BN EEREBAERIR’ RS RETRE
Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Mainland China RMB131,420,019 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited’ R BB AR#131,420,0197C MEER
BEMNE EtaE R E
BRRRA]
Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Mainland China RMB82,073,720 — 99.5% Property development
Real Estate Limited’ B RE AR¥82,073,72070 MEER
BME SRR EIE
BRAR
BEAREEARAT —TTAEEH 243
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42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 42 FEMBELRFER)

Name of company

R

Guangzhou Hopson Yujing
Real Estate Limited'

BMNEERmREE
BRRR]

Guangzhou Jian Nan
Property Development
Limited®

BNEREEERARDR"

Guangzhou Nonggongshang
Construction and
Development Company
Limited”

BN R TR R E 2R
ok NG

Guangzhou Sanlian Huagiao
Estate Company Limited”®

BIN=EEBREE
BRAE

Guangzhou Wanxiangying
Real Estate Company
Limited*

BT EREmERR
BRARS

Guangzhou Xin Chang Jiang
Development Limited®

BRI R
BRAF?

Guangzhou Yi Cheng Real
Estate Development Limited'

&N T8 B 5 A A
BRAR

Guangzhou Yi Hui Real Estate
Development Limited'

N T 5 R 5 b EE A B
ARRAR]

Guangzhou Yijing Arts and
Culture Company Limited®

BN S L B3 R
BRARP

Place of
incorporation

and operations

= A X &
EE R

Mainland China
PN

Mainland China
PN

Mainland China
PN

Mainland China
B KR

Mainland China
B KR

Mainland China
B K e

Mainland China
PN

Mainland China
B KB

Mainland China
B K e

Issued and

fully paid capital
ERTR
BERE

RMB47,250,000
AR147,250,0007T

US12,000,000
12,000,000% 7%

RMB2,170,243
AR#2,170,2437T

RMB30,000,000
AR #30,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000
AR#1,000,0007

RMB60,000,000
AR #460,000,0007C

RMB42,000,000
AR #42,000,0007C

RMB37,000,000
AR #37,000,0007T

RMB500,000
AEK#500,0007C

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
SEEMGRE
Aok
Directly Indirectly

HiE i =

— 70%

— 100%

— 100%

— 67%

— 100%

— 95.5%

— 75%

— 75%

— 100%

Principal activities

FEXK

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

WEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MR

Investment holding

WA
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42

DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

R

Place of
incorporation
and operations
=E i AR 32 B
EE I

Issued and

fully paid capital
ERTR
BERAE

e ISR R M R

42

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
SEEMRE
Aok
Directly Indirectly

HiE 8 =

FTEMBRAFE

Principal activities

TEER

Guangzhou Yiming Real Estate Mainland China RMB43,800,000 — 50%(ii) Property development
Development Company AR B RE AR# 43,800,000 7T MEER
Limited”
B INEREA S E R B
BRAA"
Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Mainland China RMB535,500,000 — 99.5% Property development
Real Estate Limited' EEPN AR #535,500,0007T MR
BEMIRTEEE hE
ARRR]
Guangzhou Ziyun Village Mainland China US$2,000,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Company Limited* = B A RE 2,000,000 7T MEER
BMEELGHFEE
BRAA"
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Provision of property
(Consultants) Limited RERZHS 23T design and advisory
SHEAIR(ERDBRAT services
i E S a
BR75
Hopson Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Property investment
(Properties) Limited BE 10,0005 7T WL E
BHAREZE)ERAA
Hopson (Guangzhou) Industries Mainland China US$4,830,000 — 100% Property development
Limited* EEPN 4,830,000% 7T IR
aE(BMNEEBRRF
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary — 100% Investment holding
AEEEBRAT e HK$10,000 non-voting BEER
deferred shares (i)
2B LR
10,0008 TLE K =12
IRIER A7)
Hopson Properties (China) British Virgin Islands Us$1 — 100% Investment holding
Limited RBEAHE 17T BEER
BEPBEEMEFRAR
Huizhou Dayzhou New Coastal Mainland China RMB72,500,000 — 60% Property development
City Development and eI N AR#72,500,0007T MEER
Investment Co., Ltd.”
BINK B EEE R TR
RERRRFS
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e I RR M

42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

R

Huizhou Haolong Industrial
Development Company
Limited”

BMTHREEERRE
BRAFS

Huizhou Hopson Xin Neng
Properties Limited”

BMNTEEEREESE
BRAF"

Huizhou Yapai Real Estate
Company Limited”
BT RIREHESRA A

Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate
Company Limited”

BNTEHEHERRAR

Ji Run Property Investments
Limited
HHEXKEABRAR

Karworld Holdings Limited
RMEERRAF

Malaysian Teoghew Industrial
Estate Development
(Guang Zhou) Ltd.*
BMSBIENBERERAF"

Max Clear Investments Limited

FRRERRAT

Nambour Properties Limited

MAEEZXERAR

Ningbo Hopson Ci City Leisure
Sports Company Limited”

BEREERHNEREER
BRAF

Ningbo Hopson Kam City Real
Estate Company Limited®

BRE E IR EIE
BRATF

Ningbo Hopson Ming City Real
Estate Company Limited®

EREEBWEE
BRAF

Place of
incorporation
and operations
=E it AR 32 B
EEM I

Mainland China
AR B R RE

Mainland China
B ARE

Mainland China
A B KR

Mainland China
AR RE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
=B

Mainland China
B KR

Hong Kong
e

British Virgin Islands
KBRS

Mainland China
AR B R RE

Mainland China
AR B A RE

Mainland China
AR B ARE

Issued and

fully paid capital
ERTR
BERAE

RMB 10,000,000
AR#10,000,0007T

HK$50,000,000
50,000,000/ 7T

RMB250,000,000
AR #250,000,0007T

RMB119,000,000
AR#119,000,0007T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000% 7T

HK$10,000
10,000/ 7T

HK$25,000,000
25,000,000 /& 7T

HK$1
18T

us$2
2%

RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T

RMB 10,000,000
AK#10,000,0007T

42 FEMBATFHEE)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
FEEEARE
Aok
Directly Indirectly

HE S

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 80%

— 100%

— 55%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

Principal activities

EEXK

Property development

FUE S35

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

bUE S35

Investment holding

BEER
Investment holding
REER

Property development

WEER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Property development

MR

Property development

U

Property development

MEER
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42

DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

R

Place of
incorporation
and operations
= i AR 32 K%
EEM I

Issued and

fully paid capital
ERTR
BERAE

e ISR R M R

42 FTEMBATFHEE)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
SEEMRE
Aok
Directly Indirectly

HiE i =

Principal activities

EFEXK

Ningbo Hopson Real Estate Mainland China RMB220,000,000 — 100% Investment holding
Company Limited® AR AR #220,000,0007T REER
EREERIREME
BRARP
Outward Expanse Investments British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding
Limited REERHE 2ETT REERK
BXREERRAR
Plaza Royale Water Palace Mainland China RMB72,000,000 — 70% Hotel operation
Convention Hotel Tianjin Co. NS AR#72,000,0007T B G
Limited”
RAETHRRTBOE
BRAR
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding
BB EBRDA RERIEE PE REER
Prestige Dragon Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Investment holding
Limited ] 10,0007 7T BEER
BRERABRAR
Right Strong International Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
Limited HE 17T REER
SRR AR AT
Shanghai Dazhan Investment Mainland China RMB900,000,000 — 100% Property development
Management Company B KR AER#900,000,0007T MEER
Limited®
PERRREERERAF
Shanghai Hopson Property Mainland China US$59,900,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company A B KR 59,900,000% 7T MEER
Limited"
EEEEEEME
BRAF"
Shanghai Long Jia Properties Mainland China RMB20,000,000 — 100% Property development
Limited® R B RE AR#20,000,0007T R
PEEREEERARP
Shanghai Lung Meng Mainland China UsS$44,370,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Development e 44,370,000% 7T MEER
Company Limited”
FEREEEMERE
BRAF"
Shanghai Shangzhi Haiyun Mainland China RMB400,000,000 — 100% Property development
Properties Company Limited® e AR#400,000,0007T MEER
FEEEEEREEARRAR
BEAREEERAT —TBAEER 247
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42

DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

R

Shanghai Son Xiang Real Estate

Development Company
Limited*

EE=gREZERARAF

Shanghai Yu Tai Real Estate
Development Company
Limited®

FEHREHEER
BRAF

Shanghai Ze Yu Properties
Limited”
PEETFEEERAR

Shanghai Zhengze Real Estate
Development Company
Limited”

EBIEEEMERRAR

Shanxi Hopson Dijing
Construction Company
Limited”

WS EmRERARAR

Shine Wealth Consultants
Limited
SUREMARAR

Size Up Investments Limited

EEREBRAR

Solawide Properties Limited
SEEXEBRAF

Suizhong Haisheng Tourism
Development Corporation®

R SEIREE TR
BRIR

Sun Advance Investments
Limited
HEREBRAT

Sun Yick Properties Limited
M BEXEARAR

Tianjin Babo Real Estate
Development Company
Limited”

RETEERE HhAER
BRAAE"

Place of
incorporation
and operations
=E it A% 32 K%
EEM I

Mainland China
AR B A RE

Mainland China
AR B A RE

Mainland China
AR KRE

Mainland China
B RE

Mainland China
AR B RE

British Virgin Islands
REBELHE

Hong Kong
e

British Virgin Islands
RBEAHE

Mainland China
R A R

British Virgin Islands
RBEAHS

British Virgin Islands

RBRELES

Mainland China
ey

Issued and

fully paid capital
ERTR
BEBRAE

US$8,000,000
8,000,000%7T

RMB400,000,000
AR #400,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T

RMB 185,000,000
AR#185,000,0007T

Us$1
17T

HK$1
18T

us$2
PES

RMB 10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

US$1
1%

uss2
PES

RMB20,000,000
A #20,000,0007T

42 FEMBATFHEE)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
EEEARE
Aok
Directly Indirectly

HE i =

— 100%

— 100%

— 94%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

— 51%

— 100%

— 100%

— 100%

Principal activities

EEXK

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

R

Provision of consultancy
services

TR RS

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RAER

Property development

FUE S35

Investment holding

B
Investment holding
RAER

Property development

MEER
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42

DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

R

Place of
incorporation
and operations
= i AR 32 K%
EEM I

Issued and

fully paid capital
ERTR
BERAE

e ISR R M R

42 FEMBATFHBEE)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
SEEMRE
Aok
Directly Indirectly

HiE i =

Principal activities

EFEXK

Tianjin Hopson Binhai Real Mainland China RMB375,826,000 — 98.9% Property development
Estate Development AR B RE AR #375,826,0007T MEER
Company Limited'

REREABFHERE
BRRA]

Tianjin Hopson Environmental Mainland China US$500,000 — 75% Research and development
Protection and Energy AR B KR 500,000 7T of environmental
Saving Technology technology and
Development Company product
Limited" W9 R BB RN &

RAEERREGRERMFE EEdm
BRAA"

Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Mainland China RMB280,000,000 — 92.3% Property development
Real Estate Development EaEib N AR #280,000,0007T MEER
Limited'

REEEWRIEHERE
BRAR

Tianjin Meixin Architectural Mainland China RMB3,000,000 — 100% Architectural Design
Design Company Limited® EaEib N AE#3,000,0005T R

REFHRERF
BRAF

Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding

HHEXARAF RBEAHE 23T BEER

Trisum Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 — 100% Investment holding

LREARR AT a5 5,000,000/ 7T REER

Value-Added Guangzhou Mainland China RMB8,000,000 — 70% Property development
Limited” P EIARE AR 8,000,0007T MEER

BMminsaRAR’

Zhejiang Ke Hua Digital Plaza Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 — 95% Property development
Company Limited® A B KR AF#10,000,0007T MEER

A IRIESIS E S
BRAF

Zhongshan Hopson Hao Jing Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Company ey AR#10,000,0007T MEER
Limited”

FRIlma S RREHE
BRAF?

Zhongshan Hopson Hong Jing Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Company AR RE AR#10,000,0007T MEBR
Limited”

P& ERREIE
BRAF?
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DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

R

Place of
incorporation
and operations
=E it A% 32 K%
EEM I

Issued and

fully paid capital
ERTR
BEBRAE

of company

Zhongshan Hopson Xi Jing Mainland China RMB 10,000,000
Real Estate Company AR B A RE AR#10,000,0007T
Limited®

RILmEERREHE
BRARP

Zhongxian International Mainland China RMB900,000,000
Company Limited® A B A RE AE#900,000,0007T

R R AR

#

1

A

Notes:

@

(ii)

These are wholly owned foreign enterprises established in Mainland
China.

These are equity joint ventures established in Mainland China.

These are cooperative joint ventures established in Mainland China.

These are domestic enterprises established in Mainland China.

These are foreign enterprises established in Mainland China.

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights and are not
entitled to any dividend or distributions upon winding up unless a
sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders
of the ordinary shares and thereafter one-half of the assets are
distributable to holders of the non-voting deferred shares.

These are subsidiaries because the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of these companies, notwithstanding
that the Group’s equity interests in these companies are not more
than 50%.

42 FEMBATFHEE)

Percentage of equity

interest attributable

to the Group
& 1 A HE
Aok

%m

Directly
HE

Principal activities

TEE®
Indirectly
&

— 100% Property development
MEER
— 100% Property development

R

ZERRPERERL 2 2EHAE
HVELRZE
ZERRTERERIZAERE
b3
ZERRPERERIZAFRE
fis

ZE RN BIRRERS 2 AE R -
ZE RN BEIARERT 2 SVE R -

EINZERTR MG W RIS - &
P EN (] R B B A A B R =
B9k - K3E100,000,000,000,000
BILTEDRTEBRIFEA - AIHE
BEEZ A DRTERERE
ERMDIFTAEA °

BEREERZE AR ZBAER
WAHBIB50% * ZERARAMBEAR
AIERAEEEGRRAEZEAR
Z IS R AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(a

On 2nd February 2010, the Group repaid the
RMB1,830,400,000 aggregate principal amount of USD
settled Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds at 104.49% of the
nominal value, of approximately US$280,418,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,914,415,000).

On 4th March 2010, the Group entered into a land
purchase agreement with Kunshan State Land Resources
Bureau for a piece of land situated at both sides of Ying
Zhou Lu and the south of Xin Tang He, Zhoushi Zhen,
Kunshan city with a site area of approximately 292,140.4
square metres. The total consideration of the transaction is
approximately HK$879,741,000 (equivalent of approximately
RMB774,172,000).

On 16th March 2010, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited
("Panyu Zhujiang”) and the disposal of 100% equity interest
of Cheerocean Investments Limited (“Cheerocean”) with
Guangdong Hanjiang Construction Installation Project Limited
("Hanjiang”), a related company. The balance, being the
difference between the consideration of the acquisition and
the disposal, in the sum of RMB2,386,073,000 was settled by
means of share issuance on 16th March 2010 in favour of Mr
Chu Mang Yee, Chairman of the Company, who, in return,
has undertaken to the Group to pay the balance to Hanjiang.
It is estimated that the completion will result in an estimated net
gain after tax of approximately HK$855,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB753,000,000) to the Group.

43

HERRSE

(a)

(b)

(o)

RZE—ZEF-ZHA=ZH K
EENETENZTETBRR
& % M (A Z 104.49% B %
280,418,000 7T (K E A A
R #1,914,415,0007T ) BiE &
N& #a%E AR ¥ 1,830,400,000

JC °

RZZE—ZF=AMNA - A&
EHEEILTELERBMAR
B2 L T ) T 30 R B P 55 B R
SN AR (R 10,49292,140.4F 75
K2 ST BT 4 3 R 1 3
R 5 BB H 7=879,741,000
BELT(HOEERARE
774,172,0007T) °

RZE—ZEF=AF+H"
AEBTETKABEARER
BIIRELRKIBARAA
([BIHREEBSHRIEHE
BRAFI(IFREHRI 2
At & EBFREBRA A
(THEF]Z2HRE - REA
R # 2,386,073,000 7T 7 £ %8
(A ERERLERERZ
EZEB)NEBR T —TF=
B+ "BREARREBREK
FHEBITROIN » MARK
LAk DMAREEAE L FER
BT 7B AEENENT
PR R R 15 5T BR B 18 0 F 2 49
855,000,000 7T (XU FH & A A
FR#753,000,0007T) °
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

I EREE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

mREERER

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
“ZTRE —ZTRE ZETHE ZZTN\E “ZEhE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THT THL TR
ASSETS AE
Non-current assets ErRBEE
Land costs THIFAR 426,499 500,367 639,205 749,663 329,440
Prepayments for acquisition WiEE T TN R
of land — — — 2,436,630 266,962
Properties and equipment WERE 938,913 1,267,460 2,063,811 2,405,623 3,175,029
Investment properties REME 2,583,313 2,503,845 2,736,835 2,856,094 8,378,105
Properties under development  #HERHEIRE 7 %R
for long-term investment R 234,411 227,765 135,157 125,856 —
Intangible assets B AE 102,142 106,349 111,819 120,455 120,660
Investments in associates N EYNCI DA 80 — 39,206 42,201 40,925
Investment in a jointly R—ERREEE
controlled entity A 867,632 1,033,245 676,460 801,240 1,188,692
Available-for-sale financial ARHENKEE
assets — 291,834 463,158 476,250 2,671,719
Deposit paid Bii&e — 554,579 — — —
Deferred tax assets BREBEEE 51,962 42,357 107,878 173,378 191,287
Other non-current asset HtIEnBEE — 919,584 — — —
5,204,952 7,447,385 6,973,529 10,187,390 16,362,819
Current assets MEERE
Land costs THIBCAR 5,131,465 7,135,951 16,151,494 24,163,460 24,580,807
Prepayments for acquisition WiBE + i TE SR
of land — 634,080 12,027,112 6,142,999 7,363,482
Properties under development B[t H & 7 ERrh )%
for sale 4,320,803 4,146,742 5,183,349 8,910,522 9,611,470
Completed properties for sale A HE 2B ERDE 1,071,604 1,953,586 2,180,924 4,806,954 4,199,930
Finandial assets at fair value BATEERERIRN
through profit or loss BITEEE — — 20,280 11,655 11,083
Accounts receivable FEUTBE TR 90,324 111,142 138,743 72,577 146,895
Other receivables HibpElisiE — 9,000 682,815 758,405 488,175
Prepayments, deposits and BRFIE - e REM
other current assets MBEE 1,171,863 1,678,347 2,273,376 770,163 1,131,951
Due from an associate JEU —FBt & A R 30E — — 22,344 26,538 29,365
Due from related companies FEUERE AT 2R 2,285 18,531 17,390 6,979 13,664
Pledged/charged bank deposits 2548 /M FTER 237,068 157,317 277,031 271,450 168,479
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLZEY 2,353,280 2,412,479 1,985,055 2,142,696 6,546,144
14,378,692 18,257,175 40,959,913 48,084,398 54,291,445
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accounts payables
Land cost payable
Borrowings
Deferred revenue
Accruals and other payables
Due to an associate
Due to directors
Due to related companies
Due to a jointly controlled

entity

Due to a holding company
Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

afE

nBEE
FERERAR
JERS iR
g

BERA

JERH SR R AN TR
FEf— B2 AR 2R
ENESRR
ENEERRZ R
FE— R

B HE
RN —RZERARNA
THRERE
RBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities A&EREEHAE

Non-current liabilities
Land cost payable
Borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Due to minority shareholders
Other non-current liability

Net assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable

to the Company's equity
holders

Share capital

Reserves

Minority interests

Total equity

DA
-
.
D E 3
i RHAN

BEFE

s
AR B AR
RA R

A

R

DEBRER

BaE

2005
—TTRE

HK$'000
TAT

2006
ETAE
HK$'000

FE

M EREE

RREERER®)

2007
“ZTLF
HK$'000
FAL

2008

HK$'000
TAET

2009
—geNF
HK$'000
a7

800,524 563,378 953,128 2,933,721 2,941,424
1,000,039 1,070,928 605,289 323,696 302,418
1,837,342 1,345,042 2,898,895 4,262,798 6,232,260
2,837,090 4,167,431 4,981,769 4,458,379 7,260,538

866,831 989,702 1,763,446 2,249,864 1,728,752

5,146 5,343 5,624 6,258 6,269
13,891 — — — —
266,362 103,398 137,836 174,920 173,721
148,117 1,037,287 231,253 759,380 1,842,289
18,997 - — — -

584,191 416,109 2,515,248 4,162,230 4,357,337
8,378,530 9,698,618 14,092,488 19,331,246 24,845,008
6,000,162 8,558,557 26,867,425 28,753,152 29,446,437

11,205,114 16,005,942 33,840,954 38,940,542 45,809,256
522 - 175,959 106,173 271,028
4,826,851 6,076,963 9,718,998 12,330,211 10,116,598
612,466 1,119,814 3,867,687 3,890,102 4,502,743
— — — 49,983 419,41

— 581,250 — — —
5,439,839 1,778,027 13,762,644 16,376,469 15,309,780
5,765,275 8,227,915 20,078,310 22,564,073 30,499,476

121,360 128,510 147,237 147,237 159,237
5,342,348 7,709,155 17,717,146 20,032,657 28,034,506
5,463,708 7,837,665 17,864,383 20,179,894 28,193,743

301,567 390,250 2,213,927 2,384,179 2,305,733
5,765,275 8,227,915 20,078,310 22,564,073 30,499,476
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

I EREE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS

meBEER

2005 2007 2008 2009
“ZTRE ) i 2 —EE)N\F “BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FhT T AL THT TRR
Revenues Wz 6,133,894 6,920,294 11,130,643 10,774,624 11,225,246
Cost of sales HERK AR (4,189,275) (4,509,340) (6,669,998) (5,915,976) (6,557,985)
Gross profit E7 1,944,619 2,410,954 4,460,645 4,858,648 4,667,261
Fair value gains on investment & & ¥ % A FEU
properties 14,232 261,414 386,732 34,076 4,700,097
Other gains, net Hiplzs - B 5 247,762 244117 1,106,985 265,395 734,033
Selling and marketing costs SHE R TISHEER A (211,880) (228,618) (281,082) (389,348) (378,757)
General and administrative —MRITRER
expenses (331,075) (296,600) (510,672) (690,877) (995,041)
Operating profit AR T 1,663,658 2,391,267 5,162,608 4,077,894 8,727,593
Finance income M 17,382 26,814 50,394 12,376 13,551
Finance costs BT RAR (59,966) (84,808) (136,916) (226,765) (333,639)
Share of (loss)/profit less loss of /> {HE: N &) (E51E)
associates SRR E R 44 (80) (599) (33) (1,346)
Share of profit/(loss) of and DG LR E
other gains relating to jointly 2 &M, (E18) &
controlled entities HAinlkss 191,509 128,343 101,964 (1,710) 385,759
Profit before taxation MR B R A 1,812,627 2,461,536 5,177,451 3,861,762 8,791,918
Taxation FRIE (611,446) (837,358) (1,629,245) (1,912,812) (2,699,383)
Profit for the year A 1,201,181 1,624,178 3548206 1948950 | 6,092,535
Attributable to: e
Equity holders of the Company KA &I R A A 1,217,323 1,553,752 3,517,312 1,963,724 5,799,573
Minority interests DEIAR R RS (16,142) 70,426 30,894 (14,774) 292,962
1,201,181 1,624,178 3,548,206 1,948,950 6,092,535
Dividends & E 412,494 480,980 616,922 294,621 146,498
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Principal Office

Suites 3305-3309

33rd Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

Guangzhou Representative Office
16th Floor, South Tower

Zhujiang Investment Building

421 Zhujiang East Road

Zhujiang New City

Guangzhou

Beijing Representative Office
Zhujiang Development Centre
23 Dawang Road West
Chaoyang District

Beijing

Shanghai Representative Office

18th Floor, Guangdong Development Bank Building

555 Xujiahui Road
Shanghai

Tianjin Representative Office
No. 14 Dongchengnan Road
Baodi District

Tianjin
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